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CORPORATE PROFILE
7Ny

The Company is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages.

In pursuing the development strategy of “based in Nanjing, cultivate the
Yangtze River Delta and radiate the urban area”, the Company has successfully
expanded its real estate development business from Nanjing to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. The Group persists in its core
development strategy of “leading quality, excellent services and innovative
future”, which is aimed at developing quality property products “with healthy,
comfortable, smart and convenient living environment for customers of all
ages”. As one of the top 100 real estate developers in China, the Company has
been recognised by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association as one of the top 50
enterprises in the real estate development industry of Jiangsu Province in
terms of comprehensive strength consecutively for 19 years since 2002 and
ranked first on such list in 2019.

The Group adopts standardised development procedures to accelerate the
turnover rate of properties and promote efficient operations while ensuring
product quality. For customers of different ages, the Group specifically
designed five series of high-quality residential properties, being “Yi series”,
“Shang series”, “Zhi series”, “Zhong series” and “He series” to meet various needs
of the elderly, the younger generation, middle-income households, home
upgraders and upper-middle income households. In the meantime, the Group
introduces more flexibility to its business development by expanding into the
health and wellness industry and commercial real estate under a diversified
development strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Non-executive Directors
HUANG Qingping (Chairman)

XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors
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ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
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Independent non-executive Directors
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHEN Shimin (Chairman)
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HUANG Qingping
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HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
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CHAN Peng Kuan
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MA Baohua
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WONG Yu Kit
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MA Baohua
WONG Yu Kit

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers
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P.O.Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

19-21 Floors

Block A Yincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdongbeilu
Nanjing

People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4502, 45/F

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quiarry Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

p.C.Woo & Co.

12/F, Prince’s Building
No. 10 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) — Hong Kong Branch
29/F, ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China — Nanjing West Branch
289 Jiangdongbeilu

Gulou District

Nanjing

Agricultural Bank of China — Nanjing Jianye Branch
207 Jiangdongzhonglu

Jianye District

Nanjing

Bank of China — Nanjing Hexi Branch
231 Jiangdongzhonglu

Jianye District

Nanjing

China Construction Bank — Nanjing Xuanwu Branch
9 Hongwubeilu

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

Bank of Jiangsu — Head Office, Sales Department
26 Zhonghualu

Qinhuai District

Nanjing

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.yincheng.hk

COMPANY'’S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Tel: (852) 3107 0066
E-mail: ir@yincheng.hk

STOCK CODE
1902.HK
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 5 4ih 22

Revenue in 2021 was approximately RMB8,747.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 18.1% as compared to
approximately RMB10,679.6 million in 2020.
2021 F = ABARES7470BETT - M2020FHHARKE 106796 A& TR 4718.1% o

Gross profit in 2021 was approximately RMB1,506.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 30.1% as compared to
approximately RMB1,157.4 million in 2020. Gross profit margin in 2021 was approximately 17.2%, indicating an increase of
approximately 6.4 percentage points as compared to that in 2020.

20 FEMYBARE5061BETT - W2020FNHARE11574BETEINA30.1% ° 2021 FEM KRN K
17.2% » #2020 S8 104 6.4 B B 7 Fh ©

Profit in 2021 was approximately RMB485.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 25.7% as compared to
approximately RMB386.1 million in 2020. Net profit margin in 2021 was approximately 5.5%, indicating an increase of
approximately 1.9 percentage point as compared to that in 2020.

2021 Fra MK/ ARK 4854 B ETT - B2020F A ARKE 3861 B & TTIE MK 25.7% © 2021 FF M KL /5 5.5% -
#2020 FFAEANAT 1.9 B O & o

Profit attributable to owners of the parent in 2021 was approximately RMB141.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 22.5% as compared to approximately RMB182.6 million in 2020.

202 FREARHEEABIERENOBARE 1416 BT M2020FHNHNARK 1826 AE TR #225% °

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company in 2021 was approximately RMBO0.1 per share.
2020 FARARE BERFAARGEEREMNOB/ARKEI T -

Contracted sales amount in 2021 was approximately RMB25,293.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.0% as
compared to that in 2020; contracted sales GFA in 2021 was approximately 1,136,045 sq.m., representing a decrease of
approximately 1.5% as compared to that in 2020.

2021 FARHESBAABAR 252038 B EIT + B 2020 F B ANKI0.0% : 2021 FAKIHEELEEELA1,136045
FIK  B2020F M EI1.5% ©
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
SEHCEL

CONTRACTED SALES AMOUNT INCREASED CONTINUOUSLY AND ACHIEVED
RECORD HIGH

BHHERENER BANS

AL 1E£9%
ASP B

RMB22,265 per sq. m. 8F 5k AR %22,2655C

A year-on-year increase of 10.6%
At #2%10.6%

Amount 258
6@ RMB25.3 billion A E#253(85%
A year-on-year increase of 9%

STABLE GROWTH TO ENSURE SUSTAINABLE OPERATION
REER REAISELCE

Overall cash collection rate remained high and reached the industry benchmark level

FEGREORBERSN FITERETKY

Distribution of resources in first-tier and

C Positive fund back cycle I second-tier cities
ﬁ)j BAESE A “: RS HE—BR =T
9 months & B 90%
Positive cash flow-back cycle On-time delivery rate
E{@ SETRLRE RS RIS AR
18 months & B 100%
Period of obtaining four certificates for land Customer satisfaction indicators remaining at
© parcels — a high level
gﬁ | SRR 2R N EFRBERERSKE
3.8 months {§ H 88%
Average project launch cycle
i(Q\, BAAR T AL

6.9 months {§ H
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
SRATCH

STABLE FINANCIAL POSITION WITH SIGNIFICANT REBOUND IN PROFIT MARGIN
MBRLABE MNBERHEEHA

Cj Gross profit margin £ ¥ =&

17.2%

]y A year-on-year increase of 6.4 percentage points
Rt EA6.4EE S B

< - Net profit margin & X%

5.5%
A year-on-year increase of 1.9 percentage points
Rt EF1.9EE S8

Continuous optimisation of debt structure and decrease in short-term liquidity
risk

ERERFELC ENRDERERTE

The proportion of short-
term borrowings further
declined to
2 EAERIG L
E—F TRz

35%

Total interest- bearing
debts decreased by
mESRETR

5.1%

Short-term debts
decreased by

RHRE T

14.5%

Financing structure is mainly comprised of bank borrowings, with low overall cost
BMEABURTERDE ARAEE

USD-denominated ZEt(&

debts 13.2%
Others
HAh
20.5%
Bank
|17
66.3%
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
% NE U h\\ﬁ

CONTINUOUS PROMOTION OF DEEP REGIONAL CULTIVATION WITH DIVERSIFIED
LAND ACQUISITION

FEEERERM ZnirnE

1404 parcels newly acquired throughout the year
2 14 EF 1

Increase of 2,970,000 sg.m in total GFA
s msmE 297 875k

Low average land acquisition cost of approximately RM 36,060 per sg. m.
FHgRAE HARKE6,000 5Tk

+1

+1

Nanjing B
JIANGSU +4

PROVINCE

ANHUI ;
PROVINCE W“’:fﬁ
TEAE

Suzhou &M

+1

ZHEJIANG
PROVINCE
WTE ®

Taizhou &M

+1

+2
Wenzhou &M
+1
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
EHTH

ADEQUATE LAND BANK OF HIGH QUALITY
iR EE T

Yincheng International had 59 projects under development in
10 core cities in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis as of 31 December 2021

BZ2021F12 831 BERBEBRER=A10EZ R T FE 59 EMEIER

Huai’an JE%Z(1) Zhenjiang $551(2)
Yunyuetianzhu EAE Tang Dynasty Mansion B & fiF
Yuefu Mansion #F
Xuzhou &M (4) Nanjing FI5(21)
Zhixiang Cheng = Zhongshan Jingdian Park 21| &£
Qingyunfu BT Long Island Qin Park £ S #50 &l
Wei Lai Zhi Chen 5 582 7= Blue Stream Town = 3Z &R
Shang He Ming Yue L5199 A Peaceful Paradise & BER /5
1ang nie Ming Yue Dongyue Mansion BT
Bejoy Villa At RS2
Hefei 2 JE(2 Ninghai Road G63 22 /&% G63
SHE(2) Huijian Weilai & FAR 5
Zhi Lu A& Shantui [LI#
Yuexi Mansion #UZ & Jin Ling Jiu Yuan €& [E

Nan Bu Xin Cheng G63 3 2B#T G63
: Yun Wang Fu EEF
Hangzhou #1/1(7) » Yuelufu ARAT
Huilingweilai & %EA 2

I N )
Yun%Tngigggamz:s%nm—?—mﬁm;i % - | °®- Shangtang Yihef%%ﬁ[ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
Jun Qi
Lanshili 2 = Jun I—?ui BE
Guan Hu Zhi Chen B 2 /= Lan Hu Jun E55EB
Yue HuPZhi C;en 5@1@32& P —e ) - JinLing Xing Tu £ % £ &
eng Bu #1E : Lin Quan Gao Zhi MR = E
Yi He Shan Zhuang B0 LU #E , O i Jiang Chen Fu jT =T
] : °® f/
Suzhou # (6) M> Wi S85(11)
Yuarj(j;riairﬁn!\ga;fgr%ﬁ% | 4 (\ A w\j Tianyuan Mansion KT R
= - = ( Canal Park R4
. : s 4
Shui Pan Hua Tlr;gékgili = Sheltered Mansion BT
LguXS‘L#Yue 2?1 Mf%)?e;  J ; Hui Mountain International Community
in Xi Yuan Zhu 7V20R B &
7 - 1 BB
Dong Wang R 2 —~ i Changjiangfu Mansion KT
P Chun Xiao Guan Tang ZEEER
Wenzhou SE4H(3) 7 AN g Mei Gui Gong Guan B2 A £
i Fei Li He Fang F5EE 12
Jiulongtianzhu AR & CUEIE e el Fu%iﬁiélﬁ
Wen Hua Fu SZEEfF Jing CU‘%‘T%A.ﬁ .
Huan Le Tian Di Br245 H, Yun Jin Dong Fang E &R 7

Taizhou & M (2)

Junlanfu Z#FF
Jinlinfu £ BT

Total GFA of land bank amounted to 7«25 million sg.m., including GFA of land bank with interests attributable to the Group of

4.71 milion SQ.M.
mrmpEEE7258F 5K ErRbtrERATTI BRI X
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present you with the annual results of
our Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, as well as the review and
outlook for the business development of our Group over the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The performance of the real estate industry varied greatly in 2021. Liquidity
easing and the release of pent-up demand after the COVID-19 pandemic in the
first half of the year boosted a new round of sales in the real estate industry,
with the sales area and sales volume of commercial properties nationwide
hitting record highs for successive months, and prices of new homes in 70
large and medium-sized cities in China recording month-on-month increases.
The record high sales and the ample liquidity in the financial market led to
fierce competition in the land market. The heated market environment has led
to the tightening of regulatory policies in the real estate industry, such as the
official implementation of the “three red lines” and the “centralised land supply”
policies, which brought significant changes to the real estate industry. As a
result, the pressure from the repayment of short-term debt on enterprises has
increased, and that further investments and expansions are restrained.

1 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Market activity declined sharply in the second half of 2021, mainly due to
factors such as regulation policies in core cities, tightening of mortgage lines
and liquidity crisis of real estate enterprises, which aggravated buyers’ wait-
and-see attitude. Since the third quarter, the implementation of real estate
regulations in various regions have continued, with second-tier cities such as
Hangzhou, Xiamen, Haikou, Xi'an and Chengdu introducing different
tightening policies. In addition, many real estate enterprises had to adopt price
reduction strategies to guarantee the collection of receivables due to liquidity
crisis. As a result, there was a dramatic downturn in the land market and the
new housing market. From August 2021, property sales in the PRC dropped
and remained at a low level. With increased credit risk for some real estate
enterprises, frequent unsuccessful land bids in local land auctions, and
weakening in receivables collection due to decline in sales, real estate
enterprises generally face a more challenging business environment. However,
there were some signs of easing in financing after the tight capital chain was
eased by reasonable credit support from financial institutions in September
2021. The Central Bank mentioned for the first time at its regular meeting in the
third quarter that: “safeguarding the healthy development of the real estate
market and protecting the legitimate rights and interests of housing
consumers”. The People’s Bank of China and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission jointly held a seminar on real estate finance to guide
major banks to accurately understand and implement the prudent
management system of real estate finance, so as to maintain the stable and
orderly loan granting for real estate and the stable and healthy development of
the real estate market, thereby enabling the gradual recovery of financing
related to the real estate industry.

The overall cash flow risk and credit crisis in the real estate industry in 2021 was
due to the reliance of debt by the industry in the previous years under the
"high debt and high leverage” driven model. In the hope that the real estate
industry will support economic development, the central government adhered
to the guiding principle of “no speculation of residential properties” as well as
stabilising land prices, housing prices and market expectations, rather than
regarding real estate as a means to stimulate the economy for the short term,
so as to ensure the stable and healthy development of the real-estate market.
Therefore, after this round of adjustment, how to ensure long-term stable
development notwithstanding the implementation of deleverage exercises,
reduced debt financing and stabilised sales has become a question faced by
every real estate developer.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Looking back at the Group’s business strategy for 2021, it has started to focus
on the balance between scale and efficiency at the beginning of the year,
emphasising the development concept of “achieving quality and stable scale
growth”. Our Group consistently adhered to the development strategy of
“based in Nanjing, cultivate the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis”, pursued the
product philosophy which places equal emphasis on both quality and service,
and maintained robust development for our business in general. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, our Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB
8,747.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 18.1% as compared
to approximately RMB10,679.6 million for the same period last year, mainly due
to the recognition of sales of projects which have lower ASP; gross profit was
approximately RMB1.51 billion, representing an increase of 30.1% as compared
to RMB1.16 billion in the last year; and our Group's profit for the year amounted
to approximately RMB485.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
25.7% as compared to approximately RMB386.1 million in 2020. Meanwhile,
gross profit margin for the year 2021 was 17.2%, indicating an increase of
approximately 6.4 percentage points as compared to that in 2020 and net
profit margin was 5.5%, indicating an increase of 1.9 percentage point as
compared to that in 2020. In an extremely challenging market and industry
environment, the Group still strived to maintain a stable profit.

Precise deployment in key cities with sales and payment
collection recording a record high

Under the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic and the downturn in the
industry, commencement of construction, investments and sales of the real
estate industry were susceptible to certain constraints. Nevertheless, our Group
responded proactively and in a timely manner by adjusting our project launch
schedule and promoting our business through multiple measures, including
increasing its efforts on online marketing channels and external channels via
the use of channels such as “Yin Yuan Bao”. Through such approaches, our
Group could develop our online customer base and undergo digital
transformation on the other hand. Leveraging on its steady project launch
strategy throughout the year, as well as its good brand image and high market
recognition accumulated over the years, the Group achieved a record high in
total contracted sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December 2021, our
Group recorded a record high in total contracted sales, amounting to
approximately RMB25,293.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 9.0%. Total contracted sales GFA amounted to approximately
1,136,045 sg. m. with a contracted ASP of approximately RMB22,265 per sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 10.6%. The
compounded growth rate from 2018 to 2021 was 38.4%.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The projects that mainly contributed to the contracted sales were located in
core cities such as Nanjing and Hangzhou. In particular, a number of projects in
core cities that were newly launched during the year achieved excellent sales
performance. For example, all 914 residential units in the Nanjing Yunwangfu
project were immediately sold out after its launch in three phrases, with 462
units at the first launch in April, 260 units at the second launch in June and 192
units at the third launch in September, all of which were sold out on the launch
day. The Hangzhou Qingshanhupan project launched 310 additional units in
May, with excellent sales performance, ranking first in the transaction volume
of the Lin‘an market of the year. The Guan Hu Zhi Chen project and Yue Hu Zhi
Chen project have achieved excellent sales performance of “seven launches
and seven sold out” from May to September 2021 upon their first launch in
November 2020, with contracted sales of RMB 4,112 million and sales proceeds
of RMB3.8 billion after 1,439 units were sold out in a sales cycle of less than one
year. By the end of 2021, the residential units of Nanjing Jin Ling Jiu Yuan
project, which was first launched at late December 2020, were sold out during
the three launches, making it the No. 1 residential transaction in Nanjing's
midtown area in 2021 and the No. 1 in Nanjing in terms of area, number of
units and total sales amount of residential units sold with a total price of over
RMB20 million, leading the residential sales market in Nanjing.

At the same time, the Group achieved the fifth consecutive year of growth in
receivables collection last year, while the consolidated recovery rate hit a
record high for the Group, which was also an above par achievement in the
industry.

Precise and efficient investment and prudent expansion
of quality land reserves

In 2021, our Group was committed to our existing strategies of serving the
markets in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. During the year, we further
developed the five regional markets of Nanjing, Southern Jiangsu, Zhejiang,
Huaihai and Anhui. Our Group had acquired a total of 14 land parcels within
the year by continuing to adopt a diversified land acquisition channels, which
contributed to an increase of approximately 2.97 million sg.m. in total GFA. As
at 31 December 2021, the GFA of our Group's total land bank amounted to
approximately 7.25 million sq.m., of which, approximately 4.71 million sg.m.
was attributable to our Group. In particular, the Group adjusted its investment
strategy in a timely manner to return to the very essence of its operation.
Adhering to the principle of long-term investment, the Group has
implemented strict control before, during and after investment, and
maintained control with the operational indicators of new projects from
multiple perspectives, with a positive cash flow-back cycle of 18 months for
new project targets and a positive fund back cycle of 9 months. This not only
brought a guarantee for future development in terms of scale, but also
provided strong support for the Group’s future profits and sustainable
operation in the long run.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Industry-leading development and operation efficiency
due to significant improvement in production and sales

The Group continued the strategy of stable and efficient development to
ensure the sustainable operation of the enterprise. Acquisition of four
certificates required for land parcels takes approximately 3.8 months and our
initial sales period was approximately 6.9 months. Particularly for the first time
in 2021, “50% of the target sales were achieved after half of the sales period”
during the first half of the year, thus more supply and sales were concentrated
in the first half of the year. Based on the contracted amount, the Group’s focus
on key projects have yielded significant results, including projects such as
Qingshanhupan in Lin‘an and Qingyunfu in Xuzhou, which exceeded the
progress of contracting and payment collection in 2021. In addition, a number
of projects were delivered successively during the year, with an overall on-time
delivery rate of 100%, and therefore no delivery was delayed.

In addition to maintaining its industry-leading development and operation
speed, the Group also maintained high standards in product engineering
quality and customer satisfaction indicators. The Group’s overall loyalty rating
for 2021 was 72, a slight increase from 71 in 2020, and the Group is ranked in
the top 20% of the industry.

By the end of 2021, the Group's total resources at the end of the year
amounted to approximately RMB70 billion, of which the aggregate inventory
resources reached approximately RMB25 billion, including those pending the
collection of issued licences and those which are eligible for obtaining licences.
The resources in transit will be released gradually this year, approximately 90%
of which would be distributed in the first-cities and second-tier cities so that
the comparatively high overall safety margin provides reliable sources for
future contracted sales.

The Group achieved an overall annual customer satisfaction of 88%, an annual
delivery satisfaction rate of 87% and an overall housing inspection service
satisfaction rate of 95%, all of which were at the industry benchmark level.

1 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking into the future, the decline in profitability of real estate enterprises is
an industrial trend underway and is a result from factors such as the tightened
macro-control and the lagging effects brought by various policies. Property
market crackdown is never a fundamental objective of macroeconomic
control, however, it serves as a long-term mechanism for stabilising land prices,
housing prices, and market expectations, as the property market remains to be
of great significance to the Chinese economy. In the real estate industry, the
development model where real estate companies previously achieved rapid
expansion through high debt, high leverage, and high turnover is no longer
sustainable. In this context, the real estate industry is transitioning from
incremental development to stock operation.

In active response to challenges, the Group will continue to maintain a safe
threshold for future development, and control business risks. By utilising the
advantages of our own brands, products and services, the Group will actively
secure room for survival and development in the regional market, and move
forward to lean operation and high-quality development. As an important
growth area for China’s economic development, the Yangtze River Delta region
where we are located remains as one of the most dynamic and robust markets
in China, with a population continuing to concentrate in the cities. The scale of
the real estate industry will continue to exist, and the demand which has not
disappeared will be gradually released as the inhibitory factors disappear.

Accumulating more than 20 years of experiences in the real estate market, the
Group has built good development capabilities and brand advantages, and
continued to optimise and improve its products and services to maintain
customer satisfaction at the industry benchmark level. In the future, we will
continue to focus on the market in the Yangtze River Delta region by utilising
the established compound advantages such as real estate, property, and
healthcare. On the basis that the Group has sufficient capital, our Group will
rationally expand the business scale, improve the quality of operations, and
achieve steady and stable growth in profitability, as well as stable and robust
business development. At the same time, the Group and all employees will
work together to implement our culture of "honesty, responsibility,
cooperation and innovation” to improve management efficiency. Bearing both
responsibilities and missions in our mind, we will forge ahead with our original
aspiration.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
HUANG Qingping
Chairman

Nanjing, China
30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR JE i K% o3 A

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the subsidiaries of the Company now comprising the Group
were involved in property development, hotel operation, property investment
and exhibition operation.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages. The Group commenced its property development
operations in Nanjing and successfully expanded its footprint to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group continued to focus on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
while expanding its footprint to other cities in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, including Huai'an. The Group believes that the unique
geographical advantages of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis will remain
substantial in the future. Due to the prosperous economic development and
growing population in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, the residential
properties development market has significant growth potential. The Group
will continue to focus on the Nanjing market in the future and strategically
expand its reach in other cities in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, further
accelerating asset turnover and improving operational efficiency while
maintaining property quality, and strive to become the leading quality property
developer catered to customers of all ages in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis.

Contracted Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, contracted sales amount of the Group
together with its joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately
RMB25,293.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.0% from
approximately RMB23,208.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in the ASP recorded in the
contracted sales of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, ASP recorded in the contracted sales of
the Group together with its joint ventures and associates was approximately
RMB22,265.0 per sq.m., representing an increase of approximately 10.6% from
approximately RMB20,125.0 per sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the higher ASP recognised for projects
in Nanjing and Hangzhou.

1 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contracted sales from Nanjing, Wuxi, Hefei, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Zhenjiang,
Ma'anshan, Xuzhou, Taizhou, Wenzhou and Huai'an contributed to
approximately 31.2%, 7.1%, 2.9%, 3.4%, 33.9%, 2.8%, 0.0%, 4.5%, 7.5%, 6.7% and
0.0% respectively of the total contracted sales of the Group together with its
joint ventures and associates in 2021.

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the contracted sales
of the Group together with its joint venture and associates in 2021 with
comparative figures in 2020.

For the year ended
City 31 December 2021
W HZ2021512A31ALEE

Contracted  Contracted  Contracted
GFA sold sales ASP % of
BHHE &4  contracted

BEEE BHHE THEE salesin
sq.m. RMB’000  RMB/sq.m. 2021
520215

AR%T,/ BHHE

IRk AR®TR K Aok

o PR ) i % o3 A

MR2021 4 - R - &85 - A8 - &M - U -
T - BEW - mMN - Al RN RERHE
HHED G EEEREAEPERBEAR
AlAE R EBERKZI2%  71% 29% -
3.4% ~ 33.9% ~ 2.8% * 0.0% * 4.5% * 7.5% * 6.7%
T2.0.0% °

TR AEEBREALELERBZE AR
2021 FR A HHE 2 IRRBA - 3[R 2020 FHY
LB -

For the year ended
31 December 2020
HZ200F12A3181LEE
Contracted Contracted Contracted

GFAsold sales ASP 9% of
BHHE A contracted
HEERE BNHE THEE salesin
SQ.M. RMB'000 RMB/sq.m. 2020

1520205
ARET/ AHHE
Ih%k  ARETR Fhxk Epd

Nanjing MR 340,946 7,913,580 23,211 31.2% 392,735 9,107,960 23191 39.2%
Wuxi & 79,214 1,789,290 22,588 7.1% 83,889 1205710 14,373 5.2%
Hefei Al 36,457 722,100 19,807 2.9% 57,704 1,123450 19469 48%
Suzhou #M 59,636 853,060 14,304 3.4% 47,167 1,169,630 24798 50%
Hangzhou il 321,850 8,589,490 26,688 33.9% 196,838 4678240 23,767 202%
Zhenjiang BT 47,404 697,060 14,705 2.8% 59,890 873340 14582 38%
Ma'anshan 81 - - - 0.0% 32035 201,360 6,114 0.9%
Xuzhou #®M 85,673 1,133,900 13,235 4.5% 132,287 1,574,580 11,903 6.8%
Taizhou = 93,912 1,885,570 20,078 7.5% 44729 830,680 18,571 36%
Wenzhou BN 70,024 1,698,640 24,258 6.7% 105,063 2443378 23,256 10.5%
Huai'an ER 929 11,130 11,981 0.0% - - - 00%
Total w@st 1,136,045 25,293,820 22,265 100.0% 1,153,237 23208328 20,125 100.0%

SRR B IR A IR A A 19
TR -FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GFA Delivered and Revenue Recognised from Sale of
Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total GFA delivered amounted to
approximately 753,190 sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 28.4%
from approximately 586,525 sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue recognised from sale of properties decreased by approximately 19.1%
from approximately RMB10,589.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB8,563.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
accounting for approximately 97.9% of the Group'’s total revenue. Such
decrease was primarily due to the low recognised ASP of the First phase of
Airport Exhibition Town, Changjiangfu Mansion, Hui Mountain International
Community and Yuefu Mansion which generated revenue of approximately
RMB2,857.6 million, RMB1,116.7 million, RMB1,035.7 million and RMB887.8
million, respectively, during 2021.

ASP recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB11,370 per sq.m., representing a decrease of approximately 37.0% from
approximately RMB18,055 per sg.m. in 2020. Such decrease was primarily due
to the low recognised ASP of the First phase of Airport Exhibition Town,
Changjiangfu Mansion and Hui Mountain International Community.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the properties delivered by the
Group mainly included the First phase of Airport Exhibition Town, Changjiangfu
Mansion and Hui Mountain International Community. The following table sets
forth the details of the revenue recognised from the sale of properties of the
Group by geographical location in 2021 with comparative figures in 2020.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

20

EXNEEARRAYEHERI
g

HE2021F1N2ANBILFEE B fEEL
M E# A753,190F A K - BEE 2020512 A
31 B 15 E 49 586,525 F 77 K I8 h1 49 28.4% o

MYEHERR ZWEREZE2020F 12 A 31
BIEFEHARE 105806 B8 T 4319.1%
EEE20F1N2ABLEFEHARES5638
BB (AASERKEIE97.9% 728D
FERRTEBER/DE—B BTH - HLEH
Bk @ R B R T EERIE - 142021
FEERADBOBARE 28576 BET - A
RE11167B8 8T AR®1035788TTRA
REEQR78BHBIL ©

HE2FNANBLEFENEERATEHE
BHAEEFHARARE113707T © 82020F M
WEFFHKARE 18055 TR L #I37.0% ° 5%
BALEERREBeR/NME—H  RIEEE
Ly B B AL [ TR R T S (B EE TR -

HE2021FNANBHLEFE  AEEER
VMEFEREESeR/NMNME—H - RIIBKEE
B[ o TREFIMN 2021 FAE H iz
UEESHREYEHEECERKGE ZFIE -
BRI 20200 F ML EBBTE ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B2 i B o

For the year ended 31 December

BZ128310LEE

2020
20204
GFA Recognised
Revenue delivered ASP

BXN  BEZ
k% pEmE  THEE

RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sq.m.
o ‘ N
AREFT FAK TRk

Nanjing [E
Peaceful Paradise AERA 22,243 667 33,348 25,064 859 29,178
Blue Stream Town EZE - - - 26018 1,069 24339
Dongyue Mansion RERN 6,061 1,976 3,067 509,792 13,232 38527
Ideal Palace =AY 26,938 1,695 15,893 7314 610 11,990
Honor Mansion EaXE 91,686 3,717 24,667 2373919 94810 25,039
Kinma Q+ Community Kinma Q+ L& 12,435 586 21,220 33,721 1911 17,645
Long Island Qin Park REBRLR 26,513 1,245 21,296 - - -
Xidi International Community rpeifs 1,694 242 7,000 1,132 101 11,208
Bejoy Villa HARRE 470,153 18,612 25,261 1731287 57,858 29923
First phase of Airport Exhibition Town 228 & &/ NE—H 2,857,601 264,616 10,799 697317 61,713 11,299
Jiang Shan Yu Mansion ST - - - 415,137 22,685 18,300
3,515,324 293,356 11,983 5,820,701 254,848 22,840

Wuxi i3
Tianyuan Mansion ATHR - - - 97 36 5139
Canal Park RRA 10,838 979 11,070 985 192 5,130
Hui Mountain International Community 2L BIE2 4t B 1,035,657 98,708 10,492 952,341 86,851 10,965
Sheltered Mansion R 70,272 13,687 5,134 681,443 61823 11,022
Qiuduhui Mansion ShERE 203,414 16,099 12,635 - - -
Changjiangfu Mansion IR 1,116,710 115,501 9,668 - - -
2,436,891 244,974 9,948 1,634,866 148902 10,979

Suzhou BN
Yuan Stream Mansion RZ 290,111 11,546 25,127 377,970 12,620 29950
Shui Pan Hua Ting KBEEERE 528,022 52,702 10,019 - - -
818,133 64,248 12,734 377,970 12,620 29,950

Hangzhou HM
Yungutianjing Mansion EARE 23,402 878 26,654 1188418 48,296 24,607
Qingshanhupan il 206,704 14,384 14,370 621425 37,303 16,659
230,106 15,262 15,077 1,809,843 85,599 21,143

Zhenjiang BT
Yuefu Mansion i 887,829 62,242 14,264 342,459 21,889 15,645
Tang Dynasty Mansion BERN 165,717 12,911 12,835 194,022 15,195 12,769
1,053,546 75,153 14,019 536,481 37,084 14,467

Xuzhou =M
Zhixiang Cheng WER 509,830 60,197 8,469 409,758 47472 8632
509,830 60,197 8,469 409,758 47472 8,632
Total @t 8,563,830 753,190 11,370 10589619 586,525 18,055
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Properties under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value. Upon completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had properties under development of
approximately RMB19,575.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
3.7% from approximately RMB20,327.5 million as at 31 December 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to the completion of the development of First
phase of Airport Exhibition Town, Hui Mountain International Community and
Changjiangfu Mansion, which projects have been reclassified as completed
properties held for sale thereafter.

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent the completed development properties
ready for sale and were unsold at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had completed properties held for sale of
approximately RMB2,633.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
7.6% from approximately RMB2,851.2 million as at 31 December 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to the sales of completed properties of First phase
of Airport Exhibition Town, Changjiangfu Mansion and Hui Mountain
International Community.

Project Management for Property Developments

The Group provides various project management services to property projects
developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group, including but not
limited to engineering, procurement, design, cost control and customer
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated from the Group's
project management services was approximately RMB95.2 million, representing
an increase of approximately 212.1% from approximately RMB30.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily due to the a rise
in the number of property projects developed by joint ventures and associates
of the Group.

HOTEL OPERATION

The Group operates and manages the Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan
Wonderland Hotel, which is the first ecotypic and commercial resort hotel
constructed pursuant to the standard of five-star hotel in the Lin'an District.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income generated from the operation
of the hotel was approximately RMB27.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 30.8% from approximately RMB40.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The decrease was attributable to the negative impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental Income

The Group's rental income for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB51.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
215.9% compared to the rental income of approximately RMB16.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The sharp increase was mainly due to the
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growth in revenue generated from the leasing of investment properties of

Peaceful Paradise and Keya Mansion.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had five investment properties with a total
GFA of approximately 337,644 sq.m.. The Group had commenced the leasing
of five investment properties with a total GFA of approximately 167,371 sg.m..

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2021

REWE

ES

» 4A

JooN

167371 F 5K

A RAENRENEHESSRALEER -

R2021F 12 A3 H AEBEEREREY
BEEENA337644F K o NEE

ERALERIRRENE  BRZERBHS

R2021F12A31H  REBMKEMEBR

are as follows: T
GFA Attributable
Project BEEE interest to
No. company name Project name Location Land use term Usage sqm. the Group
B ERLARER HEEH it TiEREEH B# FHk rEBELER
1. Nanjing Eastern Senior Living  Elderly apartments of No. 3 Maqun Avenue, Qixia District, Nanjing 50 years, expiring on Commercial 68,687.0 100%
Health Industry Co, Ltd. Peaceful Paradise City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 27 August 2065
HRRPEFREES AERARZER PRIHEERTEEREHAET  S0F  2065F [GES
ERARAA 8A27BEIH
2. Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate Gymnastic centre of Xidi No. 126-1 Hengshan Road, Jianye District, 50 years, expiring on Commercial 42441 100%
Co, Ltd. International Community  Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 10 July 2053
HRESEERE ERAREY REIHEERTEERELR S0 + 20535 EE3
BRAR Fil 126157 7R10A 55
3. Hangzhou Yinhong Industrial  Self-owned residential 100 metres to the west of the intersection 70 years, expiring on Residential 18847.2 100%
Co, Ltd. building of Hangzhou of Zhuangdun Road and Rujia Street, 16 July 2088
Yungu Tianjing Mansion Xihu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
MMBLEEER MMNERKRE FENTIE MM EARTEREER 704 - 208845 TE
BERH BHEE HRXAF100% 7R 16 A %5
4. Nanjing Yincheng Medical Land parcel situated at the ~ Nanbu Xincheng Jiankang Industrial Park, 50 years, expiring on Medical 1540717 100%
Management Co, Ltd. Nanbu Xincheng Jiankang  Honghua Street, Qinhuai District, 18 November 2069 management
Industrial Park Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HRRAEEER HRFAREERE FEIIHEBRTRERALCEERE 0% - 20095 BRER
BRAF R THRREEE 1 A18AFH
5 Nanjing Eastern Senior Living  Nanjing Eastern Senior No. 3 Maqun Avenue, Qixia District, 50 years, expiring on Medical and 50,6384 100%
Health Industry Co, Ltd. Living Land Parcel C Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 27 August 2065 health
ARRIBFREER HRRAEECHR PRIHAERTRERSHAER  0F 20655 BELRE
BRAERRA 8A 27 BEIH
6. Hefei Yinfeng Real Estate Co,  Self-owned residential South of Tianda Road, east of Tianzhi Road, 70 years, expiring on Residential 16,2006 60%
Ltd. building of Hefei Gaoxin Gaoxin District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, 23 June 2090
Zhilu the PRC
BEREEERE RS AEER PRTHEAETERRRERUE - 70F - 200F TE
BRAR BREE REBIR 6R23BEE
7. Nanjing Yinxing New Material 2%, 3* Building, Keya Room 1001, Block 3, No. 59 Tianyuan West 50 years, expiring on Office 249549 100%
Technology Co, Ltd. Mansion Road, Moling Street, Jiangning District, 15 September 2053
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HRRERRRR BEAEY 38 RETEE R L ERRES 509+ 20535 WAE
BRAA BRTAEEK 5931001 E 9A15A5H
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EXHIBITION OPERATION

The Group provides exhibition management services, including but not limited
to the leasing of venue, and the provision of administration and marketing
services for exhibitions of various nature.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income generated from such exhibition
operation was approximately RMB8.2 million, representing an increase of
182.8% from approximately RMB2.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was attributable to the full launch of the Group's exhibition
operation over the year ended 31 December 2021, whereas such exhibition
operation only commenced in the fourth quarter in the year ended 31
December 2020.

LAND BANK

In 2021, the Group continued its expansion in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis and acquired 14 land parcels. The total contracted land price of
such newly acquired land parcels was approximately RMB17,998 million. The
average cost of the land parcels acquired in 2021 was approximately RMB6,060
per sg.m.. The table below sets forth the particulars of the newly acquired land
parcels by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EREK

AEBREEREERS  BRETRNEE
S RARE SR E ROITER NIRRT o

HE22Q1FNANBLEFE  SREBEL
WA BARES2E BT BE E 20204F
NANBLEFEHARK,208 &L
182.8% ° EANTIR AR R BEREE 2021 F12 A
JNEEFEXAKLERER  mMEENEZE
2000F 12 A3TAEFEMFENEZTERBLE S
EHeRER -

T bl

R2021F - REBRE=ARFERRE I
E14EM R o B A A (EE R
HEARE17908BEIT - 12021 FETIRER
IR F KA BT FHKARE60607T °
TRV AEEHEZ2021F12A31BIEFE
FUL BB IR 2 FFIE o

Average
land cost
(Based
on the
Land parcel/ Estimated Land estimated
No. City Project name Land use Site area total GFA premium GFA)
Tt
RA(RE
fist i HE:E
b W Wi/ BEEER TR it EE BEER HEE % E)
sqm. sq.m. RMB million RMB/sq.m.
ARE  ARER/
FHA FAk BET Fhx
I Property projects developed by subsidiaries of the Group
EEMBAAMARNYEER
1 Nanjing Lan Hu Jun Residential 21,636 46,261 335 7242
Ep R Fx
2 Nanjing Lin Quan Gao Zhi Residential 42677 82216 530 6,446
AR B frE
3 Wuxi Guan Tang Shou Fu Residential 19,080 62,142 270 4345
g7 BRER =z
4 Hangzhou YiHe 47 Mu Residential 31276 60,326 633 10493
M FEM 478 Fx
Sub-total /it 114,669 250,945 1,768 7,045
24 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021
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Average
land cost
(Based
on the
Land parcel/ Estimated Land estimated
No. City Project name Land use Site area total GFA premium GFA)
Tt
RA(RE
fhst i EHES
b i Wi/ BAER TiAR fhEE BEER tEe R
S.M. sq.m. RMB million RMB/sa.m.
AR®  ARBT/
FhHA FRA BET Fhx
Il Property projects developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group
FEEHENARAECEMARNYEER
1 Nanjing JinLing Xing Tu Residential/commercial/ 221,841 857,590 4,200 4,897
hotel/office/
recreational and sports
B SIEEH tE/m%/
BE/HAZE/ 8
2 Nanjing Jiang Chen Fu Residential 10,742 40,672 1,080 26,554
MR IR €
3 Wuxi Yun Jin Dong Fang Residential 53,937 160,097 1,029 6,427
EH EHRA F=E
4 Wuxi Jing Cui Residential 27343 70903 989 13,949
s BE F=E
5 Suzhou Dong Wang Residential/elderly 138,650 408,625 3891 9522
apartments/hospital
&M RE2 e/ wth/ gk
6 Hangzhou Peng Bu Commercial 24,072 113,587 768 6,761
M 2 Bx
7 Xuzhou Shang He Ming Yue Residential 57,258 151,897 1,061 6,985
"M LMBA F=E
8 Taizhou Jinlinfu Residential 75476 217,050 1420 6,542
aM TR €
9 Wenzhou Huan Le Tian Di Residential/ commercial 145,658 567,748 1,161 2,045
M HESN: it/ m%
10 Huai'an Yunyuetianzhu Residential 45,369 131,076 631 4814
ER EWRE F=E
Sub-total /it 800,346 2,719,245 16230 5969
Total w@st 915,015 2,970,190 17,998 6,060
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PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP AND
ITS JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 59 projects located in 10 cities in the
PRC, of which 34 projects are developed and owned by the Group and the
remaining 25 projects are developed and owned by the Group's joint ventures
and associates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a land bank with an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 7,249,551 sg.m., out of which the
land bank with interests attributable to the Group amounted to approximately
4,710,737 sq.m.. The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the
Group's property portfolio as at 31 December 2021 in terms of geographical
location:

SES I VBT ESSE 1
N ETEE

R2021F 124318 REEHEBLRFE10
W mEsoMEIEE » AR 4EEERAEE
FrA%RES $HT2EBERAEENES
ELENBERNRIRELES - 12021F 12
A3A AEBEHEGBTLEERRY
7,249,551 F KRB b i - ErR RS E (G
RN T EEEEL 4710737 F K - TX
I AEBNYWELASR2021F 128318
IR B 8|5 MELAE R4

Completed
GFA available
for sale/ Planned GFA
Number leasable GFA under of future % of land
City of projects GFA"  development  development Total GFA? reserve
BRIN
AfHE/ AREE
G Ll i h1ibfhts
il BA%A BEEEY BEEE BEEE  AREEEY WE
(sqm) (sqm) (sgm) (sqm)
(FAK) (FH%) (FAK) (FAK)
Property projectsdevelopedby ~ AEEHBEATHE
subsidiaries of the Group b EEE!
Nanjing B 13 102516 565,244 104,742 772502 10.7%
Wi &5 9 4449 302516 107,760 47477 65%
Hefel A 1 - 101,7% - 101,7% 14%
Suzhou &M 3 9,895 181,282 - 191,177 26%
Hangzhou Bl 3 52919 933826 127,741 1114486 154%
Zhenjiang B 2 457 267,797 - 268254 37%
Xuzhou M 2 2012 166,398 - 168410 23%
WWenzhou et 1 - 51,955 - 51,955 07%
Sub-total Nt 34 212,295 2,590,814 340,243 3,143,352 43.3%

2 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Completed
GFA available
for sale/ Planned GFA
Number leasable GFA under of future % of land
City of projects GFA"  development  development Total GFA? reserve
BRI
AftHE/ ARER
mHA R fE | 1 ibfhE
m L] BEAEY BEER BEME  HREEEY WEM
(sam) (sam) (sqm) (sam)
(FAR) (FHR) (FAR) (FHx)
Property projectsdevelopedby ~ AEEKEZAFRAY
associates and joint ventures PERRNNLER
of the Group
Nanjing AR 8 2631 933781 725,600 1682012 2.2%
Wuxi g5 ) - 231,000 - 231,000 3.2%
Hefel Al 1 740 - - 740 00%
Suzhou B 3 644 262,49 24920 512,115 7.1%
Hangzhou M 4 2516 325320 - 30783% 45%
Xuzhou Gl 2 - 265,201 - 265,201 37%
Taizhou AN ) - 303691 - 303601 45%
Wenzhou el ) - 632,528 - 632528 87%
Huai'an k7 1 - 131,076 - 131076 18%
Sub-total Nt 25 26,531 3,104,846 974,822 4,106,199 56.7%
Sub-total attributable to the Group A &EEE(: /st NATER 8,432 1,181,485 377,468 1,567,385 NATER
Total land bank Bt 59 238,826 5,695,660 1,315,065 7,249,551 100.0%
Total land bank attributable TEEEGALHRHE
to the Group NATER 220,727 3,772,299 717,111 4,710,737 NATER
Notes: Mt -
m Includes saleable GFA remaining unsold and leasable GFA. (1) BIERE LA EEREmE KA B RS -

2) Total land reserves equals to the sum of (i) the total GFA available for sale and total
leasable GFA for completed properties; (i) total GFA for properties under development;
and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development. For properties held by the
Group's joint ventures and associates, total GFA attributable to the Group are calculated

based on the Group's equity interest in the respective projects.

@

BT MEESR T SERNGN : BRI
RSB RERBE R A EEARERE ()
FRPMENERERRE  RG)BIERKRER
MENBEEEE - RAEESELERBER
RIBANYENS  AEERGEREREGR
BAEERSIEBOREETAHE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B2 i B o

FINANCIAL REVIEW B % B B8
Revenue W #=

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately RMB1,932.6 million or  AEBEMKZEEEE Z2020F 12431 BIEFE
approximately 18.1% from approximately RMB10,679.6 million for the year  HIZIARB10679.6 BB THED LI AR 19326
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB8,747.0 million for the year BB T 41181% 2&EZE 2021 F 12 A31 B ILF
ended 31 December 2021 as a result of the decrease in revenue derived from — EM# AR 87470 B ETT © JyRARYIEHE
sale of properties. Details of the decrease in revenue derived from sale of  FR{S ULz o M E BRI LD TIEE
properties are set out under the paragraph headed “Property Development —  JAARFRE [EMERZ — B XN EZEEBE NG
GFA Delivered and Revenue Recognised from Sale of Properties” in this report. YIEHERZWZE]| —B -

The table below sets forth the Group's revenue for each of the components  T&REF|AER Fill 4B E D R ETREIFE A
described above and the percentage of total revenue represented for the  WESLA MR PTG A O L -
periods indicated.

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 5

Year-

Percentage Percentage over-Year

of total of total changein

Revenue revenue Revenue revenue revenue

EE g G Wz Fl L

W 2 Aot & Aokt i)

RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %

AR%ETR o ARETT % %

Sale of properties VI HE 8,563,830 97.91 10,589,619 99.2 (19.13)
Project management HEEBUWA

income 95,226 1.09 30,489 0.28 21233

Hotel operation B 8 27,859 0.32 40,290 037 (30.85)

Rental income WA 51,810 0.59 16,360 0.14 216.69

Exhibition operation =RER 8,234 0.09 2,876 0.01 186.30

Total st 8,746,959 100.00 10,679,634 100.00 (18.10)

SRR B IR A IR A A 39
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR JE i K% o3 A

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly comprised cost of property sales which was
directly associated with the revenue from the sale of properties, which
represented direct construction costs, land acquisition costs and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowings for the purpose of property
development during the period of construction.

The Group's cost of sales decreased by approximately RMB2,281.4 million or
approximately 24.0% from approximately RMB9,522.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB7,240.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which corresponded with the lower revenue
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to that from
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately RMB348.7 million or
approximately 30.1% from approximately RMB1,157.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1,506.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group's gross profit margin increased from
approximately 10.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
17.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily due to the
recognition of higher gross profit from the Zhixiang Cheng, Hui Mountain
International Community, Changjiangfu Mansion and Qingshanhupan projects
in 2021.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
dividend income from FVOCI and FVTPL, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
forfeiture of deposits, government grants, fair value gains from financial assets
at FVTPL and others.

The Group's other income and gains increased by approximately RMB27.7
million or approximately 42.7% from approximately RMB64.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB92.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the recognition of interest
income, dividend income from FVOCI and FVTPL and gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of approximately RMB42.9 million, RMB32.3 million and RMB13.3
million, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly represented staff cost,
advertising and business development expenses, office expenses and others.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB19.2 million or approximately 7.4% from approximately RMB258.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB277.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to a rise in the
number of property projects available for sale in 2021, and accordingly, the
increase in advertising and business development expenses incurred therefor.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprised staff costs, travel and
entertainment expenses, professional fees, office expenses, other taxes and
surcharges, depreciation and amortisation and others.

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB19.0
million or approximately 8.4% from approximately RMB226.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB245.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Although labour costs decreased in 2021, the
Group's administrative expenses increased due to the rise of other taxes, office
expenses and entertainment expenses in 2021.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses mainly comprised one-off expenses including
financial guarantee, contract expenses, compensation to customers, charitable
donation expenses, foreign exchange losses and others.

The Group's other expenses increased by approximately RMB121.6 million or
approximately 605.0% from approximately RMB20.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB141.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly due to the recognition of loss in financial
assets at fair value and provision for impairment of fixed assets of
approximately RMB38.7 million and RMB54.7 million, respectively.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group’s fair value gains on investment properties decreased by
approximately RMB128.9 million or approximately 102.5% from approximately
gains of RMB125.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately loss of RMB3.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which was mainly generated from the impairment of Peaceful Paradise, Xidi
International Community and Keya Building.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR JE i K% o3 A

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest on interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and senior notes, interest expense arising from revenue contracts
and interest on lease liabilities.

The Group's finance costs increased by approximately RMB50.7 million or
approximately 25.1% from approximately RMB202.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB253.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was primarily due to the increase in interest expenses
and the decrease in rate of interest capitalised.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures and
Associates

The Group's share of loss on joint ventures increased by approximately
RMB19.9 million or approximately 201.0% from a loss of approximately RMB9.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to a loss of approximately
RMB29.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due
to the fact that new property projects as developed by joint ventures are yet to
be delivered.

The Group's share of profit on associates decreased by approximately RMB11.5
million or approximately 26.1% from a profit of approximately RMB44.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to a profit of approximately RMB32.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to
the fact that property projects as developed by associates are yet to be
delivered.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense represents PRC CIT and LAT payable by the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by approximately RMB93.5 million
or approximately 32.4% from approximately RMB288.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB194.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to the return of LAT
and low ASP of the Group's projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit for the Year

The Group's profit for the year increased by approximately RMB99.3 million or
approximately 25.7% from approximately RMB386.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB485.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Group's net profit margin increased from approximately
3.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 5.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the increase in gross profit
margin and the decrease in rate of income tax payable for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB141.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 22.5% as compared to approximately RMB182.6 million for the
year 2020. Such increase was mainly due to the decrease in revenue generated
and the Group's low share of profit derived from such property projects
delivered.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Property development is capital-intensive and the Group expects to continue
to incur a high level of capital expenditures for project development in the
foreseeable future. The Group funds its business operations both through cash
flows generated from its business operations and through external financing,
primarily including bank and other borrowings.

The Group's primary uses of cash are for the payment of acquisition of land use
rights, construction costs, staff costs and various operating expenses.

Cash Positions

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB1,427.6 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,518.3 million), pledged deposits of approximately RMB118.4 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB2,194.1 million) and restricted cash of
approximately RMB1,185.9 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB708.5 million).

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total borrowings (including interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings) of approximately RMB11,825.4
million, compared to approximately RMB12,148.2 million as at 31 December
2020. The Group's borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB, US$ and HKS.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B L s B

The following table sets forth the Group'’s total borrowings as at the dates

TREIINARARAEE B RAEEE

indicated.
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR¥FT) (AREFIIT)
Current: ENHER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BHIEA 65,583 -
Other loans — secured Hib B — BiKE 1,259,204 576,000
Other loans — unsecured Hih B — S H 17,000 326,245
Current portion of long term bank RERITE R ENER
loans — secured BHo — /K 1,593,607 2,321,141
Current portion of long term other REAE b &Sk A BN EA
loans — secured o — HEE - 99,700
Total current borrowings BIHAfE R 4858 2,935,394 3,323,086
Non-current: JEENER :
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BHEIF 7,373,979 7,401,345
Other loans — secured HEtER — HEA 1,160,020 1,381,497
Other loans — unsecured Hib B3 — A 356,000 42252
Sub-total /NEt 8,889,999 8,825,094
Total #et 11,825,393 12,148,180

The following table sets forth the repayment schedule of the Group's

borrowings as at the dates indicated.

TREHR AR B HI K B S 5 IE 5K ]
% o]

As at 31 December

R12A318
2021 2020
20215 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR®TT) (AR®EFT)
Repayable within one year AR—FRNEER 2,935,394 3,323,086
Repayable in the second year ANE_FEE 4,319,899 2,455,705
Repayable within two to five years BARMERFENER 2,882,329 5,886,433
Repayable after five years ARTFEER 1,687,771 482,956
Sub-total N 8,889,999 8,825,094
Total st 11,825,393 12,148,180
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the range of interest rates for the Group's

borrowings as at the dates indicated.

o PR o K o3 A

TREFINAR B BIAREE R R E -

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRI BB F &
(%) (%)
Current: BRER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — B 8.3 N/A N E
Other loans — secured HEMmER — BT 8.0-18.0 13.0
Other loans — unsecured HEMBER — mE 13.0 12,5
Current portion of long term bank REAIRITE KA BN ER
loans — secured By — BHEF 4.4-6.7 45-69
Current portion of long term other RAFHE b B 5k A B ER
loans — secured #By — BHEA N/A RiE A 13.0
Non-current: FEENHER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BIEAF 4.4-6.9 45-67
Other loans — secured HithE — BEHF 11.5-14.0 7.0-13.0
Other loans — unsecured HA B — K H 12.0-13.0 7.0-75

The Group's certain secured borrowings were secured by the pledges of the
asset portfolio which includes investment properties, prepaid land lease
payments, properties under development and completed properties held for

sale.

AREWETERRERREREEHAAER
o ERKREME BN BEENRK - #FE
HEZFRERMERDRTYE -

RABREBARAT
—g=—grg 4D



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B L s B

Notes Issue, Repurchase and Cancellation

In order to refinance certain existing indebtedness of the Company and for
general corporate purposes, the following senior notes have been issued
during the year ended 31 December 2021:

0]

(i)

As at 31 December 202

on 17 March 2021, the Company issued US$165,000,000 11.8% senior
notes due 2022, which were listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 March
2021 (the "Existing Notes due 2022"). For further details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 12 March 2021 and 17
March 2021; and

on 21 September 2021, the Company issued US$110,000,000 12.5%
senior notes due 2022, which were listed on the Stock Exchange on 23
September 2021. For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 17 September 2021 and 21 September 2021.

1, the net proceeds from the above notes issue have

been fully utilised for the said purposes.

During the period from October to November 2021, the Company repurchased
in the open market of, and cancelled all of the US$200,000,000 12.0% senior
notes due 2021 issued by the Company on 4 November 2020 (the "Existing
Notes due 2021") in the following manner:

)

(iff)

(iv)

on 13 October 2021, the Company partially repurchased an aggregate
principal amount of US$65,000,000 of the Existing Notes due 2021;

18 October 2021, the Company partially repurchased an aggregate
principal amount of US$9,000,000 of the Existing Notes due 2021;

on 27 October 2021, the Company partially repurchased an aggregate
principal amount of US$38,400,000 of the Existing Notes due 2021;

on 3 November 2021, the Company repurchased all of the outstanding
principal amount of US$87,600,000 of the Existing Notes due 2021.

The aggregate price paid by the Company for the above repurchases of senior
notes amounted to approximately US$196,487,000.

For further details of the said repurchases, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 14 October 2021, 19 October 2021, 28 October 2021
and 3 November 2021.

46

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

RERIT BEKEH
RUADAETRAEBBEBRENRE—KA

A% CREE2021F12A31BIEFER

BITUTEBAERE

()  M2021FE3/177H KA A B 1T
165,000,000 3 JTHY 11.8% 52 2022 FF EI| Hi K
BEEE ZELEEER2021F3H18

Eﬁﬂiiiﬁﬁim(fiﬁﬁzozzfﬁﬁ%ﬁ“
Bl -BEE—THE BREAR
HH &2021F3812H &2021¢3H17

EE’] ‘\/:l:o
()  F2021F9A218H - 7T'< Al 17
110,000,000 ZE JT A 12.5% 2022¢¢IJHHE’J

BREEE  HR2021F0A23BEM

- BRAE—FPFIE FL2EARQ

A HE A&2021F9H17H %2021 F9 A
21 BMRE -

MR2021F 128318 kit
FREOEHAE LGRS

RRBITMSHIA

R2021F10AE 1 AEIM - ARGHENTH
AR 5T 45 8 B 30 5F 58 2N A B) 7R 2020 4 11
A 4 8 BT % 17 200,000,000 35 JT #912.0% 72 2021
FRHNEHELRE (2021 FEHREE
Bl

&
%

() H2021F 108138 KR &I
20214 R B IR B E B 1 K <
65,000,000 & TT :

/NN
(@ ;E.m

() 2021108188 AR A & 5 B E
20214 I HAIR B EIR A AR £ 48559,000,000
ETT

Giy  M2021F108278 KA T E D EE
202¢¢IJHHEE%‘ B QO N T
38,400,000 T :

(v) FA2021%F11A38 -
20214 2| Bf 38 B FE &
87,600,000 &L, °

RN ) B AT At B8 B8 S E
196,487,000 £ T °

S BXNBENR

R LMEREENE —PHFE  F2HEAR
AIBEIA2021F 108148 ~ 2021108198 »
2021510 A28 B 22021 511 A3AMAE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to market risks from changes in market rates and prices,
such as interest rates, credit, liquidity and foreign exchange risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk.
The Group manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings. For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings” in this section for the range of interest rates for the Group's
borrowing as at the dates indicated therein.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of a
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The Group has no
concentrations of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. The
Group did not record any significant bad debt losses during the year ended 31
December 2021. The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, pledged deposits, financial
assets at FVTPL and financial assets included in prepayment, deposits and other
receivables.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates its business in the PRC. Other than the foreign
currency denominated bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and senior notes, the Group did not have any other material direct
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for the year ended 31 December
2021 and did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes. The
Directors expect that any such fluctuations in exchange rate would not have
material adverse effect on the operation of the Group.

The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate risk regularly and make
foreign exchange hedging arrangement when necessary. The Group considers
that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement is needed currently.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR JE i K% o3 A

Key Financial Ratios

The Group's current ratio remained relatively stable at approximately 1.2 and
approximately 1.2 as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 respectively.
The Group's net gearing ratio ™ increased from approximately 151.0% as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 174.4% as at 31 December 2021, primarily
due to the decrease in cash reserves and the increase in interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021.

Note:

Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the net of interest-bearing bank borrowings
(excluding annexation loans) minus cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and pledged
deposits by the total equity.

Contingent Liabilities
Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the mortgage
loans they provided to the Group's customers in order to secure the repayment
obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are issued from the
date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i)
the transfer of the relevant real estate ownership certificates to the customers,
or (i) the settlement of mortgage loans by the customers. If a customer
defaults on the mortgage loan, the Group is typically required to repurchase
the underlying property by paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the
mortgagee banks will auction the underlying property and recover the balance
from the Group if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure
sale proceeds.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of its completed properties held for sale.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default on
mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks. Under the above
arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks as collaterals
for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by these
customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise the
pledged properties through open auction. The Group’s guarantee period starts
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the
issuance and registration of property ownership certificates to the purchasers,
which will generally be available within one to two years after the customers
take possession of the relevant properties.

As at 31 December 2021, such guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks to the customers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale amounted to approximately RMB7,472.6 million, compared with
approximately RMB5,130.6 million as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2021 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The
Board considered that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
customers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate, had a
material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition and results of
operations.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. The Group believes that no liabilities
resulting from these proceedings will have a material and adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or operating results.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s commitment for property development
and capital commitments which it had contracted but yet provided for was
approximately RMB9,639.4 million, compared to approximately RMB12,843.1
million as at 31 December 2020.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance leases or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 946 employees. The Group
offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. It contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property development
business and acquiring high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis in the PRC. No concrete future plan for material investments or
capital assets is in place as at the date of this report.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 4 February 2021, Nanjing Yincheng and Jiangsu Winfast Investment
Holding Group Co,, Ltd. ("Jiangsu Winfast’) entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Jiangsu Winfast agreed to sell, and Nanjing
Yincheng agreed to acquire, 25% equity interest in Nanjing Eastern Senior
Living Health Industry Co, Ltd* (AR R T EEFRREXZZREBR 2 A),
which principally engages in the development of properties for the elderly and
investment and management of hospitals, at the consideration of
RMB335,347,000. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 February 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not perform any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associates.

Subsequent Events

In order to improve its financial condition, extend its debt maturity profile,
strengthen its balance sheet and improve cash flow management, the
Company made an exchange offer on 25 February 2022 whereby the Company
would exchange the outstanding Existing Notes due 2022 for new notes
bearing interest at 13.0% per annum and with a tenor of 364 days to be issued
by the Company (the “Exchanged New Notes”). On 3 March 2022,
US$95,965,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Existing Notes due 2022
was validly tendered for exchange. Subsequently on 8 March 2022, such
amount of Existing Notes due 2022 was cancelled and the Company issued
US$95,965,000 in aggregate principal amount of Exchanged New Notes. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25
February 2022, 4 March 2022 and 9 March 2022.

On 10 March 2022, the Company further repurchased in the open market of,
and cancelled, an aggregate principal amount of US$62,435,000 of the Existing
Notes due 2022. In addition, the Company also deposited funds of
approximately US$6,987,222 into the designated bank account of the paying
agent on the same day, for the redemption on 16 March 2022 of the remaining
outstanding principal amount of US$6,600,000 of Existing Notes due 2022 and
the accrued interest thereon. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 8 March 2022, the Company issued US$95,965,000 13.0% senior notes due
2023. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 11 March 2022.

Save as disclosed in this report, no material event was undertaken by the
Group subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
o R R LG R

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 58, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director. Mr. Huang joined the Group in September 1992. He is primarily
responsible for formulating and providing guidelines and strategies for the
overall development of the Group. He was appointed as a director on January
8,2018 and re-designated as a non-executive director on August 19, 2018.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Huang was the section chief at Gulou District
Urban Construction Bureau® (currently known as Gulou District Construction,
Real Estate and Transportation Bureau®), from October 1983 to September
1992, responsible for urban planning.

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983. Mr. Huang has
over 31 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Huang is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922.
HK).

Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 59, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Xie joined the
Group in December 1998. He is mainly responsible for providing guidance for
the overall development of the Group and was appointed as a non-executive
director on August 19, 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xie worked several positions, including vice
general engineer and chief of the technical department at Nanjing Sanjian
(Group) Company* (currently known as Nanjing Jiangong Group Co., Limited*)
from October 1983 until November 1998, responsible for construction project
management.

Mr. Xie obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983, and obtained
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 2000. He
subsequently received his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC in
September 2007. He has more than 38 years of experience in the engineering
and real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Xie is currently a chairman and a non-executive director of Yincheng Life
Service, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1922 HK).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. MA Baohua, aged 60, is an executive Director and the President of the
Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2004. He is mainly responsible for
the overall strategic decision-making, business planning and daily operation
management of the Group. He was appointed as an executive director on August
19,2018.

Prior to joining the Group, he worked from March 1986 until he joined the Group in
February 2004 at Nanjing Urban Planning Bureau®, and was deputy director of the
General Management Department, responsible for plan implementation
management work. Prior to that, Mr. Ma worked at the Gulou District Urban
Construction Bureau* (currently known as Gulou District Construction, Real Estate
and Transportation Bureau*) from October 1983 to March 1986, responsible for
urban planning.

Mr. Ma received his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Jinling
Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He then obtained his
bachelor’s degree in urban and rural planning and land management from
Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2001, and obtained professional
qualification as a registered urban planner since May 2001. He subsequently
obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from
China Europe International Business School in the PRC in September 2007. He
has over 38 years of experience in the real estate related industry in the PRC.

In 2017, Mr. Ma was recognised as one of the top 100 property managers co-
awarded by Sina Finance, Leju, China Real Estate Association, Shanghai
Securities News and China Entrepreneur Magazine. In January 2021, Mr. Ma was
awarded the “Best Leader Award” at the 2021 Investor Relations Innovation
Summit for Listed Companies and the “Fourth China Excellent IR” Awards
Ceremony, which was organised by Roadshow China.

Mr. Ma is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922 HK).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. ZHU Li, aged 48, is an executive Director and the vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in July 1995. He is in charge of the
marketing customer centre, operation information centre, President’s office
and human resource centre, as well as Southern Jiangsu Company and Huaihai
Company. He was appointed as an executive director on August 19, 2018.

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
Southeast University in the PRC in July 1999, and received his Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in September 2010. He has over 26 years of
experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Zhu is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922.
HK).

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 42, is an executive director and vice president of the
company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2003. He is mainly
responsible for the operation of the Group’s Zhejiang regional business and
was appointed as an executive director on August 19, 2018.

Mr. Wang received a diploma in international business administration from
Nanjing Normal University in the PRC in July 2001 and obtained his Real Estate
Brokerage Practise Certificate on 24 June 2009. He subsequently obtained his
Master’'s degree in administrative management from Nanjing Tech University
in June 2014. He has over 18 years of experience in the real estate industry in
the PRC.

Ms. SHAO Lei, aged 40, is an executive director, vice president and financial
director of the company. Ms. Shao joined the Group in July 2004. She is
currently in charge of the strategic investment centre, financial management
centre, fund management centre and legal monitoring centre, as well as the
Nanjing Regional Company. She was appointed as an executive director on
August 19, 2018.

Ms. Shao received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics in the PRC in June 2004. She obtained professional
qualifications as an accountant in May 2005, and a certified public accountant
in February 2008. She has over 18 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. CHEN Shimin, aged 63, is an independent non-executive director of the
company. Dr. Chen was appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019, he
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board.

Dr. Chen has been a professor of accounting at China Europe International
Business School in the PRC since August 2008. Prior to his current position, Dr.
Chen worked as associate professor at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong from August 2005 to August 2008. Dr. Chen also worked as
associate professor at Lingnan University in Hong Kong from September 1998
to August 2005.

Before joining the Group, Dr. Chen served as an independent non-executive
director of Oriental Pearl Group Co., Ltd. listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600637), from June 2015 to May 2021. It is a company engaged in
cultural leisure and entertainment, media, foreign investment and other
businesses. From July 2013 to May 2021, he served as an independent non-
executive director of Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600325), a company integrating real estate and
property management. He also served as an independent director of Zhejiang
Wolwo Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300357) which is a biopharmaceutical company
engaged in the research of allergic diseases, and the development, production
and sales of treatment products, from January 2011 to January 2017. Dr. Chen
also served as an independent director of Hangzhou Shunwang Technology
Co., Ltd.*, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300113) which is principally a service provider for an internet cafe platform,
from November 2009 to March 2016, an independent non-executive director
of China High Speed Transmission Equipment Group Co,, Ltd., a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 658) which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of high-speed gear transmission equipment in China, from June
2007 to December 2016, and an independent non-executive director of Hailan
Holdings Limited*, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2278)
which is principally engaged in the development and sales of properties in the
PRC, from June 2016 to December 2018.

Dr. Chen currently serves as an independent non-executive director,
independent director or member of the board of supervisors in several listed
companies, including those set out below:
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Place of listing and Position and
Name of Entity Principal business stock code period of time
3 ETTE R
EREHE TEXR PR 55 AL K AEHP
Sun King Power Electronics a company engaged in the listed on the independent

Group Limited

Advanced Micro-Fabrication
Equipment Inc. China

RiRrERERE (L8 BHn
BRRAE

Postal Savings Bank of China Co,, Ltd.

PEHRFESRITRNDBER QR

Anxin Trust Co,, Ltd

ZIEEERNBERAR]

China Fortune Land
Development Co,, Ltd.

FEEREXRNBERAA
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production, sales and installation
of products such as electric
traction systems, control systems
and monitoring systems for rail
transit vehicles; and sales of
energy-saving and power-efficient
electronic components and
systems
—MEENESIRS
22 | e M B BR i
BEREZERAGEEMONEE
HERRE  RIHEHEEEEN
= NN E SN OPNC]

a company engaged in the provision
of micro-fabrication equipment to
customers in the semiconductor
industry and adjacent
high-tech sectors

— B FE R+ G587 R AR
BRERITEREFRAME T
FIEH AR

a company engaged in personal
banking, corporate banking
and treasury
—EIREEARITER - RERTT
EBLEREBHAR]

a company principally engaged in
financial trust businesses

—HEBRFESRETERTN

R

A Chinese real estate development
company

—RPBFEHEFE QR

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.

Stock Exchange
(stock code: 580)

R £
(B HRER « 580)

listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange
(stock code:688012)

ELHEBEERSH LT
(B2 557 : 688012)

listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601658)
ELEBEARRZFIET
(B R5% : 601658)

listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600816)

EHEEES S ET
(R& 1D A5R : 600816)

listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600340)

ELBEET ST ET
(B SR © 600340)

non-executive
director since
August 2010

B 20108 A A
B IEMITES

independent
non-executive

director since
December 2018

B 2018412 A#E A
BN IEITES

member of the board
of supervisors since
December 2019

B2019F 12 AL A

EEEKE

independent
non-executive
director since
November 2018

B 2018 11 At A
W IEMITES

independent
non-executive
director since
May 2020

B 20205 A%
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Dr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in July 1982, and received his
master's degree in economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRCin July 1985. He subsequently received a doctoral degree
from the University of Georgia in the United States of America in August 1992.
He obtained his professional qualification as a Certified Management
Accountant in January 2008 from the Institute of Management Accountants in
the United States of America. He has over 30 years of experience in the
accounting industry.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director of
the company. He was appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Prior to his current position, he was the chief financial officer of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 907) which is primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of eyeglasses from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as a chief
operating officer of CITIC Merchant Co,, Limited, a company primarily engaged
in the provision of merchant banking services, from January 2012 to September
2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was the responsible officer at Piper Jaffray Asia
Limited, a full-service investment bank, from February 2011 to November 2011.
Mr. Chan also worked from March 2005 to January 2011 at BNP Paribas Capital
(Asia Pacific) Limited, a company primarily engaged in the provision of
investment banking services, and was a managing director of the corporate
finance and Greater China Coverage department at the time of his departure.

From 15 August 2000 to 4 December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an executive
director of Sanyuan Group Limited, a company delisted from the Stock Exchange
in December 2009 (stock code: 140), which was principally engaged in the
research and development of bio-pharmaceuticals. Mr. Chan was appointed to
the board of directors of Sanyuan Group Limited to handle the restructuring of
its business activities and materialising its debt restructuring plan.

Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University of
Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He subsequently received his master's
degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in Australia in November
1998. Mr. Chan has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since July
1993. He obtained his professional qualification as a Chartered Accountant in
November 1992 from the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(previously known as the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand). He
has over 20 years of experience in the finance and banking industry.

Mr. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
CANbridge Pharmaceuticals Inc. (stock code: 1228) and Yonghe Medical Group
Co.,, Ltd. (stock code: 2279), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LAM Ming Fai, aged 46, is an independent non-executive director of the
company. Appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019, he is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.

He is currently a partner of Messrs. D. S. Cheung & Co. specialising in corporate
finance, corporate/commercial and compliance and regulatory matters. Mr.
Lam worked as an associate in the Hong Kong office of Messrs. Sidley Austin
focusing on corporate finance works. Mr. Lam subsequently joined Messrs. DLA
Piper Hong Kong as an associate focusing on corporate finance works and was
promoted to be a partnerin 2012.

Mr. Lam graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and was subsequently admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in 2001. Mr. Lam has over 21 years of experience in the legal industry in
Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WANG Ke, aged 48, is the vice president of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in 2016 and became the deputy general manager of Nanjing
Regional Company, mainly responsible for the daily management of Nanjing
Regional Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as the head of the Fifth Division of
the Secretary of the General Office of the Nanjing Municipal People’s
Government from April 2012. From August 1998 to March 2012, Mr. Wang
served as the deputy director and director of the Nanjing Planning Bureau.

Mr. Wang graduated with a bachelor's degree in urban planning from the
Department of Architecture of Wuhan University in 1995. He then graduated
with a master’s degree in Human Geography from the Department of City and
Resources of Nanjing University in 1998,

Mr. WU Wei, aged 59, is the Group’s chief engineer and is responsible for the
project management of the Group. Mr. Wu joined the Group in April 2004. He
is mainly responsible for the production management centre of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu was deputy manager at the time of his
departure at the fifth branch office of Nanjing First Construction Engineering
Group Co. Ltd* from October 1983 to 2004.

Mr. Wu obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He obtained his
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 1999. He has over
38 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
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Ms. LIU Xuegqian, aged 45, is the assistant president of the Group. Ms. Liu
joined the Group in March 2015. She is in charge of R&D centre of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, she first served as a manager of the design
management department then later served as the manager of the commercial
management department of Nanjing Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.*, currently
known as China Vanke Co., Ltd.) from September 2008 to March 2015. Prior to
that, Ms. Liu was a project manager at (China Shanghai Architectural Design
and Research Institute Co., Ltd) (Jiangsu Branch Office)* from July 2000 to
August 2008, where she was responsible for architectural design.

Ms. Liu received a bachelor's degree in architecture from the Nanjing Institute
of Architectural Engineering (currently known as Nanjing Tech University) in
the PRC on 3 July 2000. She obtained her professional qualifications as a
National First Class Certified Architect on 22 June 2012 and senior engineer on
13 December 2012. Ms. Liu has over 20 years of experience in architectural
design management.

Company Secretary

Mr. WONG Yu Kit is the company secretary of the Company. He was
appointed on August 6, 2018.

Mr. Wong is currently the president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and
Management from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom in
November 2007. After that he obtained a master’'s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong in November 2013 and
became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Wong has over 10
years of experience in the corporate services field.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
and business practises. The Company’s corporate governance practises are
based on the principles of good corporate governance as set out in the CG
Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with
the CG Code as effective during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success
of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction to its business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of its operations. The Board is
responsible for all decision-making in respect of all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control systems, risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Board has the full support of
the management of the Group to discharge its responsibilities.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each Director may seek
independent advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees of the Company. Further details of the Board Committees of the
Company are set out below in this corporate governance report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for all the
Directors and officers of the Group, including company securities, employment
practises, crisis management, investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and public
relation, etc,, which is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures the composition of the Board has a
balance of skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the business and development of the
Company. The current composition of the Board consists of two (2) NEDs, four
(4) executive Directors and three (3) INEDs. INEDs are responsible for exercising
independent judgment on various Board decisions. The Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were set out below:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs (save and except Mr. LAM Ming Fai) has entered into an
appointment letter, with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2022, subject to the retirement and re-election in
accordance to the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
the Director or the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN Shimin, Mr. CHAN Peng
Kuan and Mr. LAM Ming Fai will retire from the office of Director and shall,
being eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. The Board and the Nomination Committee have
recommended the re-election of all the retiring Directors standing for re-
election at the AGM.

Mr. LAM Ming Fai, an independent non-executive Director is not seeking re-
election and will be retiring from the Board effective as of the conclusion of the
AGM.
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The participation of INEDs in the Board brings a diverse range of expertise, skills
and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategies,
performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the
interests of all Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the INEDs has
confirmed in writing his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered
that all INEDs are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experiences for the Board, which is appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this report and all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The Company also maintains on its website
(www.yincheng.hk) and on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk)
an updated list of current Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. In connection with the Listing, all the Directors
had received during the year ended 31 December 2021 comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction at time around or before the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the Group structure, Board and Board Committee meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Group, etc. and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and applicable regulatory requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors in
continuous professional development during the year ended 31 December
2021:

e Rk e

TREMSESFEREEZ 20215128318 IEF
E2EFEIEHENENR

Reading Legal and
Regulatory Updates
Attending and other Reference
Name of Director EEpR Training Courses Materials
BB EGI RRA
HEEIRE kEMSEZER
Non-executive Directors FHITES
HUANG Qingping #ET v v
XIE Chenguang HEN v v
Executive Directors HITES
MA Baohua HIRE v v
ZHU Li o v v
WANG Zheng T v v
SHAQ Lei alifs v v
Independent non-executive Directors BAFBITES
CHEN Shimin PRt B v v
CHAN Peng Kuan PRI v v
LAM Ming Fai ey v v
Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials to  Jlt4) - KA T BEFEEHSBER LML - 3

develop and update Directors’ knowledge and skills as and when appropriate.
Such information and materials are relevant to the Group's business, corporate
governance, rules and regulations, accounting, financial or professional skills
and/or directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements in
place for providing continuing professional development to each Director. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense. The company secretary is responsible for keeping records of training
taken by each Director.

BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should meet
regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year for
reviewing and approving financial statements, operating performance,
budgets, rules and regulations, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company and considering and approving the progress of the various on-going
projects, the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.
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Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and for the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee are
made available to Directors in advance. Board members are provided with all
agenda and adequate information for their review before the meetings. The
Board and Committee members are provided with comprehensive meeting
papers and relevant materials within a reasonable period of time in advance of
the intended meeting date. All Directors and the Committee members are
given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular Board and
Committee meetings and/or their meetings, if required. To facilitate the
decision-making process, the Directors and the Committee members are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required.

After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and Committee
members for comments. Minutes of Board meetings and Committees’
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors at all times.

Directors and Committee members may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Directors and Committee members are
free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions will
only be taken after deliberation at meetings. Directors and Committee
members who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests
in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions. For the year ended 31 December 2021, four (4) Board meetings
were held. The individual attendance records of each Director at such Board
meetings and other meetings are set out below:
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Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings held
for the year ended 31 December 2021
BEESNEE2021F12 831 HEFERTH
ExSeERHAERNEERE

Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting
Name of Director E =i H EEE EREEE REEES FHEEE BREXE
HUANG Qingping =& 4/4 4/4 11 N/A i 1/1
XIE Chenguang = 4/4 N/A i N/A i F N/A N3 A 1/1
MA Baohua HIRE 4/4 N/ANE N/A AN 1/1 1/1
ZHU Li KN 4/4 N/A i N/A i F N/A N3 A 1/1
WANG Zheng T 4/4 N/A i N/A i F N/A N3 A 1/1
SHAO Lei A% 4/4 N/A i N/A i F N/A N3 A 1/1
CHEN Shimin PeR &% 4/4 4/4 11 1/1 1/1
CHAN Peng Kuan  PRIF$S 4/4 4/4 11 /1 1/1
LAM Ming Fai W& pE 4/4 N/ANE N/A AN N/A 73 3 1/1
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, one (1) annual general meeting was
held.

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring Board approval may be
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions were
well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written resolutions are
kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors
at all times.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board’s chairman throughout the year is Mr. Huang Qingping, being a
NED. Mr. Ma Baohua is the Group’s president, chief executive officer and an
executive Director. The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the
senior management of the Group. Therefore, there is no issue of the role of the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group being
performed by the same individual and leading to power being concentrated in
any one individual. Each of the Board members has no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
different aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the
Stock Exchange's website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.yincheng.hk. All Committees should report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made. All Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 February 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to
provide independent oversight of the Group's financial reporting and internal
control systems, and the adequacy of the external audits.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen
Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang
Qingping. Dr. Chen Shimin currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, the members of the Audit
Committee should meet at least two times a year to consider the budget,
revised budget, interim report and annual report before submission to the
Board and meet the external auditors at least twice a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee has held four (4)
meetings which were also with the presence of the external auditor. During
the said meetings, the following major tasks were performed:

a. reviewing and discussing the (i) annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020, annual results announcement
and the annual report; (ii) interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021, interim results
announcement and interim report; (iii) the audit plan and scope for the
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021; and (iv) the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings;

b. reviewing and discussing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

C. discussing and recommending the re-appointment of external auditor.

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditor, Ernst & Young.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid/payable to the auditor
of the Company is as follows:
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2020
Nature of services REMHE 2020 F
RMB
ARETT
Audit and other assurance related services 1Z 8 N B A% R AR S 3,800,000 3,800,000
Reporting accountant’s services in relation to issuance B ¥ & &+ EM 4 B3 21T 38 1K H9 AR 7%
of circulars 1,000,000 2,000,000
Non-audit service related to the preparation of EBAREARNEIRE ek
the environmental, social and governance ERMEMIEE T RS
report of the Company 238,000 -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy for
nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and to assess INEDs'
independence and commitment.

The Company also has a Board Diversity Policy and a Nomination Policy in
place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the transparency around the
process by setting out the criteria and factors to be taken in account by the
Nomination Committee in selecting and recommending candidates as
Directors (including NEDs and INED(s)).

In identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. A number of factors will be taken
into account, including but not limited to age, skills, regional and industry
experience, cultural and educational background, race, gender and other
qualities. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Nomination Committee
will also take into account factors based on the Company’s own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved gender
diversity in respect of the Board. We will continue to strive to enhance female
representation and achieve an appropriate balance of gender diversity with
reference to the shareholders' expectation and international and local
recommended best practices. We will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level and we are committed to provide
career development opportunities for female staff so that we will have a
pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to our Board
in near future.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees whom
we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and knowledge of our
operation and business, including but not limited to, business operation,
management, accounting and finance, legal and compliance and research and
development.

The Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy have been reviewed and
shall continue to be reviewed on regular basis.

As to the right to nominate, both the Directors and the Shareholders may
nominate person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits
and, for INEDs, their independence, by the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen Shimin
and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang Qingping. Mr.
Huang Qingping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among
other things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, one (1) meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held. It had reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Nomination Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board
to establish, review, and make recommendations to the Board on the Group's
remuneration policy and practises. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
all employees and Directors are appropriately remunerated in accordance with
the Group's strategy as well as its long-term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one (1) executive Director, namely
Mr. Ma Baohua, and two (2) INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng
Kuan. Mr. Chan Peng Kuan currently serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, making recommendations to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the Directors
and approving the terms of their service contracts.

The aggregate remuneration (including salaries, allowances, performance-
related bonuses, pension scheme contributions and social welfare, share-based
payment and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB7.5 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group. Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of
the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the senior management (non-
director and non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out below:
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Number of employees

Remuneration band 3 B &5 = EE®E
2020
2020
HK$500,000 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,000 7 7T & 1,000,000 78 7T 0 1
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 78 7T 3 2

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (4) of them (2020:
four (4)) are the executive Directors and one (1) of them is a NED (2020: one (1)).
Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five individuals with the
highest emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, one (1) meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. It had reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and
the remuneration package for the Directors and senior management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practises, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s policies
and practises on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Wong Yu Kit has been appointed as
the Company’s company secretary. The primary contact person at the
Company whom the service provider can contact is Ms. An Qi, director of
Investor Relations of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the company secretary had taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out on pages 99 to 108 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable.

Reference is also made to note 2.1 to the Notes to Financial Statements, which
states that as at 31 December 2021, the Group's current portion of interest-
bearing bank, other borrowings and senior notes amounted to
RMB4,736,724,000 while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,427,599,000. Such condition, along with other matters as set forth in note
2.1, indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. However, taking into
account the plans and measures adopted and set out in note 2.1, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve months
from 31 December 2021, the Directors were satisfied that it is appropriate and
has prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code was noted by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal control systems
within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Under the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal control
systems to ensure, amongst others, (i) appropriate policies and control
procedures have been designed and established to safeguard the Group's
assets against improper use or disposal; (ii) relevant laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping the
Company accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established organisational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-
day departmental operations are entrusted to individual department which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance and is required to operate
its own department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and
to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the
Company from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the
Board informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular
basis.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted the Inside
Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside information and
strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information and has communicated
that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its obligations to announce any
inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and conducts the affairs
with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the
Directors and delegated officers can act as the Group'’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries about the Group's affairs. No incident of non-
compliance of the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information
Policy was noted by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular, the Board
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by discussions with the
management of the Company and the assessment was conducted by the
Board. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate
and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group's
business, performance and strategies.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company
and the Directors always make efforts to fully address any questions raised by
the Shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company. The
chairman of the Board will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit.

A notice convening the AGM shall be sent to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals

Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more members of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)’) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a written requisition
(the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 4502, 45/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the company secretary.
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The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) to convene an EGM, the
agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es) proposed to
be transacted in the EGM, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned. The
Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove his/her/their shareholding in the Company
to the satisfaction of the Company.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the shareholding
of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM within 2 months
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the contrary, if
the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the
Eligible Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 4502,
45/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong or such
other means of contact as set out in the website of the Company from time to
time.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business, performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, the chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings and other general meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a Dividend Policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets out the
factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the declaration of
interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends. The Dividend Policy
aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company.

The dividend that the Directors may recommend or declare in respect of any
particular financial year or period will be subject to the Group's operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition,
contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, Shareholders’ interests and other factors which the Directors
may deem relevant at such time.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividends was made by the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The existing Articles were adopted on 18 February 2019 and became effective
on 6 March 2019.

A copy of the Articles is posted on the designated website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.yincheng.hk).

There had been no changes to the Articles for the year ended 31 December
2021.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Qingping
Chairman and non-executive Director
30 March 2022
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. The Company and its
subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation plan as set
out in the Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in property
development, hotel operations and property investment.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review and
analysis of the Group’s performance, including details of its material
acquisitions and disposals, for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. For future business development, the Group will
continue to focus on its existing property development business and acquire
high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis in China. Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Subsequent Events” in this annual
report, the Group has no significant events after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
of this annual report. A financial summary of the Group for the five years ended
31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively as extracted from
the published audited financial statements have been set out on pages 252 to
253 in this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$0.0306 per Share).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces, among others, the following principal risks and uncertainties:
(i) uncertainty as to obtaining adequate financing to fund the Group’s projects
and future development; (ii) uncertainty as to business expansion into new
cities and regions; (iii) risks relating to the performance of the PRC property
markets; (iv) uncertainty as to acquiring desired land reserves for development
at locations suitable for the Group'’s development and at acceptable prices; (v)
risks relating to profitability of property projects; (vi) risks relating to fluctuation
in cost such as construction materials and labour costs; and (vii) risks relating to
the government policies and regulations affecting the PRC property markets.
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For details of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus, and for details of the financial
risks and the related risk management policies and practises used by the
Group, please refer to note 44 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies” to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2021 in the
share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's aggregate reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,103.6 million
(2020: RMB930.8 million).

NOTES ISSUE, REPURCHASE, CANCELLATION
AND EXCHANGE

Details of the issue, repurchase, cancellation and exchange of the senior notes
by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
sections headed "Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial
and Capital Resources — Notes Issue, Repurchase and Cancellation” and
“Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue derived from the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 0.6% (2020: approximately 0.4%)
of the Group's total revenue for the year; whereas, revenue derived from the
Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% at approximately
1.3% (2020: approximately 0.8%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
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During the year, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 8.8% (2020: approximately 6.1%) of the Group's total purchases
for the year; whereas, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% at approximately 25.1% (2020: approximately
23.4%) of the Group's total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had any
interests in any of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group
for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practises as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report “ on
pages 60 to 74 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment
and complying with the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The Group attaches great importance to the environmental impact brought by
its construction process, it conducts environmental impact assessment for all
construction projects in accordance with the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the PRC, and publicises environmental monitoring data
online to ensure that its pollutant emission levels in the construction process
are regulated by the relevant authorities and the general public. In addition,
the Group actively promotes its green construction initiatives in controlling
pollutant emissions and conserving resources so as to reduce any
environmental impact.

Under the Group’s standard construction contracts, the Group requires its
contractors to strictly comply with the relevant environmental and safety laws
and regulations. The Group’s legal monitoring department and human
resources and administration centre also provide trainings to other
departments on the updates in PRC environmental laws and regulations.
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None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions as set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report published on the website of the
Stock Exchange and that of the Company on the same day as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To the best
of the Company’s knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance in any
material respect with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in the Listing Rules are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai
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In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN
Shimin, Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan and Mr. LAM Ming Fai (“Mr. Lam") will retire from
the office of Director and shall, being eligible for re-election at the AGM. Mr
CHEN Shimin and Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM. But for Mr. Lam, he has informed the Board that he will not offer himself
for re-election at the AGM in order to devote more time on his other business
commitments, and will retire as an independent non-executive Director at the
conclusion of the AGM.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Lam has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is
no matter that needs to be brought to the attention to the Shareholders
regarding his retirement. The Company will use its best endeavor identify
suitable candidate to fill up the vacancy of independent non-executive Director
and in any event within three months from the conclusion of the AGM as
required under Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules. The Company will make further
announcement as and when appropriate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 52 to 59 of this report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the INEDs as independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs (save and except Mr. LAM Ming Fai) has entered into an
appointment letter, with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2022, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the Director or the Company. Mr. Lam Ming
Fai has informed the Board that he will retire as an independent non-executive
Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will not
offer himself for re-election in order to devote more time to his other business
commitments. Mr. Lam Ming Fai has confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the Board and there is no matter relating to his retirement that needs to
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the NEDs is entitled to
a fixed amount of emolument and discretionary bonus to be determined by
the Board. For the INEDs, pursuant to the then individual appointment letters,
each of them is entitled to a fixed director’s fee.

All of the executive Directors’ service contracts and the NEDs' and INEDs' letters
of appointment entered between the Company and the respective Director
has been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee. None of the
Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

Change in information on Directors since the date of the Interim Report 2021
of the Company and up to the date of this annual report, which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51 B(1) of the Listing Rules, is set out below:

Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Yonghe Medical
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2279) on 1 June 2021 and CANbridge
Pharmaceuticals Inc. (stock code: 1228) on 11 June 2021, respectively, both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 946 (2020: 880) employees. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the
Remuneration Committee based on their merit, qualifications and competence.
It is the Group's policy to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The
Group has a system for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-
upon goals with specific performance standards. Performance discussion is
carried out on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least
once a year to review employees’ overall performance, achievements, and
areas in need of improvement. Salary review will be based on both Group's
performance and individual performance and subject to the Group's discretion.

The Group entered into labour contracts with all of its employees. The Group
offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. To incentivize its employees and promote the long-term growth of
the Company, the Group had adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme’). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
sections headed "Director’s report — Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government, and
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution under this
retirement benefits scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the Remuneration
Committee and then recommended to the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. All
the emoluments of Directors have been reviewed and approved or ratified by
the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no amount was paid to
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to the Directors or
past Directors for the same period in connection with the loss of office as a
director of any member of the Group or of any other office in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors or the five highest paid employees
of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 February 2019, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved
and adopted by the then Shareholders of the Company and its implementation
is conditional on the Listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a means of incentivising or rewarding the
Participants (as defined below) for their contributions or potential contributions
to the Group, and to motivate employees to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Company and attract and retain an on-going
relationship with participants whose contribution are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption date, being 18
February 2019 to 17 February 2029, to grant options to, among others, any
director or employee of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Participant”).
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No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval of
the Company'’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim period;
and (i) the deadline for the Company to an announcement of its annual results
or half-year, or quarterly or other interim period (whether or not required under
the Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication of such results
announcement.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
option schemes existing at such time of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 141,704,813 Shares (representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of the Listing Date, the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"), which represents approximately 9.8% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report (based on the total number of Shares
inissue as at the date of this annual report, i.e., 1,446,962,138 Shares).

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to any Participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12 month period shall not
at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise
separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than
10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.
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Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of
an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2021, no option under
the Share Option Scheme has been granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and directors
of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding
Limited, being the Controlling Shareholders, have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the
Company under a deed of non-competition (the "“Deed of Non-
Competition”) entered into between the Controlling Shareholders and the
Company dated 20 February 2019 during the period under review. Details of
the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with
by the Controlling Shareholders during the period under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION
OF SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 41 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, there were no contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial
Shareholder or any of the subsidiaries or companies controlled by any
Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder, which subsisted at the end
of or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 41 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, there were no transaction, arrangement, or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party
and in which any Director or any entities connected with a Director, the
controlling Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which are (a) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard dealings by Directors as referred to the Model Code, were as
follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares RRGZHE

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

interest

Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (Note7)

RARA BRI

EEgE REEME RDEE BB

(W7

Mr. Huang Qingping ("t ? Interest in controlled corporation 539,089,534 37.26%
B)F D RPEEE R

Mr. Xie Chenguang "t Interest in controlled corporation 78,085,490 5.40%
= e S HE ) REEEE R

Mr. Ma Baohua "eted Interest in controlled corporation 71,919,056 4.97%
FEAREE S 4 W) REEEE R

Mr. Zhu Lij Nete® Interest in controlled corporation 36,192,609 2.50%
R 9 A (e e) REEEER

Mr. Wang Zheng ®te? Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
TR S A ) RPEEER

Ms. Shao Lej Meed Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
AR 2 4= (ere) RELEER
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Notes:

Q)] Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of each of Silver Huang
Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by each of Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(2) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(3) Mr. Ma Baohua is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Ma Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Ma Holding Limited under
the SFO.

4) Mr. Zhu Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Li Holding Limited and is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Li Holding Limited under the SFO.

(5) Mr. Wang Zheng is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Wang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Wang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

6) Ms. Shao Lei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Shao Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Shao Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(7) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of
Shares inissue as at 31 December 2021, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had registered an interest or
short position in any Shares or underlying Shares and/or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangement which would enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, the following persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company whose interests are disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” above) have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRROREBERSD S
HY#E 58

BEMEZEERARGTTETHRAERM B
2021F12A31H MFALT(REXTEER
FEITHABRARG REEEEERG - 48
Bl MEEENESEAR | —BRENS
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HER O P EBCEN AR RREFES LE
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Long positions in the Shares R Z2FE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest
Number of in the Company
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (Notes)
R A R R RE
TERRBE LB EEME BRHHB BHABED
(Wfats)
Silver Huang Holding Limited ®r” Beneficial owner 517,833,810 35.79%
Silver Huang Holding Limited 1 BB A
Silver Dai Holding Limited ®e«? Beneficial owner 187,777,351 12.98%
Silver Dai Holding Limited "2/ EmHEAA
Mr. Dai Chengshu 2 Interest in controlled corporation 187,777,351 12.98%
B E ST Ry EE R
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®ee3 Beneficial owner 101,730,089 7.03%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited "3/ EmHEAA
Mr. Zhu Linnan ®ete3) Interest in controlled corporation 101,730,089 7.03%
SRR 5 A () Ry EE R
Silver Xie Holding Limited "t¢? Beneficial owner 78,085,490 5.40%
Silver Xie Holding Limited 4 EmHEAA
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Notes:

Q)] Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Huang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

(2) Mr. Dai Chengshu is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Dai Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Dai Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(3) Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Zhu Holding Limited under
the SFO.

4) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(5) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of
Shares inissue as at 31 December 2021, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were not aware
of any other person who had or deemed to have interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which has disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices
or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own
fraud or dishonesty. Such provision shall be in force from the Listing Date. The
Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance that provides appropriate
cover for the Directors.
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COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Yincheng Real Estate” and
"Delineation of Business” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus, during the year ended 31
December 2021, none of the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group nor any conflicts of interest which has or may have with
the Group of interests with the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total bank and other borrowings of
RMB11,825.4 million, compared with RMB12,148.2 million as at 31 December
2020. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi, USS$ and
HKS.

The details are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Interest-Bearing Bank
and Other Borrowings” of this annual report.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year end 31 December 2021 was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right
to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any securities of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company had sufficient public
float based on publicly available information, in compliance with the minimum
requirement under Rule 8.01(a) of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are published on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.yincheng.hk.

All the Committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at the
Company's expense.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 March 2019, 354,262,000 Shares were
issued at a price of HK$2.38 per Share and 1,058,534,993.4660 new Shares were
issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). On 3
April 2019, as a result of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) being partially exercised, 29,914,000 new Shares were allotted and
issued at the price of HK$2.38 per Share. The total net proceeds raised from the
global offering (including the issuance of Shares pursuant to the partial
exercise of the Over-allotment Option), after deducting all the underwriting
commissions, transaction levy and trading fee (as applicable) and all other
listing expenses in connection with the global offering, was approximately
HK$855.8 million.

The details of use of proceeds by the Group are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital
Resources — Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering” of this annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng Real Estate, Yincheng Life Service and Dongfang Yinian Rehabilitation
Hospital Co. (‘Dongfang Yinian") are owned as to approximately 53.11%,
38.66% and 53.11%, respectively, by Mr. Huang Qingping, who is a non-
executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders. As such, Yincheng
Real Estate, Yincheng Life Services, Dongfang Yinian and their respective
subsidiaries are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Nanjing Mahui Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
(MR5 &8 %¥AMRAD A, anindirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Nanjing Mahui") has entered into the following transaction with
Nanjing Zhihui Meijia Technology Service Co., Ltd* (FI & X ERH RS
BBR2AA]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Yincheng Life Service and a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules (‘Nanjing Zhihui

FERXS

SR EE - SR AEJE BRTS S R A R RIE
BRAERAR((RAES]) ZEBHIERNTES
RIEBRBRE s — &8 FaLEHEFL5311% -
38.66% K2 53.11% o At - BRIF Em R A - R
HE - SRIRAEERTS RABEFUARFEESH
ZMBARHYARARNEEAL -

BEXS

REBZE2021F12A31BEFE - AR A H#E
2EMBARERGSEEXERAR([MREE
gHEMAEEEERERBERAR([EER
BEXEE]) (BUEERBERARNBESR
ZEHIBAR - BAREEWARR - BARRRIANE
BAD)FIIATRS

Meijia"):

Description and purpose of Date of

the connected transactions Agreement agreement Parties to agreement
BEXZBARE K aE &R B CIEEE DA

Nanjing Mahui agreed to sell and Nanjing Zhihui ~ Commercial Housing Sale and 30 June 2021 (1) Nanjing Mahui; and

Meijia agreed to acquire, at the total
consideration of RMB11,617,034, four PRC
properties owned by Nanjing Mahui
EREGREHENEREEEEREWE
HERSERANNERBRYE - 2R(E
RAR¥E11617,0347T

Purchase Agreements

mE B B i

Compliance with the Listing Rules

Since one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) under the Listing Rules
in respect of the consideration of the commercial housing sale and purchase
agreements is higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions under the
said agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has entered into the
following transactions, which constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and has on the dates indicated in the table below
entered into written agreements to govern such continuing connected

transactions:
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Transaction amount
Description and purpose of the continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement Term Annual cap 31December 2021
HEANE128318

KRBERZ ZHEREN i EEEE ErAEY] HR EELR LEEZREE

Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant tothe Group~ Trademark Licensing 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;and ~ From the Listing Date to N/A. On royatty N/A.On royatty

non-transferrable licence to use several trademarks Agreement (2) the Company the expiry date of the — free basis — free basis

registered in the PRC and in Hong Kong relevant trademark

fegistration

FYHERSRTASETTERN AT MOF2ABE () BERER SLTREEE TER - RENRRERE MR - BEH

FUR - NEPEREEENERS EEE Q) #AF EEAEENERES fRERE

Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to provide to Master Hotel Services 18 February 2019 (1) YinchengRealEstate;and ~ Fromthe Listing Date: Willnot exceed RMB2.2 millon, RMB2.6 million and Approximately

the Group hotel accommodation, conference Agreement (2)  theCompany until 31 December 2021 RMBA0 million for each of the three years ending RMB2,179,000

facilities and catering services in return for senvice 31 December 2021, respectively

fees

FHAEEEREASERAAEEE & ERRBLLZ WOF2ABA () BEHE: R ErmAges HENIF12R31 B =RERRFHA) BARBLI9M0T

ARBRERRE - ARRHE (0 AR W1F1A3E MEBARB L AET  ARKUBETR

ARE40EER

Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to provide two  Vehicle Rental 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;and ~ From the Listing Date Willnot exceed RMB042 million, RMB042 million and Approximately

vehicles for the Group's daly business operations in Agreement (2) the Company until 31 December 2021 RMBO42million for each of the three years ending RMBO

return for a monthly rental of RMB35,000 (inclusive 31 December 2021, respectively

of insurance fees)

SYMESERSAREENARRREER  NIEERS MOF2ABE () BERER SLTREEE HENFNANELZEEREEHAT BARBIT

HREE  EREAREARE 00T Q) AR W1E1A3NE TREARRONEET ARBOQEET

(3R%E) RARK00QAET

The Group agreed to lease from Yincheng Real First Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;and ~ From the Listing Date Willnot exceed RMBS.60 million, RMBS.60 million and Approximately

Estate certain offices situated at 19th to 215t Floor, Lease Agreement (2)  theCompany until 31 December 2021 RMBS.60 million for each of the three years ending RMB4,959,000

Block A, Yincheng Plaza, 289 Jiangdongbeilu, 31 Decernber 2021, respectively

Nanjing, the PRC with total GFA of 2870 sqm. with a

monthly rental of RMB377,883 (inclusive of

management fees) and 160 car parking spaces

situated at the basement of Yincheng Plaza, 289

Jiangdongbeiu, Nanjing, the PRC with a monthly

rental of RMBBB,000 {inclusive of management fees)

AEEREHBERB NP ERRIR  F-0NREEE w02 AR () BEME:R BLTHBRE HENNF A AIL=RERRERAT BARK 49590007

IRORBRRBAROENENETHE  BF (0 AR W1F1A3E MEBARESOEET  ARBSOERT

R(GREEBANTAR GAESAA RARBS0BET

RE3778837L (3 EER)) RANPERRIL

RIBRRREBELD 160 Bt (B

BeRARKBINT(REER))

Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to ease from Second Master 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;and ~ From the Listing Date unil Will not exceed RMB48.55 million, RMB69.10 million and Approximately

the Group the properties which are to be used as Property Lease (2) the Company 31 Decernber 2021 RMB69.10 million for each of the three years ending RMB47,128,000

gymnastic centre, long-term leasing apartmentsand ~ Agreement 31 December 2021, respectively

elderly home, respectively (Note)

SUNESERSMASERENE AM  ECONFEEE  ovF2ABR () BEME R BLTABEE HZNENAY A= RERRERA) BARBG180007

SROBIRERATL REAERRER(N B Q) AR W1E1A3NE TREARK A5 HET  AREOI0EET

i) RARBHO.0EET

Yincheng Real Estate agreed to provide property Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;and ~ From the Listing Date unil Willnot exceed RMB45.94 million, RMB75.12 million and Aggregated with the

management services n respect of the unsold Management (2)  theCompany 31 December 2021 RMB76.80 million for each of the three years ending transaction amount

property units and the sold property units prior to Senvices Agreement 31 Decernber 2021, respectively under the New Master

the agreed delivery date as set out on the property Property Management

purchase contract for projects developed by the Services Agreement,

Group including maintaining sales offices of approximately

property projects of the Group RMB60,546,000

FHMEREMASEFRUARNNZRE  NEEERKY WOFIABA () BHHER BLTHERE B2 E1 A3 BE=EEREFRAT) annZERRhe

ROFHBERNERIAAELNEBLR ; Q) 2 WIE1AYA MEBARESUBET ARETSEETR BETHR5%

BENZSURENFERRY 2E4HT ARE 630 BET a4

SENFARHERSR ARE 605460007
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Transaction amount
Description and purpose of the continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement Term Annual cap 31December 2021
BEANF12831R
KEBERZ HEREN [iE EEE iEFEEY:] HR EELR LEEZR5E
Yincheng Life Service agreed to provide to the New Master Property 21 October 2019 (1) YinchengLife Senvice;and ~ From 6 November 2019 untl - Willnot exceed RMBAS.94 million, AMB5.12 millon and Aggregated with the
(Group the property management services as Management Services (2)  theCompany 31 December 2021 RMB76.80 million for each of the three years ending transaction amount
originally provided by Yincheng Real Estate under Agreement 31 Decernber 2021 respectively under the Master
the Master Property Management Services Property Management
Agreement Services Agreement,
approrimately
RIMB60546,000
SHLERBRSRASERERSNNEE  FUEEERBE  o0F0ANE () BREERE R BN19511 AoRRE BN NAY B RFRRFHAN) ENFEERKERE
ERBeHATARIBERCONZEER B3 Q) FRR W1E1NANA MEBARESUTET  AREI2EET THRAEAL
# RARB60BET AARHE 6054600070
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to provide Master Marketing 18 February 2019 (1) YinchengRealEstate;and ~ From the Listing Date until Willnot exceed RMB16.0 million, RMB25.6 million and Approximately
marketing and sales services, including but not and Sales Services (2)  theCompany 31 December 2021 RMBA0.0 million for each of the three years ending RMB65,000
limited to providing market and sales services to the Agreement 31 December 2021, respectively
onssite sales office of the Group
PINERERSRETEREARR BF  TAREHREE  wvF AR () BUMER BLTHERE HZNE AN BE=RFRRFHA) BARB 6007
BARRAASERGHENSRRATER  0F (N W1ENAIA MEBARBI60EET  ARB16ERT
2B RARE4©0EET
Nanjing Dongfang Yinian Health Industry Lease Agreement 30September 2021 (1) Dongfang Yinian Health From 1 October 2021 and Willnot exceed the following amount: Approximately
Development Co, Ltd* (BRR A BERREE Industry Development;and — ending on 30 June 2041 RMB3453,000
%EBRAE) (Dongfang Yinian Health (2 Yincheng Rehailtation Period RMB
Industry Development') an indirect Hospital 10ctober to 31 December 2021 3764255
wholly-owned subsiciary of the Company; as the 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 9462190
lessor agreed to lease Building 2, No. 21, Maqun 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 15456234
South Road to Nanjing Yincheng Rehabilitation 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 3,665,704
Hospial* (BIR SR /EER) (Yincheng 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2025 32088820
Rehabilitation Hospital ) s direct wholly-owned 1 January 2026 to 31 December 2026 38816,734
subsidiary of Dongfang Yinian, as the lessee fora 1 January 2027 to 31 December 2027 41637209
term of 20 years commencing from 1 October 2021 1 January 2028 to 31 December 2028 42469953
and ending on 30 June 2041 1 January 2029 to 31 December 2029 43319352
1 January 2030 to 31 December 2030 44185739
1 January 2031 t0 31 December 2031 45069454
1 January 2032 to 31 December 2032 45970843
1 January 2033 to 31 December 2033 4689260
1 January 2034to 31 December 2034 47828065
1 January 2035 to 31 December 2035 48784627
1 January 2036 to 31 December 2036 49760319
1 January 2037 to 31 December 2037 50755525
1 January 2038 to 31 December 2038 51770636
1 January 2039 to 31 December 2039 52,806,049
1 January 2040 to 31 December 2040 53862170
1 January 2041 0 30 June 2041 26971991
AAARERENBAABRRARERRE  HERE WIEIANE () FABEEFEFRR R BanF0AiRRE TREHTHE: BARE 53007
SERABAA (RABEREERRR])( 0 PREER W56 ANAIE
AEEARERERERY FIRBLETR ] NG
FEFERANBRABREARAER 015108 1AZNAA 3764255
([BxBHEERR))(FA%EA) B8R WFIAIRZMNENAYA 9462190
WE BANF0ATBRZMF6AA W3FIRIRZNBEA3A 15456234
I W4FI R1AZNMENANA 23665704
WSEIR1BENBENA3NE 32088820
06F1A1RZ06E128318 38816734
WrFIR1BZNIEANA 41637209
WBEIA1BENBENA3NE 4469953
091 A1AZN9E128318 43319352
W0F1 A1AZN0F12ANA 44185739
WIEIRIRZIENANA 45069454
WF1R1RZNNENAYA 45970843
W3FIRIAZNRFNANA 4689060
WHEIRIRZNMENRYNA 47828065
2035F1 A1AZE05E 128318 48784627
W65F1 A1AZN6F12ANA 49760319
WE1RIREN7E1A318 50755525
2038F1A1AZ08E 128318 51770636
W9F 1 R1AZN9F 128318 52806049
W0F 1 R1BZEM0E 128318 53862170
WFIRTBEMIF6ANE 26971991
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Transaction amount
Description and purpose of the continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement Term Annual cap 31December 2021
BEANE12831R

KEBERZ HEREN [iE EEE iEFEEY:] HR EELR LEEZREE
10, Yincheng Real Estate agreed to provide property 2022 Master Property 11 November 2021 (1) Vincheng Life Senvice;and — From 1 January 2022 to Willnot exceed RMB12689 million, RMB151.76 million and N/A

senvices in respect of both sold and unsold property Management (2)  theCompany 31 December 2024 RMB148:48 million for the three years ending

units prior to the agreed delivery ate as set out on Services Agreement 31 December 2024

the property purchase contract for projects

developed or owned by the Group, the common

area and facilites of such properties, and other

related sites suich as sales offices, parking spaces and

storage foomms.

PINERBAASEFRIAERERNN  AnFNRER WHENANE () BEEERER EREIRIIEE HENUF LAY AIL=RAERERTER el

REESOFHDARNERANEERAE  RBERZ (0 AR W4F 128318 NRBI69EET - ARK 151 76BETR

NEEN - BENFODAET RABA RS ARB180EET

EHER  REURREESAMERSIR

R -
11 The Group agreed to lease from Yincheng Real 2022 First Master 24December2021 (1) Vincheng Real Estate;and - From 1 January 2022 to Willnot exceed RMBS.7 millon, RMBS.7 million and /A

Estate certain offices situated at No. 19 Magun South Property Lease (2)  theCompany 31 December 2024 RMBS.7 million for the three years ending

Road, Qivia District, Nanjing, the PRC with total GFA Agreement 31 December 2024

of approximately 59,673 sq.m. which shall be used

as elderly home, for a monthly rental of

RVB4,102,050.35, RMB4307,152.86 and

RMB4522,51057 for the years ending 31 December

2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

ASERERSINERENNTERRTE  anEE-NE  mERANE () BIHER EpEIRIEE HEMEN AN AL EER B RA TR

EESERYOTNATHAL SREER  AELHE () A7 W4E1RYA ARHSTRETL  ARESTRELR

Hsoen Tk ERRIERER B0 ARESTEET

B mER0MENABILERHEAE

ARIBARE L0003 - ARE

430715286 TRARE 45251051 7T »
12 Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to lease from 2022 Second Master 24December2021 (1) Vincheng Real Estate;and - From 1 January 2022 to Willnot exceed RMB49.3 million, RMBS1.7 million and N/A

the Group the properties situated at No. 19 Magun Property Lease (2)  theCompany 31 December 204 RMBS4.3 million for the three years ending

South Road Qixia District, Nanjing, the PRC with Agreement 31 December 2024

total GFA of approximately 59,673 sqm, which shall

be used as elderly home, for a monthly rental of

RMB4,102,050.35, RMB4,307,152.86 and

RMB4522,51057 for the years ending 31 December

2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

SUMESERSMASERENATARY  ARFE-AHNE  mERAME () BIMER BunE1A1RE EZuME AN BE=EERRTRA TER

TREREHEE 9RNONE SREERY  ARERE () A7 W4E1AYA NRRW3BEL - NRHSITAELR

SoenTAK ARRfERER  BEN0E - ARBSIEET

WIERNMENANALEEHEATEES
BIBARE 4102050357 AR 430715286
TRARE452510517T

Note: Since 3 April 2019, part of the properties which is used as gymnastic centre has been  Hf3¥ : 20194 B3 B#E - ILEEREZH LN H Y
leased to the Yincheng Life Service Group. O PR EREER -

RABREBARAT
—g-—gg O3
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Compliance with the Listing Rules:

I.

94

Trademark Licensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group on a
royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Trademark Licensing
Agreement falls within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Master Hotel Services Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the hotel services is
expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the Master Hotel
Services Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Vehicle Rental Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement is expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the
Vehicle Rental Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

First Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the First Master Property Lease
Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under the
First Master Property Leasing Arrangement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Second Master Property
Lease Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under
the Second Master Property Leasing Agreement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the Master Property Management
Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

New Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Master Marketing and Sales Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios for the Master Marketing and
Sales Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions under the Master Marketing and Sales Services
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps under the Lease Agreement is expected to be
less than 5%, the transactions under the Lease Agreement will be subject
to the reporting, annual review requirements, announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2022 Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the 2022 Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the 2022 Master Property
Management Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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2022 First Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the 2022 First Master Property
Lease Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an annual basis, the
transactions under the 2022 First Master Property Lease Agreement will
be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders” approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2022 Second Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the 2022 Second Master
Property Lease Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions under the 2022 Second Master Property Lease
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the transactions under the First Master Property Lease
Agreement, Second Master Property Lease Agreement, Master Property
Management Services Agreement and Master Marketing and Sales
Services Agreement which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement, pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, waivers exempting the Company from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
subject to the condition that the aggregate amounts of such continuing
connected transactions for each financial year shall not exceed the
relevant amounts set forth in the respective annual caps stated above.

For further details of the continuing connected transactions as
mentioned above, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus, and the announcements of
the Company dated 11 November 2021 and 24 December 2021.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of trademark
licence under the Trademark Licensing Agreement) as mentioned above also
constitute related party transactions of the Company under the IFRS(s), details
of which are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, the other related party transactions
as set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction which require
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the INEDs have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practise Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 10 June 2022, the
notice of which will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders as soon
as practicable in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 7 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 6
June 2022.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report
form part of this annual report.

Notes:

In this annual report, English names of PRC entities marked "*" are translations of their Chinese
names for identification only. If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names and
their English translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

Amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report, including information
presented in thousands or millions of units, have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, totals of rows or columns of numbers in tables may not be equal to the apparent
total individual items.

By order of the Board
Huang Qingping
Chairman

Nanjing, 30 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY =x

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng
International Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 109 to 251, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which
states that as at 31 December 2021, the Group's current portion of interest-
bearing bank, other borrowings and senior notes amounted to
RMB4,736,724,000 while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,427,599,000. Such condition, along with other matters as set forth in note
2.1, indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty
related to going concern section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRELEE
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FAREEZEIE 2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBRPONEERRERSEE

Revenue recognition from property development projects (“PDP”)

EERZER ([FHERZFRE )2 W@ R

Most of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 was derived from PDP. Revenue from PDP is recognised
when all of the following criteria have been met:
EEEBE2021F 12 A3 BEFENABLKERER
FiERZEIER - EEBEATAE R EE MR
R AR IR R MU ¢

(i) thesale and purchase agreement has been signed;
) CEEEEHR:

(i) the related deposit has been received and the
arrangements for the settlement of the remaining
proceeds have been confirmed; and

(h BREAEZE B BERFAKAAERBENENE
R

(i) the property has been handed over to the buyer, as
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.

(i) MECRBEEHZOEIMNTED °

We identified the recognition of revenue for PDP as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the Group and any minor
errors in the recognition of revenue, in aggregate, for each
property development project, which could have a material
impact on the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December
2021.

EEREHERBIEE NN EERY AEREZEE -
AAEHWERBREENKRYEEENEENE  URE
EFERZEIER HE KR ER DA E AR ERER
FERATREH E R BEE 2021 F 12 A31 HIEFER R FIE
HEEATE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the revenue
recognition are included in notes 2.4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRANGEERN SRR MBS N R A M ERR W24
M5 e

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of
properties included:

BEEE HE R HIEF 21

0]

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iif)

(iv)

(iv)

evaluating the design, implementation of operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the recording of
revenue for PDP;

Al BB 1 EE T 8508 B B0 Mk s RC SR AR RA eV A B2 (0 B 4%
B RETAMETTA ML

inspecting the terms of the standard sale and purchase
agreements for the sale of PDP to assess the Group's revenue
recognition policies for the sale of PDP, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
BEEEEHEFMERZIERNREESHAIGR -
NeEZERITEFENBERFHEEEAREER
R IE B R HERIBUR

inspecting, on a sampling basis, the sales of PDP recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021, sale and purchase
agreements and the documents which indicated that the
properties were physically possessed or the legal titles of the
properties were obtained by the buyers and assessing
whether the related revenue had been recognised in
accordance with the Group’'s revenue recognition
accounting policies and;

HREE2021F 12 A3 BIEFEEANFHENZIER
HE MEREEEWALAIAZANEEEREER
THBEXETCDEBYREEMBRENT - NG
BHRANGEEEERREEEN KRR S BUERHE
B R

inspecting, on a sampling basis, the documents to check
whether the related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREELEE

FAREEZEIE 2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBRPONEEBRERSE

Provision for land appreciation tax

THUEER B

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China focusing
on the development of residential properties and the
development, operation and management of commercial and
mixed-use properties. Land appreciation tax (“LAT") in Mainland
China was one of the main components of the Group’s taxation
charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of
land value. As at 31 December 2021, the management of the
Group estimated the provision for LAT based on their
understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less
total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for
land use rights, property development costs, borrowing costs
and development expenditure. Provision for LAT in Mainland
China was significant to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group and involved significant management judgement
and interpretation of the relevant tax provisions. Accordingly,
provision for LAT was identified as a key audit matter.
EEEAR—RPENMHEMERER - FIRFAEE
EMEALFAE KEREREBENGAREYE -
Bt ey L E R ([ I8 ER ) REEEF A L
EBAEKED 2 — - MRHEHN T IIRET LR 30%
£ 60% H) R HE B R G + IR ERREUR o 102021512 A 31
H  E5EEEEERELGHEBNBERRKERAIERF
N2 RS 1 IR (E A i S A 5T W) 3R 38 & AR 5RO T HURK
Fx@R(ERLtwERENEEERR  FHEREK
AN~ AEFRACAR R R B S ) (E R AT o IO Bl A EY 3t
REGBRBUHEEBRNGAMBHREAMEBELN - 1LY
NMEBEHHEBENBEBNERAE REE - Bt - +
WIRER B EER A AR EZER -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for
LAT were included in notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements

At EETEBEN ST RERERIANGEE M B®R
FMHEE3 R FEE 10 ©
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Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

BEERAR LR ERBEENEFERA TSI

U]

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(i)

(iv)

(iv)

assessing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the
calculation of the provision for LAT.

APl MAHE LB E R R B R B I B R R R e
Rt RBEEAMIE -

involving our internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the
estimates and assumptions used by the Group and the
evaluation of tax exposure based on communications with
the relevant tax authorities by applying our knowledge and

experience.
BRESENDBHUBER BB EFE T IEEBARRE

TEL PHRBEESEERANMGTEER  WRE
REEARG AN B RIERE S ME SR
BREEITRHE ©

recalculating the tax computation and comparing our
calculations with the amounts recorded by the Group.
BFEEREE UK EFHEAREESECHE
M ERREITHE

assessing the disclosures related to the provision for LAT in
the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREELEE
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FREXEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERERBRYNNEEERERSZE

Net realisable values of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

EEYERFECRTYFEL A ZEFE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s properties under
development ("PUD") and completed properties held for sale
("PHS") located in Mainland China amounting to
RMB22,208,539,000, in aggregate, were stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, which represented 51% of the
Group's total assets.
2021124318 - ERERFPEAMNERYE ([
BYEDRGFEERINE(HFEDEDEHRARY
22,208,539,000 7T * &K AN J Al B3R HE 8K E 5 Bk
HEEBEEEENSI% -

The determination of the net realisable values of PUD and PHS
involves significant management judgement and estimation,
including expected future selling prices, the relevant taxes, and
necessary costs to complete the sale of these properties. The
calculation of the net realisable values for PUD and PHS at the
financial reporting date is performed by the Group
management.
ETEENERSGEMENFIERFESRERNER
B HE R st BREEREARKRERE  EENIERTK
ZEMEEEAFTHKAER - RUMBHREDH - EEWE
REEWENAERFENHEEREREETHE

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable values of PUD and
PHS included:

BEERERMERS
18

(if)

(if)

ENENTRERIENRFRELTE

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the preparation,
monitoring and management of the budgeted construction
and other costs for each PUD;

TEERNSERMECRERY REMK R EE
ﬁ* =B BRAMEN 2R BERIETZA
R

conducting site visits to property development projects,
discussing with the Group’s management the progress and
comparing the observed progress with the latest
development budgets for each property development
project;

HYEHRBEETEMWER  BEEEETEEN®
BHREEENGEAVMEEREENERAEREEM
FEEELE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREELEE

FREEXEE ®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBERP NN EEEARERSE

Net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale (continued)

EEYERGECR I Y A BB FE (E)

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of PUD
and PHS in Mainland China as a key audit matter because of
the significance of these properties to the Group's total assets
and because the assessment of net realisable value is inherently
subjective and requires significant management judgement
and estimation in relation to estimating future selling prices
and future construction costs to completion for PUD which
increases the risk of error or potential management bias.
BB AT BEAERYERGFEYEN T IR FE
REAREFTFE ARARENFHESERLEENEER
M URARATERFENTEAFEETHNE  BF
ZEBEBMMATARKEERRRERYENK IR
YEH B A HIE R A5t Bt E OB EE IR ERAE
R -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for
PUD and PHS are included in notes 2.4, 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
REERVERGEMENSTBERKESAGZAY
BIREMIE24 - 22 %23 ¢
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(iif)

(iif)

(iv)

(iv)

evaluating the management’s valuation methodology and
assessing the key estimates, data inputs and assumptions
adopted in the valuations, which included comparing
expected future average selling prices with available market
data such as recently transacted prices for similar properties
located in the vicinity of each property development project
and comparing costs to complete each property
development project with publicly available construction
cost information for similar properties (taking into account
both property type and location) and the sales budget plans
maintained by the Group;

BREEBSEYEERER 2B THEEEEAF
35 SR (AN A AP 3 i (& R MR B Y R SR (B -
HEREWEERIER TR AEAARESRERY
FRERABH(FERMERBELUE)  REXE
RHAEZHEREFE  FAEERE 2 HEF AT
MEMKA ARMEE W ABERRERER

re-performing the calculations made by the management in
arriving at the year end assessments of net realisable value,
on a sampling basis, and comparing the estimated costs to
complete each property development project with the
Group's updated budgets.
MEEFEERRBHFERAERFEZAM - kI
RESESHMAEEGEYEERIAL TR Z AKX
7N o

evaluating the disclosures of the provision for impairment
loss of PUD and PHS.
SHERGUERYE RS ENEREHRE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

3 7 A% Bl e o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A8 A% Bl e v

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

106

BB ERGESMBERREA
EENEE

EENERAAEETENTREMHRRER
ME N EFERNKGFRERME RN EAE
BRI - WEHEBESERNRBEIRSE
EHERZEBRRELRE  RILAINARE
WEEMAR - BEEMIRABENRTEE
MEMA LB B AREFEE -

EREETESEXANZE  EREEEEE
APETTEEZ TIE TR RELERBAFEN
BEREREM - SRR ] AMFF R R E
£ fERRBBERERBBER T EE
REREGA M BHRERELOLERER - A
HIRRE AR

ERBEEEETEAETEZNBES &S
EREEHE  REEXEREE - BFT

a5l Ko &1 fi F 20 BR R SR R R 1T 28 3R
M MR FEERERBAARE -
AARATEREFARSZERR
REBGEMEENEZRE  ERE
FERMER - ARNRFAEY RSB
woE - ERER ERRIMZEER
M ERES R IE I - BRI R RE 34 3R R HRRE
MEHMMNERERRARER R AREE
IR SRR T B B AR AR B O

g o
ZON

S &5 oy

THRERZABMNAERE  URFHE
ENEZEF EXFEHEHESER
MEENERMERER

AHEEERA BRI E I RIE
HEsH AR MR EN SR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

3 7 A% Bl e o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A o 1E i B LAl 4 i WL i A

Year ended 31 December 2021

BHE201F12A31BILFE

2020
2020
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETT
REVENUE &= 5 8,746,959 10,679,634
Cost of sales HE KA (7,240,810) (9,522,203)
GROSS PROFIT EF 1,506,149 1,157,431
Other income and gains HE MU Rz 5 92,459 64,773
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEMAXT (277,614) (258,419)
Administrative expenses ITHHX (245,710) (226,693)
Other expenses HihFixw (141,662) (20,142)
Fair value (loss)/gains KEYENANTE
on investment properties (E518) s (3,212) 125,670
Finance costs B RS 7 (253,007) (202,330)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE 3 F) & 518
Joint ventures AEME (29,750) (9,879)
Associates kNG 32,542 43,988
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR % A 5 F 6 680,195 674,399
Income tax expense Frig®if 10 (194,751) (288,255)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 485,444 386,144
Attributable to: THEIBRES ¢
Owners of the parent (SYNSETZSPN 141,551 182,627
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 343,893 203,517
485,444 386,144
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A" A T EEERFHE AE(S
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BRER
OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted EARR#E RMB A R RMB A HE
12 0.10 0.13
SRR BB IEAR B BR A ] 109
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%k 1R i B LAt i L i A

Year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 831 BILFE

2020
2020
RMB'000
ARETT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Ht2 M (FE) s
Other comprehensive income that may be RBE1E BRI pEEF 7 52
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods B IR M2 BN
Exchange differences on translation HEGINETS 2 E N Z5E
of foreign operations (21,953) (20,988)
Net other comprehensive loss that may REEZ R EF D ER
be reclassified to profit or loss BEamEt2EEEFE
in subsequent periods (21,953) (20,988)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be RERBEETSET T EE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BEamEm2E (FE) Was -
Equity investments designated at fair value EEBRAFEF AL MEE RS
through other comprehensive income: ZIRERE
Change in fair value NF(EE (74,951) 109,509
(74,951) 109,509
Change in use from an owner-occupied property B RYEREE N AR AT E
to an investment property carried at fair value FIERZ R EWE - 14,351
Income tax effect Frigtis & - (3,588)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that will REEEBRETEEFHES
not be reclassified to profit or loss BaEmHEMEE
in subsequent periods (E518),/ W %58 (74,951) 120,272
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FRHEMEZE (BE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MRFIIE (96,904) 99,284
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FANRERRER
FOR THE YEAR 388,540 485,428
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THATEEEE WS A
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ V=N 44,647 281,911
Non-controlling interests FEIEARRERS 343,893 203,517
388,540 485,428
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
f 7 W B IR DL 2%

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
B 5T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB N 13 789,090 941,547
Investment properties "EYE 15 3,093,300 2,788,700
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16(a) 164,062 163,755
Intangible assets i ﬁ?ﬁ% 14 5,879 7,084
Investments in joint ventures ANEEDPERNKE 17 678,544 180,725
Investments in associates E’\\Hﬁfi%ﬁ AR E 18 3,433,364 2,142,510
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE B 19 447,868 278,034
Other non-current assets Hi3EmeEE 20 20,498 527,709
Equity investments designated at fairvalue 18 FEIRAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income Wz (M2 R EFFAEA
("FvOCI”) 2HEHWE ) R E 21 632,157 643,710
Total non-current assets EmMENEELE 9,264,762 7,673,774
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development GBS E 22 19,575,100 20,327,503
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEND B T 23 2,633,439 2,851,239
Trade receivables B 5 e 27 9,113 1,294
Due from related companies e Uk B RS A B FRIR 41 3,755,083 971,286
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{ ZXIE - }Ri N E e
TRIH 24 3,696,804 3,762,707
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGF AR ((ZAFE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ABRDNEREE 25 574,303 1,934,292
Tax recoverable A Y [B] 7 18 825,464 629,284
Contract cost assets SRR EE 26 132,703 56,610
Inventories FE8 623 523
Cash and bank balances R NIRITHEE 28 2,731,889 6,420,932
Total current assets mEBEERE 33,934,521 36,955,670
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B RENFIENRENEE 29 3,880,873 4,001,807
Other payables, deposits received HEMER e - EliEE R
and accruals ezt & 30 1,346,798 3,166,054
Due to related companies NI NGIE ] 41 3,101,670 4,950,820
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings uf,u\iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬂ 32 2,935,394 3,323,086
Senior notes BEERE 33 1,801,330 2217378
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 15,439 5,164
Contract liabilities BRaE 31 14,686,024 11,384,909
Tax payable FEI T8 10 1,166,193 1,346,693
Provision for financial guarantee contracts BT ERE Bl 34 20,778 -
Total current liabilities U IN=NEEGEE] 28,954,499 30,395,911
SRR BB IEAR B BR A ] 111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 7 B R DL R

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2020
2020 4F
Notes RMB’000
B ARET T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETE 4,980,022 6,559,759
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEAERRBERS
LIABILITIES 14,244,784 14,233,533
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 88817 K E b &K 32 8,889,999 8,825,094
Lease liabilities HeEamE 16(b) 4,048 3,543
Deferred tax liabilities ELETRIBAE 19 136,968 143,125
Total non-current liabilities EmBaEERE 9,031,015 8,971,762
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,213,769 5,261,771
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners KAREEAELER
of the Company
Share capital A&z 35 124,119 124,119
Treasury shares 17D (7) 7)
Reserves s 37 2,598,615 2,635,955
2,722,727 2,760,067
Non-controlling interests FEERER 2,491,042 2,501,704
TOTAL EQUITY RS 5,213,769 5,261,771
Mr. Ma Baohua Ms. Shao Lei
BRELAE BEL L
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
% 7 B i 58 B 5

Year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE 2021 F 12 A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAREAEE
Statutory Non-
Share  Treasury  Merger  Fairvalue Share Capital suplus  Exchange  Retained controling Total
capital shares Teserve feserve  premium Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total  interests equity
EREH

BE ERRG okGE OTERE ROEE EAEE  BE ENRE RERN & IR 28
RVBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  AVBODD  RMBODD  RMBOO  RMBOOO  AMBODD VB0  RMBOID  RMBOWO
ARBTT ARETRL ARBTRL ARETR ARETT ARBTL ARBTR ARETT ARETL ARMTT ARETR ARETR

(Note 35) (Note 37) (Note37) ~ (Note37) ~ (Note37)
(Mt 3s) (HizE37) (aksr)  (WsEsn) (W)
Asat 1 January 2020 RN0ETRIA 124119 63219 1641 631475 82,600 195,686 302 817003 2508818 1517987 4026805
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - IR6 IRET 35T 38614
Other comprehensive income EREMRERE
forthe year: - - - 120272 - - - (20,988) - 99,084 - 99,84
Total comprehensive income EMEENESE
for the year - - - 120272 - - - (0988 182627 2191 203517 485428
Capital contribution from WEBARFEARERTE
non-controling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 863500 863500
Appropriations o statutory ERSITRRRE
surplus reserve - - - - - - 68,79 - (68.79) - - -
Final 2019 dividend WIOERERE - - - - B0es) - - - - (0662 - B
Dividend paid tonon-conolling B MAEEREBRRA ZBRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 83:300) (83300)
As at 31 December 2020 RNNENA3E 124119 (6329 121913 600813 82600°  264482* 12034 930834 2760067 2501704 5261771

REERERARA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021

Share
capital

Bx
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note 35)
(FyzE35)

Treasury
shares

ERRH
RME'000
ARRTR

HE2021F12A31BIEEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAARAAER

Merger Fairvalue

reserve

reserve

Share
premium

Capital
reserve

affRE AVERR ROER EARG
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTT ARMTL ARBTR AR%TR

(Note37)
(Wik3)

(Note 37)
(537

(Note 37)
(337

Non-
controlling
interests

Statutory

surplus  Exchange
reserve  reserve equity
EER

Bt ENRE REEH £t FEREE  ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR
(Note 37)

(Kt37)

Retained Total

profits Total

Asat 1 January 2021 RNnETRA 124119 (7) 623279 121913 600,813 82,600 264,482 12,034 930,834 2,760,067 2,501,704 5,261,771
Profitfor the year EREF| - - - - - - - - 141551 141,551 343,803 485,444
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREM2EEE - - - (74951) - - - (21983 - (96,904) - (96,904)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ANGES

for the year - - - (74951) - - - (21953) 141,551 44,647 343893 388,540
Tanfer of airvalue reserveupon — INEERATEF AL 2E

the disposal of FYOCI WakERATERE - - - (56410) - - - - 56410 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling nterest B 31k 12 - - (44782) - - - - - - (44782) (512,555) (557,337)
Capital contribution from WEBARFEERRR LA

non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 247,500 247,500
Appropriations o statutory ERTETRBRER

surplus reserve - - - - - - 25184 - (25184) - - -
Final 2020 dividend WERERE = = - - (37,209 - = = - (37,205 - (37,203
Dividend paid tonon-controllng 2 MIEHERERRA ZRE

interests - - - - - - - - - - (89,500) (89,500
As at 31 December 2021 N ESVERE 124119 (7) 578,497%  (9,448)* 563,608*  82,600* 289,666*  (9,919) 1,103,611 2,722,727 2,491,082 5,213,769

*

(2020: RMB2,635,955,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB2,598,615,000

*
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2021 EZE2021F 12 A31 HIEFE

2020
2020
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR 5 A1 A 680,195 674,399
Adjustments for: HTIIFIBELFE
Depreciation of items of property, ME BEMIEEETE
plant and equipment 6,13 46,037 23,201
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,16 16,593 15,532
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih A & ey 6,14 1,205 710
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMENKEEE
plant and equipment 2 WiEs (6) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB ARz Wa 5 (13,335) (1,369)
Impairment loss recognised for HERIHFEWERER
completed properties for sales ZRIERE 6,23 87,623 3,932
Impairment loss recognised for property, WE - BEMRIEER
plant and equipment ZRIERE 6,13 54,734 -
Impairment provision for financial assets SFAFBNFIE - EfE
included in prepayments, other HIERHMEER
receivables and other assets, net SREERERETFE (2,165) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: financial N EEE (W) FE
assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFERABRN
S RVEE 38,699 (13,524)
Dividend income from FVOCI and FVTPL RERAFEFAEMETE
Iz Rz A ERABR
YRR S 5 (32,332) (15,154)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures — JEAE & & 1> 2 & Bt & N T
and associates e ) K 18 (2,792) (34,109)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMENRTEED
properties 3,212 (125,670)
Finance costs BA S B AR 7 253,007 202,330
Interest income F B A 5 (42,867) (25,535)
1,087,808 704,743
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—g-—gey 11D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

S 7 B4 i B R

Year ended 31 December 2021 &(ZFE 2021 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREETIT
Decrease in properties under development and FEPRFELEERIME
completed properties held for sale 8D 1,957,921 3,477,021
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEgEm /s (100) 367
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SRREIZR & () /m (477,340) 428,577
Increase in pledged deposits [z EiiEE -yl (12,673) (1,211
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 e IE (38 ), (7,819) 4,734
Increase in prepayments, deposits and i‘Eﬁmlﬁ & K EH Ab FEWGRIE
other receivables 0 (854,620) (783,380)
Increase in contract cost assets & ’JEX$>§)X1 pill (76,093) (365)
(Increase)/decrease in due from related companies F’&“W RAEE N B ZRIB (32 0) /R (23,553) 155,621
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables ZHENE IE&TEHmTJf
ORAA) 73840 (27,407) 1,000,914
Decrease in other payables, deposits HAMERAFIE - BliRe R
received and accruals FEzT B RR A (152,074) (2,153,981)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBREEN 3,301,115 168,283
Increase/(decrease) in due to related companies JEF BRS A m 2 IE RS o0 G d) 10,647 (59,750)
Cash generated from operations REMBES 4,725,812 2,941,573
Interest received = W R B 42,867 26,654
Interest paid BERFE (1,182,504) (892,082)
Tax paid [RENEAE (747,422) (648,235)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMEHRSRETHE 2,838,753 1,427,910

11 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021F 12831 BILFE

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
B 5T AREETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDFFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEME  WENMEKEEREE
plant and equipment (93,527) (406,231)
Disposal of items of property, HEME - HER&HIEE
plant and equipment 114 1,339
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMERLEE - (2,087)
Purchase of investment properties EEREME (307,812) (302,262)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not accounted R ARV BEBEEH 2
for as a business combination g ¢ - (1,414,943)
Investment in joint ventures and associates A& SN ¥ KBS N T 2 1RE (1,731,453) (1,300,508)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B8 JEs AR 25 (557,337) (175,000)
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries Y B&HT B A &) B9FE [ 7R 1E - (270,540)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE T 39 (305) (105)
Purchase of FVOCI BERATESAREMEEKE (438,834) (207,478)
Disposal of FVOC| HEZATEFAE MR K 375,436 -
Purchases of FVTPL BERATERABR (397,537) (1,920,768)
Disposal of FVTPL HERNTFER AEZR 1,718,827 -
Dividend income from FVOCI and FVTPL KEEAFEGTAEMEE YR
M N FEFABERN
B2 32,332 -
Advances to third parties DES=YSE-EN (344,503) (3,854,474)
Settlement of advances to third parties EHERAE=F8ZK 833,556 3,623,371
Advances to related companies Bl NG EE 41 (5,536,033) (1,719,542)
Settlement of advances to related companies 45 & [a) BB A 724 50 41 2,702,191 1,488,397
Net cash flows used in investing RETBHMARESREFHE
activities (3,744,885) (6,460,831)

FAERERARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2021 &(ZFE 2021 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
B 5T AREETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METDFFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FEFEIRAR 5251 &
shareholders 247,500 863,500
Dividend paid BEIRE (37,205) (30,662)
Dividends paid to non-controlling IRAS T IEIE AR AR SR A A% B,
shareholders (89,500) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BB FEROR L8 n) 2,088,331 (2,192,830)
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEBEMNK 16 (7,394) (7,005)
Advances from third parties E=ZHERR 186,850 18,706
Repayment of advances from third parties B35 = H 8 5 (1,119,246) (951,218)
Advances from related companies NGRS 41 7,869,860 18,653,421
Repayment of advances from related E¥eda) UNEIELE N
companies 41 (9,635,699) (14,276,802)
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes 1 T{B S EIEFT1EEXIR 1,762,075 2,192,519
Repayment of senior notes EEBELRE (2,127,378) -
Proceeds from interest-bearing bankand 588817 & B8 R FT1S IE
other borrowings 7,556,639 9,741,087
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB BRIT R EMEK
other borrowings (7,879,426) (8,353,726)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BMETE (A FERESRE
financing activities FE (1,184,593) 5,656,990
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASEINCASH RERBRELZEY ORL), N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE (2,090,725) 624,069
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMIRNEEEY
of year 3,518,324 2,894,255
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 1,427,599 3,518,324
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRASEEVEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IB& MIRTTE 64 28 2,731,889 6,420,932
Less: Restricted cash W ZRHRE 28 1,185,878 708,538
Pledged deposits e iEE=N 28 118,412 2,194,070
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS RERERFARER
STATED IN THE STATEMENT REeZEY
OF CASH FLOWS 1,427,599 3,518,324

11 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEBER

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman KRR AE—HRFASHSFMAINE
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Sertus e /=] I /N = (5 it == o 1 =
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite
P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands. #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box
2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands ©
The Company is an investment holding company. During the year ended AR A —HEREERAR - REZRE
31 December 2021, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were 2021 F 12 A31BIEFE - AEBEBRKE
involved in property development, hotel operations, property THEARMERMERZ HEL
investment and exhibition operation. B FEHERERZRER -
Information about subsidiaries B AT E R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARAREEBHB AR ZFFIBWOT :
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AR, R B A L
B A R R BHIAR & i 2 AMBRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Directly held:
HEREF:
Yin Cheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 100% Investment holding
16 January 2018
EBRLES/ 50,0003 7T REER
20181 A 16 H
Indirectly held
B#EEE
Yinjiacheng Holding Limited Hong Kong of China/ HKS1 100% Investment holding
6 February 2018
REFERERLDA hEEE, 1787 REER
201852 H6H

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

ArEIREEER #)

(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMBRAEE KRESRESL FTEXER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Nanjing Yingang Enterprise People’s Republic US$1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Consulting Co,, Ltd.* of China ("PRC")/
(“Nanjing Yingang") Mainland China/
21 March 2018
ARBECEEREABRAF R ARKME 1,000,000% 7T REZR
([RAREE]) (THhED),/
B,
201853 A21H
Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 24 September 2009
(“Nanjing Yincheng”)
HRRH B ERRARA R R, REAL, AR S50000000007T R ER g
([FEREI]) 20094 9 A 24 H
Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 1 August 2002
HRAHE I ERRARA R hE/hER, AR 200000007 R ER g
20028 A1 H
Nanjing Hongquan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB98,567,555 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 15 January 2013
BRLEEHEREER DA hE/hERN,  ARK985675557T iR
201351 A15H
Nanjing Hongyou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB236,756,621 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 15 January 2013
BRI ERRARA R hE/hER, AR 236756621 7T R ER g
201351 A15H
Nanjing Yinguang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 18 April 2014

BRBERBENEARAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinzhuo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 21 April 2014
HRIEEZEMEREFRAR hE/hER, AR 3000000007 R ER g
201454721 H
Nanjing Yicheng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd** 25 November 2014
HRPEEHMEREFRAR hE/hER, AR S500000007T R ER g
2014611 A 258
Nanjing Eastern Senior Living Health PRC/Mainland China/ RMB964,000,000 100% Elderly service and
Industry Co., Ltd.** ("Eastern Senior”) 25 March 2015 hospital management
HRERTRFRREERR hE/hER, AR 9640000007T RERBRERER
BRAR = ([RAEF]) 201593 A25H
Nanjing Yinlan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 25 September 2014
AREECEEERR LA hE/hER, AR 20000007T REER
201459 A 25H
Nanjing Mahui Property Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB325,000,000 88% Property development
Co.,, Ltd*** 19 June 2004
HREEBEEARDFE hE/hER, AR 3250000007 R AR
200456 A 19H
Nanjing Jiayuncheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 51% Property development
Development Co.,, Ltd.*** 29 September 2016
(“Nanjing Jiayuncheng”)
HREEREEREERAR hE/hER, AR 1000000007 R ER g
([FAREER]) 20169 A29H
Nanjing Jiuchengxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB102,040,800 50% Property development
Development Co.,, Ltd.*** 29 September 2016
(“Nanjing Jiuchengxing”) (Note (a))
BRNHERE EREERA R hE/hER, AR 1020408007 B ER g
(TR RSB ]) (PR EE (a) 201649 A29H

SR BIFE R B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMBRAEE KRESRESL FTEXER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinjiazhan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB51,510,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 14 October 2016
BAREEHCEERERAA hE/hER,  ARES15100007T REER
201610 A 14 A
Nanjing Yinxing New Material PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Technology
Technology Co,, Ltd** 12 September 2017
BRREHM R R AR AR > hE/RER, AR 1000000007T RERMTER
2017594121
Wuxi Century Garden Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB420,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 14 March 2007
EHH LR NERRAR AR hE/hER, AR 4200000007T iR
200743 A 14 H
Suzhou Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 70% Property development
Co.,, Ltd*** 4 July 2017
FMNRER ERB AR AR hE/hER, AR 2000000007 AR
20175748
Sunac (Jiangsu) Real Estate Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 50% Property development
(“Sunac (Jiangsu)") (Note (a)) 24 May 2017
RAIO1E) X B R hE/hER, AR 3000000007T R AR
(T@el OI&k) ) (Pt @) 2017524 H
Nanjing Changtuo Real Estate Co., Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 50% Property development
(“Nanjing Changguo”) (Note (a)) 5 January 2018
HREREHEGRA R hE/hER, AR 200000007 R ER g
(TRRE¥R]) (P @) 20181 A5H
Wuxi Yifeng Real Estate Co,, Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB160,000,000 35% Property development
("Wuxi Yifeng") (Note (a)) 12 October 2011
EHRYBERRDFE hE/hER, AR 1600000007 R AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMBRAEE KRESRESL FTEXER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Hefei Yincheng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 11 April 2018
BRFHEEREARA R hE/hER, AR 5000000007T R ER g
201854 A11H
Nanjing Yinjiabin Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 22 January 2018
BAREERCEERERAA hE/hERE, ARY10100007T REER
201851 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiapu Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 22 January 2018
HRERBCEERERAA hE/hER, AR 10000007 REER
201851 A 22 H
Wuxi Yincheng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 1 August 2005
EHEHEMEREERAR R REAL, AR 1,0000000007T R ER g
20058 A1 H
Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 1 February 2018
HREERCEERERAA hE/hER, AR S500000007T REER
201852418
Xuzhou Changshun Real Estate Co., Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
24 February 2014
BMRIEE EHRAR hE/hER, AR 200000007 R ER g
201452 A 24 H
Zhejiang Yinze Real Estate Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,010,000 100% Property development
14 May 2018
IR EEESREEAR hE/hER, AR 1000100007T i B

20185 A14H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021

2021512 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Zhenjiang Hengrun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB105,000,000 33% Property development
Development Co.,, Ltd.*** 9 April 2018
("Zhenjiang Hengrun") (Note (a))
BIEERMEREERAR ™ hE/hER, AR 1050000007 R ER g
(M#TEHE]) (5 @) 20184 A9A
Hangzhou Yinhong Industrial Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB400,000,000 100% Property development
11 February 2018
MMNRABERREE AR R REIRM, AR 400,000,000 7T iR
201852 A11H
Nanjing Airport Exhibition Investment PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 49% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.*** 18 August 2017
(“Nanjing Airport”) (Note (a))
AREEGRIRAERARAF hE/hER, AR 2000000007 REER
(TRamZE ) (P EE @) 2017F8A18H
Jiangyin Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd** 24 October 2018
TRFBREMEREFR DR REREIRH, AR 100,000,000 7T Rt AR
2018 10 A 24 A
Xuzhou Yincheng Real Estate Development  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 3 August 2018
WINRIAE R B AR R R RERERM, AR 100,000,000 7T R AR
201858 A3 H
Wuxi Tianhong Lixin Real Estate Consulting ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 65% Property development
Co,, Ltd*** 29 March 2016
BHRAFERUELZDERAG ™ FE/RERM, AR 1000000007 R ERE
201653 A29H
New Town Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB637,428,300 65% Property development
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd.*** ("Wuxi New Town") 12 December 2005
TEHERS (B) BRAF R RBER, AR 637428300 7T R AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

REBRIEAR AT
B —EERg

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Nanjing Zhijun Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000,000 25% Property development
Co,, Ltd.*** ("Nanjing Zhijun") (Note (a)) 18 April 2019
HREERMERTEERAR ™ R, REAL, AR 1,0000000007T R ER g
(FAREE]) (M3 @) 2019F4A18H
Nanjing Jiuhong Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 22 April 2019
BRALEHERBEFR DR RE BN, AR 50000000 7T iR
201954 A 22 H
Jiangsu Shantui Construction Machinery PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 80% Property development
Co.,, Ltd.*** 15 May 2003
BRI TR MR IR A ) RE BN, AR 200000007T iR
200355 A15H
Nanjing Yinjiamu Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB193,000,000 51% Investment holding
Co.,, Ltd.*** 10 July 2019
BAREFACEEEHRAF hE/hER, AR 1930000007 REER
201947 A 10H
Hangzhou Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB15,384,600 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 9 September 2019
MMBRREEEBBR AR hE/hER,  AR153846007T REER
201959 H9H
Yixing Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd** 18 October 2019
HEREFMEREAR QR hE/hER, AR 200000007 e
2019610418 H
Nanjing Yincheng Medical Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Medical management
Co, Ltd** 4 November 2019
HRRMERERARAR hE/hER, AR 1000000007T BEEE
201911 A48
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021

1.
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2021512 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Zhejiang Linan Zhongdu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 29 April 2003
HIRLhBEEERDE hE/hER, AR 3000000007 ESk
200354 A29H
Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan Hotel PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Hotel operation
Co, Ltd** 13 January 2006
MM 285 LB B S AR A A RE BN, AR 50000000 7T BIEEE
200651 413 H
Nanjing Yinjiagin Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB278,430,000 35% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.*** (“Nanjing Yinjiagin”) (Note (a)) 3 December 2019
BREFNCEEEERAF hE/hER, AR 2784300007 REER
([FamiRE0 ) (i 5E ) 2019F 12 A3H
Xuzhou Tongshun Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB360,806,000 100% Property development
6 November 2019
BMRIERE ERBE AR AR hE/hER, AR 3608060007 R ER g
201911 A6 A
Nanjing Yinrun Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 9 March 2020
BARIECEERAR AR hE/hER, AR 20000007T REER
202053 H9H
Nanjing Yinyuan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 12 March 2020
BARETCEERRR LA hE/hER, AR 20000007T REER
202053 A12H
Wuxi Yinzebo Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 16 July 2020
EHIREDCEERERAA hE/hER, AR 1000000007 REER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMBRAEE KRESRESL FTEXER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Changshu Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 24 September 2020
PRABEEHEREARLR RE BN, AR 20000000 7T iR %
202059 A 24 H
Wenzhou Yinju Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 20 April 2020
BMBEEHEREEREERR hE/hER, AR 2000000007T iR
202054 A20H
Hefei Yinfeng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000,000 60% Property development
Co.,, Ltd.*** 21 May 2020
BRFEEERE AR AR hE/hER, AR 5000000007T R ER g
202055421 H
Wuxi Chengxiang Real Estate Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
("Wuxi Chengxiang”) 30 May 2019
EHPEBERR LA RE BN, AR 20000,0007T iR
(E:32E =) 20195 A30H
Wuxi Xinfa Jiayuan Real Estate Co,, Ltd*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB260,000,000 50% Property development
("Xinfa Jiayuan”) (Note (a)) 8 May 2019
EEMREEREERARDE hE/hER, AR 2600000007 AR
(M#rEER ) (PR @) 20195 A 8A
Wuxi Yinzexian Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 16 July 2020
EHIWBBLEERERAA hE/hER, AR 10000007 REER
202057 A 16 H
Hangzhou Qingcheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB151,515,200 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 28 May 1998
("Hangzhou Qingcheng”)
MME R EERE AR AR hE/hER, ARM1515152007T R ER g
(T EH) 19984 5 A28 H
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMRAEE REEREIL TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Wenzhou Yinjiahui Enterprise Management  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 70% Property development
Co.,, Ltd.*** 29 October 2020
BMBEECEEEFREFRR RERERM, AR 10000000 7T iR %
202010 A 29
Changshu Shajiabang China Ting Land PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 28 September 2018
EAMDRBESE AR AR hE/hER, AR 200000007 B ER g
201859 A28 H
Wuxi Xuelang Changguang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd.** ("Xuelang Changguang”) 17 February 2020
EHERREEEARAR RE BN, AR 200000007T iR %
(IBRrRRE]) 202062 A17H
Grateful Bay Limited** British Virgin Islands US$1,505,000,000 100% Investment holding
29 May 2020
RERUHS 1,505,000,000 % 7T REZR
202055 429 H
Nanjing Yinquan Real Estate Co, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 51% Property development
(note (b)) 4 June 2021
HRRREMEREERAA hE/hER, AR 200000007 B ER g
(Pt 5E (b)) 20216 A48
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER®)
(Continued)
Actual
Place and date percentage of
of incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L ith B A e
MEDR REHURERLE HAMBRAEE KRESRESL FTEXER
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE  (4)
Nanjing Xinyanyuanjin Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 51% Property development
18 March 2021
HRERTREHEREERAF RE BN, AR 20000000 7T iR %
202143 418 H
Nanjing Xinyan Decoration Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 51% Property decoration
15 July 2021
HREREREENHARAA R RERM, AR 20000007T B3 HE A1
202157 A15H
Jiangyin Yinguang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
20 May 2021
TREERMEREERAR hE/hER, AR 200000007 R ER g
202155 420 H

3 L8R is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

*%

These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

¥** These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company's control over them.

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC represent the best
efforts made by the management of the Company to translate the Chinese names of
these companies as they do not have official English names. The legal form of these
principal PRC subsidiaries disclosed above is limited liability company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

130

MAREN, BEHEL mRAME FIER ARER, AR
and #1 % f£ & are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group mainly
because the Group owns 51% of the voting rights according to the articles
of association and the supplemental agreement regarding voting
arrangement entered into between the shareholders, through which the
Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with these entities
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over these
entities.

BRI CT#R) and R %27 are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
mainly because the Group owns 100% of the voting rights according to the
supplemental agreement regarding voting arrangement, which entered
into between the shareholders of & &l (0T &) and @ & %= &, through
which the Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
these entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its power

over these entities.

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiary
as collateral to an asset management company as at 31 December 2021.

1.

RAIREERER &

HsE@) -

FEE D) :

MREN EHEL BARAME.
HIER BREE  BRRZLR
HBERARIAAEENHBRR -
TZRAARBEAMERLBRZME
BRIWBANKRL ORI ZE - A
SEEESINNRAE  AEEFE
BREZEERNEBERESHE
O3 - WHEDBERBEZEEROE
NHEZFLR -

BAIOTE) R REBARIIBALE
EHHEAR T2RAZAEER
ERAIOTE) B R BRRZHET
NABERRLHNHIT G EES 100%
MR ERE B AREH2EZE
BEREBHIPMBRZ RN - Wk
BREHZSFEBNEIZEZSM
e

ANEE 2021 12 A31 B T HIH B
REIMBRIEIEAEKIFME EZEETE
EERAT -

Percentage of equity
pledged as at

31 December 2021
R2021F12831H
EHEAREEIL

R REEREER DA

Under the aforesaid arrangements, the Group is obliged to purchase at a
fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the borrowings from the
asset management company.

In addition, the Group retains the power to control these companies in the
ordinary course of business by confirmation from the legal equity holder. In
this regard, considering the facts that the substance of the arrangements is
to collateralise some equity interests in these companies for the borrowings
for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project companies so
as to obtain benefits from the operating activities of these project
companies, the directors of the Company are of the view that the financial
position and operating results of these companies should be consolidated
into the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
(which include all standards and interpretations approved by the IASB,
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs"), Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the IASB that remain in effect),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income ("“FVOCI") and other
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current portion of interest-bearing
bank, other borrowings and senior notes amounted to RMB4,736,724,000
while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,427,599,000.
Such condition indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors consider that the Group has
taken various measures and will have adequate funds available to enable
it to operate as a going concern, taken into account the past operating
performance of the Group and the following:

(M) Up to the date of approval of this consolidated financial
information, the Company successfully consummated exchange
offer and consent solicitation with respect of senior notes in
aggregate amount of US$95,965,000 (approximate
RMB611,844,000), which has effectively extended the maturity
date in March 2023, improving the liquidity of the Group. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
4 March 2022.

(i) The Group will also continue to seek for other alternative financing
and bank borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.

(i) The Group continues to implement measures to accelerate the
pre-sales and sales of its properties under development and
completed properties, and to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and other receivables.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (ontinued) 2.1 RBE%E »)

Going Concern Basis (Continued)

(iv)  The Group continues to monitor capital expenditure to balance
and relieve cash resource to support operations.

(v)  The Group continues to take action to tighten cost controls over
various operating expenses.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due within the next twelve months from 31
December 2021. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, given the volatility of the property sector in
China and the uncertainties to obtain continuous support by the banks
and the Group's creditors, material uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans and measures
as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
information.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
Group) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021

2021512 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

134

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial
assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are
dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based
on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”") and United
States dollars based on the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") as at 31 December 2021. The Group expects that HIBOR
will continue to exist and the interest rate benchmark reform has
not had an impact on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. For
the LIBOR-based borrowings, since the interest rates of these
instruments were not replaced by RFRs during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply the above-mentioned practical expedient upon the
modification of these instruments provided that the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met. Additional information about the
transition and the associated risks is disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months.
Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group as the Group does not have any rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021

2021512 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group does not early adopt the following IFRSs which were in issue
as at 31 December 2021 but are not yet effective for the financial year

ended 31 December 2021:
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Insurance Contracts>*

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

: No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January

2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3
should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 © fE 1B R 4 X HY B BR B 7%

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments on the Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 © fE 1B R 4 X HY B BR B 7%

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as
follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 S A HENE &)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity instruments
designated at FVOCI at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, properties
under development, completed properties held for sale and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g,, a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties )iyl

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT ATHARBAREBERREE S - i
(@  the party s a person or a close member of that person’s family and @ BEABR—BATHZALTHER

that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
or E19

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b)
applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Motor vehicles 24%
Office equipment and electronic devices 19% to 32%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for
owned property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-
of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a
transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs
to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to its occupied gross
floor area ("GFA”") to the total occupied GFA. Construction costs relating
to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common construction
costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA similar to land
costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leasehold land 3510 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and vehicles that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss, and at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held
for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
the end of each of the reporting period. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables, deposits received and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 &

156

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are held by the Company or the Group
(treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s and the Group’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are not
restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021

2021512 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a.

160

Sale of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the physical possession, or
the legal title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the consideration
is probable.

Project management services

Project management services income derived from the provision
of support services in connection with development of property
projects is recognised when the relevant services are rendered,
and the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.

Hotel and catering service.

Hotel and catering services are primarily derived from the rental of
rooms, food and beverage sales and other ancillary goods and
services, including but not limited to souvenir, laundry, parking
and conference reservation. Each of these products and services
represents an individual performance obligation and, in exchange
for these services, we receive fixed amounts based on published
rates or negotiated contracts. Payment is due in full at the time
when the services are rendered or the goods are provided. Room
rental revenue is recognised on a daily basis when rooms are
occupied. Food and beverage revenue and other goods and
services revenue are recognised when they have been delivered
or rendered to the guests as the respective performance
obligations are satisfied.

Exhibition services

Revenue from providing exhibition services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the related services are rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria
are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset related. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 & K€ HBEME 2

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at
the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve), over the period in
which the service and, where applicable, the performance conditions are
fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified award,
provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain proportion of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains
and losses that are adjustments to interest costs include the interest rate
differences between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the entity
had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing costs
actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are
estimated based on forward currency rates at the inception of the
borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences eligible
for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is limited to
the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for the
functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred for
foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did not
meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not be
capitalised in subsequent years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHEME»)

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. E AEi¥EE G =)

166

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate is based on whether the Group is determined to have control,
joint control or significant influence over the investee, which involves
judgements through the analysis of various factors, including the
Group's representation on the chief decision-making authorities of an
investee, such as the board of directors’ meetings and shareholders’
meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their assets, liabilities
and transactions are included line-by-line in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, whereas the interests in joint ventures and
associates are equity accounted for as investments in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed by the parties to the contract provides the
Group with a significant benefit of financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a significant
financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group is required by the
government to place all deposits and periodic payments received from
the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder account, the Group is able to
benefit from those advance payments as it can withdraw money from
that account to pay for expended construction costs on the project. The
advance payments received in effect reduce the Group's need to rely on
other sources of financing.

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception of
the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not updated
for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as a change in
credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that the payment is
received until the transfer of goods to the customers is completed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

Provision for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's historical experience and the nature of the subject
properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of
completion of properties under development, and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based on
management'’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain of its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties under construction carried at fair value were
revalued at each reporting date based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
existing market conditions at the end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to the
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate capitalisation rates and expected profit margin.
The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2021 was
RMB3,093,300,000 (2020: RMB2,788,700,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are given in note
15 to the financial statements.
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3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was RMB13,222,000 (2020:
RMB9,642,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2021 was RMB812,333,000 (2020: RMB808,362,000).Further details are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s businesses
which include property development, property leasing, the provision of
project management services, hotel and exhibition operations. Property
leasing, the provision of project management services, hotel and
exhibition operations are not significant in revenue contribution. Thus,
property development is the only reportable operating segment of the
Group, and no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation in
Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi - HMRARKE
Revenue represents income from the sale of properties, project WHEREFEFENMEEER A - IBH
management income, hotel and exhibition operations and rental ERRA BEREREBRESWA -

income during the reporting year.

An analysis of revenue is as follows: HRERHDITNT -
2020
2020
RMB'000
ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers FKEEFEAIR K 8,695,149 10,663,274
Revenue from other sources K B E b AR B 7
Rental income WA 51,810 16,360
8,746,959 10,679,634
Revenue from contracts with customers  REZF SRS
Types of goods or services 7 AR 7% 2 B
Sale of properties L Fick= 8,563,830 10,589,619
Project management service HB BB ARTE 95,226 30,489
Hotel operation R AR 27,859 40,290
Exhibition operation income FREZEWA 8,234 2,876
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEFE MBI = 8,695,149 10,663,274
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 32 TE B B R
Recognised at a point in time: RE—FBER
Revenue from sale of properties PERZES S0l E 8,563,830 10,589,619
Revenue from hotel operation R BB E A8 & B as 16,944 23,165
Recognised over time: R—BEREER
Revenue from project management REIEEB BEMNKE 95,226 30,489
Revenue from hotel operation R BB E & R E 10,915 17,125
Revenue from exhibition operation REERLENY S 8,234 2,876
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERFPE AR 8,695,149 10,663,274
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance

obligations satisfied in previous periods:
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Wz - HMlmA R )

TRETRAHFERNEAEZANESE
HIWNABGNBEZI WS - IR
ABERMEXZ BOE EER 2 W E

-

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBF T
Revenue recognised that was included in RIMEBIAESLHEEN
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BRI
reporting period: 7,335,973 5520419
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETF T
Other income Hih A & Wzt
Interest income FEWA 42,867 25,535
Others Hih 1,784 2,725
44,651 28,260
Gains Wz
Dividend income from FVOCI and FVTPL REBERAFEGFAEMEZE
Wz R AT ERT ABRD
LT ON 32,332 15,154
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEME A T e (FEE39) 13,335 1,369
Forfeiture of deposits RiES 1,086 1,463
Government grants B Eh 976 5,003
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WE REE 2 WS
plant and equipment 79 -
Fair value gains from financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABZNEREEN
NEEK S = 13,524
47,808 36,513
92,459 64,773
RN BIFR ZEARB BR A A 171
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBMBRBMAIGERTIE A TEIEN
B (GTA)&ER
2020
2020
Notes RMB'000
BisE AREFTT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 23 7,046,579 9,503,029
Project management costs I8 B EEA AR 70,690 15,143
Operating costs for leased out properties Hﬂ“ﬁ#@% A AL 2 B R 9,857 4,705
Exhibition costs RGN 3,848 997
Hotel operation costs /@Ei«( BN 22,213 23,441
Impairment loss recognised for BHEELENDRIYE
completed properties for sales WRAAEBE 23 87,623 3,932
Impairment loss recognised for property, FLYIZE ~ &= MR IEER
plant and equipment BEEE 13 54,734 -
Depreciation of items of property, ME BMENREHEEWE
plant and equipment 13 46,037 23,201
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 16(a) 16,593 15,532
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ E{th £ /2 & &= 2k 85 14 1,205 710
Loss on disposal of items of property ng?*ﬁ]i WE & R &R B
plant and equipment KA 73 -
Expenses relating to short-term leases MEAHE MEEEEE
and leases of low-value assets BEMBHFEX 16(c) 2,364 2,199
Auditors’ remuneration % 85 Al 357 B 3,800 3,000
Changes in fair value of investment REMENTEES
properties 3,212 (125,670)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEEER (W) F8E -
financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZNEREE
profit or loss 38,699 (13,524)
Employee benefit expense (including EERAMFAL (BIEEEN
directors’ and chief executive's FEITHA B H B
remuneration (note 8): (MfzEs) -
Wages and salaries HehIE 296,262 183,545
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSFERIRLE
social welfare & 41,200 39,816
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BHRAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: SR ASITAT

2021 2020

2021 fF 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT

Interest on interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREAME AR
other borrowings, and senior notes BAEEEFE 1,131,922 1,011,867
Interest expense arising from revenue contracts Wz & KIE A F BB X 384,852 313,401
Interests on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) BEaERE (H3E16b)) 1,367 1,042
1,518,141 1,326,310
Less: Interest capitalised o BREFE (1,265,134) (1,123,980)
253,007 202,330
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. BEERITTHASEH
REMUNERATION
Directors” and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed B ETRAMIEE QA RIEME
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(M@) b)) ORNEEAT(HEE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ERNGEZER)ROE 2B BENRNEEE
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: ENTETHRAESFMUOT -
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARBTT
Fees wE 790 804
Other emoluments: Hibile -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RZELREWEN 3,986 4,121
Performance-related bonuses RIZAEHTEAL 2,087 6,954
Pension scheme contributions and EEZeitalERELEREF
social welfare 606 378

7,469 12,257
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFETHRAEFHM =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RAFEEZNTBIIERTESD
year were as follows: MEWT :

2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREEFIT

Mr.Lam Ming Fai BB A 245 252

Mr. Chan Peng Kuan PR IB S5 & 245 252

Mr. Chen Shi Min PR tH B 5 A 300 300
790 804

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent HEIFE1NANBEIEFEL &

non-executive directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 TEN T ERITESMEMENS

(2020: Nil). (20204F : £&) »

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) FITEERIEHITES

Pension

Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance- contributions
and benefits related and social Total
in kind bonuses welfare remuneration

BExS

e 2ER ATRIERR
BUERN REHHBIEA HEREF Hact
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®BTR AR®TR AR¥TxR

2021 20216

Executive directors: HITES:

— Mr. Ma Bao Hua — BRELE 380 765 100 1,245

— Mr.Zhu Li —KNEE 351 467 11 929

— Mr. Wang Zheng —EBEAE 383 417 11 911

— Ms. Shao Lei — Bt 391 438 11 940
1,505 2,087 433 4,025

Non-executive directors: HEHRTEE

— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —mETEEE 1,963 - 63 2,026

— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HRNEE 518 - 110 628
2,481 = 173 2,654
3,986 2,087 606 6,679
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERFETHAEFM =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) MITEERFEHITES (&)
(Continued)
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances  Performance-  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
BE%
e 2R HE 50
BEWREN RIBEMBIEA HEEH A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL AREBTT ARETT AR®TR

2020 20205
Executive directors: PTESE:
— Mr. Ma Bao Hua — SRELE 400 841 63 1,304
— Mr.Zhu Li —KNkE 407 841 63 1311
— Mr.Wang Zheng — THREE 444 841 63 1,348
— Ms. Shao Lel — @t 437 841 63 1341
1,688 3,364 252 5,304
Non-executive directors: FHTES
— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —F#=BTEE 1916 3,290 63 5,269
— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —WERAEE 517 300 63 880
2433 3,590 126 6,149
4121 6,954 378 11,453
Mr. Ma Bao Hua is the chief executive officer and an executive BRELE BN RNRINITHREH TR
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which WITES - NAFE - BIEESN
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any FE2ITHA BMELRBEMEEM
remuneration during the year. M2 HE o
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31 December 2021

10.

176

2021512 A31H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 were all directors. Details of those directors’
remuneration are set out in note 8 above.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in
or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands, the Group's subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group'’s subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
the PRC corporate income tax ("CIT") rate of 25% for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing
costs and other property development expenditures. The Group has
estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval
by the local tax bureau.

9.

10.

FEERSHMES

H 22021128318 K&2020%12 A 31
BEFE AEEaFMEENASE
o ZEEENHFMFBI N XM
80

8%

REBMBERAEERKE QAR M RER
FrEM B el AR E A SR E £/ T
BREREELMMET - RERSHES
LRBREZEHEMNHBRANESR  ~&E
RHASHEENMNRBRZEETMAIE
WERARBESMNIMAMEH ~EE
NN R g VA= LI N NS R EL s
B AARZARIEZ2021F12A31H
IEFEWENRBBERIELENEMER
s F o

AEBRHPEARMELENHERRFA
PRI 25% R R BN B RAEHR(E
EREHRD -

3 32 (B Y T 3% BB 30% Z 60% K 2R
R TR ERSR - TG EEAEY
EIHEMERERANEAS (BiELi
BN ~ 8 SRAK AN & B 5 b 2 5 5 B
) o AEBRBEEBP R AR RE
BORE BT IR ER G - R RE
RETEEE - THISEHBEAEHRS
RIS BRI T RS BRI o

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Current tax: BIEAFRIA
PRC CIT AT PR 347,473 268,329
PRC LAT A T M IE(E T 23,269 137,494
Deferred tax RIERIA (175,991) (117,568)
Total tax charge for the year from KEAFERESEBNFERNTTIE
continuing operations X HaEE 194,751 288,255
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at
the effective income tax rate for each reporting period is as follows:

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

10. Fr8® =)

REMEHE - RABREKRI DM B
REEMAERDAERIDAERERFTE
R T AR FE B R SR X SR B
RATSHEAENMERAERET

2020
20204F
RMB'000
AREFT
Profit before tax M 55 BT v A 680,195 674,399
At the statutory income tax rate REEFMSMETE 170,049 168,600
Profits and losses attributable to joint EEE RS N EEG
ventures and associates i A R & R (698) (8527)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (7,773) (3,789)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHOF A X 7,473 3,707
Withholding taxes on undistributed AR BB B 2 R AR 45 I 4 )
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC A - (26,085)
Deductible temporary differences B R R AT AN R = R
not recognised 15,576 6,181
Tax losses and deductible temporary FAABEERNRIESER
differences utilised from previous periods AR E RS =R (79,160) (4,297)
Tax losses not recognised BENGEEE Y 71,832 49,344
Provision for LAT T I AT 23,269 137,494
Tax effect on LAT THIRER AR B2 (5,817) (34,373)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAKEBEERNEAER
HIEEHA 194,751 288,255

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates

AEERZLERBE QR RAETEAX

amounted to RMB39,260,000 for the year (2020: RMB44,356,000). The
share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and associates amounted
to RMB38,330,000 for the year (2020: RMB32,986,000). Both are included
in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

H A A R #392600007T (20205« AR
#544,356,0007T ) © NEE A & 13 N
EN ARG TR IEE % A A R 38,330,000
JL(20204F : AFR#329860007T) ° W&
Bt AR B kEtmrARER6
EEREE QBB REE] -

FAERERARAR
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FTE8 »)
Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position 1A MBI R AR FEN TR IESS -
represents:

2021 2020

2021 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREEFIT

PRC CIT payable FERTRBIZEFTE T 499,476 479,878

PRC LAT payable JE AT A B+ i S (E 666,717 866,815

Total tax payable FETRIE SRR 1,166,193 1,346,693
11. DIVIDENDS 11. K2

2021 2020
2021 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT

Proposed final — HK$ Nil (2020: HK$3.06 cents) iz AR HIRL B — FAY L B

per ordinary share T (2020 F = 3.067841) - 37,205
The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended EEEFORTEIREZ2021F 128318
31 December 2021. LEFEMERRE ©
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,446,962,138
(2020: 1,446,962,138) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect of
a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

12. AR A EBEERFE ARG

BREF

EREARFZEEDIENGARLR
A ABEFRGEN  RFEAEE
77E BRI F 19201 ,446,962,1380% (2020
1 1,446,962,138 IEAR (7)) °

AR E BN E = 2021 F % 2020512 A
NALFEYEFTETEEL B
WAL E 2021 F 2 2020512 A31 BIEFE
E2INERERBFCEBAEDAE -

BEREAREERN B IHERNAT

based on: FIBETE -
2021 2020
2021 20204
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BAREBRERSE ARG R
holders of the parent (RMB'000) (AREETIT) 141,551 182,627
Shares B3
Weighted average number of ordinary FRE T BRGNS

shares in issue during the year

1,446,962,138 1,446,962,138

Earnings per share BrRAF
Basic and diluted BEAR RS

RMBO0.10 RMBO.13
AR¥o0.10Tt AR®0137C

REERERARA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 13 - BE KRB
Office
equipment
Motor and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles device improvements in process Total
BAERHE
BF "E RETRE HENRRH EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRE ARBTRT AR¥TR ARBTRE AR%T:R
31 December 2021 2021F 128318
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H
Cost A 831,435 7,822 57,897 11,419 80,973 989,546
Accumulated depreciation  25HTE (16,764) (6,438) (15,808) (8,989) - (47,999)
Net carrying amount REFE 814,671 1,384 42,089 2,430 80,973 941,547
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021E1 818
accumulated depreciation 1B 2EHTE 814,671 1,384 42,089 2,430 80,973 941,547
Additions NE - 342 1,254 6,645 1,557 9,798
Disposals HE - (37) (71) - - (108)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR
(note 39) (MizE39) - - (39) - - (39)
Impairment (note 6) A E (M5Ee) (54,734) - - - - (54,734)
Others ity (61,337) - - - - (61,337)
Depreciation provided ENFERE
during the year (note 6) GED) (30,859) (165) (10,377) (4,636) - (46,037)
At31 December 2021,netof - R 2021F 12318
accumulated depreciation  F1fk 2:H7E
and impairment RRifE 667,741 1,524 32,856 4,439 82,530 789,090
At31 December 2021 20215124318
Cost AR 770,098 8,127 59,041 18,064 82,530 937,860
Accumulated depreciation  E:THE RFE
and impairment (102,357) (6,603) (26,185) (13,625) - (148,770)
Net carrying amount FRHTE 667,741 1,524 32,856 4,439 82,530 789,090
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coniinves)  13. Y3 - MERZE )

Office
equipment
Motor  and electronic Leasehold Construction
Buildings vehicles device  improvements in process Total
HOZRE
5 A8 RETRE EEWERE  ERIR i3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR

31 December 2020 20205 12A31H
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H
Cost AR 113,580 7672 56,168 10857 1,077,744 1,266,021
Accumulated depreciation  23HTE (1356) (5608) (9,176) (8,658) - (24798)
Net carrying amount BEFE 112204 2,064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1241203
At1 January 2020, netof K200 1 A1R - 40

accumulated depreciation  fr 251TE 112,224 2,064 46,992 2,199 1077744 1241223
Additions NE 63,840 203 2014 1,563 410,861 478481
Transfer from construction  EEBERTIR

in progress 654,015 - - - (654,015) -
Transfer to investment BREREANE

properties (note 15) GEAR) - - - - (753617) (753617)
Disposals HE - (53) (285) (1,00) - (1339
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year (note 6) (MizEe) (15408) (830) (6632) (331) - (23,201)
At31 December 2020, netof 12202012 A31H

accumulated depreciation 1B 27 E 814671 1384 42,089 2430 80,973 941547
At 31 December 2020 1R2020F 124318
Cost KA 831435 7822 57,897 11419 80973 989,546
Accumulated depreciation  23HTE (16,764) (6438) (15,808) (8,989) - (47.999)
Net carrying amount FEFE 814671 1,384 42089 2430 80973 941,547
At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net R2021F12 831 H » AEEKREFEY
carrying amount of approximately RMB87,843,000 (2020: B AR #87,843,0007C (20204 : A B H#E
RMB105,301,000)were pledged to secure general banking facilities 105,301,000 ) A TEFE/EEF - A
granted to the Group (note 32). ERERTAEEN—RRTRLE (FFE

32)
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
2021 2020
2021 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Software B4
At the beginning of the year: REA]
Cost AR 9,033 6,946
Accumulated amortisation BTN (1,949) (1,239)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 7,084 5,707
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated M1 A1 BRI - HIBk 25T
amortisation 7,084 5,707
Additions NE - 2,087
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) A E B84 (FfiiTe) (1,205) (710)
At 31 December W12 HA31H 5,879 7,084
At 31 December: R12A318
Cost AR 9,033 9,033
Accumulated amortisation BN (3,154) (1,949)
Net carrying amount REVFE 5,879 7,084
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

15. REWYHE

Under
construction Completed Total
e BRI #ET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 72019 12 A31 B &
and 1 January 2020 20204F 1 A1 HRYEREA - 918,200 918,200
Additions =S 75,268 284,428 359,696
Transfer from property, plant and EEEYE  BERRE
equipment (note 13) (FF&E13) 753,617 - 753,617
Transfer from right-of-use assets BReEAEEE (M ie)
(note 16) 107,332 - 107,332
Transfer from completed properties ~ EEHF/ELENDET
held for sale (note 23) 3 (M35t 23) - 509,834 509,834
Net gain from a fair value adjustment 2 FABFA TSI F 48 81,983 58,038 140,021
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 7220204 12 A31 B &
and 1 January 2021 202141 A1 BRERMAIE 1,018,200 1,770,500 2,788,700
Additions NE 307,812 - 307,812
Transfer i 43 (724,844) 724,844 -
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value NEERARMERE(BE)
adjustment FFE 1,132 (4,344) (3.212)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 72021412 A 31 BRIEREE 602,300 2,491,000 3,093,300

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2021
based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB3,093,300,000 (2020: RMB2,788,700,000). The
Group's senior finance manager and the chief financial officer decide,
after approval from the board of directors of the Company, to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's senior finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 16 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties with a carrying
value of RMB748,400,000 (2020: RMB602,490,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 32).

AREBNREYMEMN TR AM - ANE
BRREMETIERBYEELERG
ERMAEBTEETH R ERERAF
([P =8r7 ) BEE AR 2021 F 12 A31 H
E 14 A A R #3093,300,000 7T (2020 £
A R #2788,700,0007T ) © AN EHH) & 4%
R SN B S R NN SRR 14
ERRTRTIBEEMNEERAEEY
EWMINEEE BZTEREMSM
HoBE CBUMMELTRIBEEEZ
A o ANEEE M AR B RS A1 N B TS AR S
BEEEMRETUERESEENGBE
BRI EEREITRW °

ZEREBEYWEDRBELEHELATSH
=7 HE—TSHEFBERNPEHRE
fizE 16 ©

R2021F 12 8318 AEBREEARE
748400,000 75 (2020 4F : A R 602,490,000
T EMEE LR - AREEERK
—RIRITRA A VR (B RE32) o
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

15. REYZE #)

DNFEEBR

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TREHAEBREMENAFEFE
the Group’s investment properties: B4

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

R2021512 A31 HERAL T RN AFETE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RERT % BERTEHE BAFTEE

HRE WARE BWAYE
(B—%) (B=#) (B=%) @et
Recurring fair value BATIE B #1TH RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement for BEUEATERE AR¥T R AR¥T R AR®T R AR®T R

Investment properties BREME
under construction T2 - - 602,300 602,300
completed BT - - 2,491,000 2,491,000
- - 3,093,300 3,093,300
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
P20205 12 A31 BERA T RN AT EE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

W B BRI % BEARAHE EATITHE

HR1E WABUR s ABUR
(F—&) (B=H) (B=8) et
Recurring fair value BLATIE BT RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
measurement for BEEATESE ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT

Investment properties wEYE

under construction T - - 1,018,200 1,018,200
completed 2% T - - 1,770,500 1,770,500
- - 2,788,700 2,788,700

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAREE - E—HEE _HrEWEN
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: TEFEMER  TEERSERE
Nil). B (20205 : ) o

1 84 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

15. REWZE &)

AT REEMEREMANGESER
TEHABEMER

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fhERM EXTAHERAHIE EERMEFLY
2020
2020
Completed commercial Income method Estimated rental value RMB31-122 RMB31-122
properties (RMB per sg.m. and per month)
BRIHENE LN fhatie AR¥31ZE AR¥ENTE
(ARY/FRRRARE/A) 122 7T 1227C
Capitalisation rate 1.6%-6% 1.6%-6%
B
Long-term vacancy rate 3%-15% 3%-15%
EHEEE
Discount rate 4.3%-6.0% 4.3%-5.3%
FrR=
Commercial properties Comparison Expected profit margin 12.5% 12.5%
under construction method
HEEBEDE LB BAHFER
Estimated land price RMB2,594- RMB2,594-
(RMB per sgq.m) RMB11,075 RMB11,075
et @ AR¥2,5041E ARK25041E
(ARB/TFHK) 11,075 1107575

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by the
income method by taking into account the net rental income of the
properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in the
existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

BERTIEEDENRFEIVRBERAL
BE HARBBMEBEMERAREAE
MK MmEER, RERTHRT A GEE
FHAESWAFE (LN BEEEEK
AEHR TR B - REIABAR(E - P
REENENMLLXEERFE TE
HEEERAT2EREM S LATRSEH
AELBIHERS °

et HEARIEMORD) BEBIRED
ENRFEANRIEMORD) - EREL
KEFABLMORD) BEBREME
B R FEAER A (3810)
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31 December 2021

15.

16.

186

2021512 A31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is determined
by using the comparison method, with reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
property assuming it was completed and, where appropriate, after
deducting the following items:

Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be expensed
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market
participant; and

Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated construction costs, the lower the fair value of
the investment properties under construction would result.

The fair value of the commercial properties under construction is
determined by using the comparison method, and with reference to
sales transactions as available in the relevant market, comparable land in
close proximity has been selected and adjustments have been made to
account for the difference in factors such as location and property size.

The higher the estimated land price, the higher the fair value of the
investment properties under construction is.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings, machinery
and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 35 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings and machinery
generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles
generally have lease terms of 2 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. A @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEREABAE)
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEENFERAEEENRBDENTF
movements during the years are as follows: NEFHIT :

Prepaid Buildings
land lease and Motor
payments machinery vehicles Total

ANt

HMENR BFRHER B #et
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARWTR

As at 1 January 2020 R202051 A1 H 267,759 13,208 387 281,354
Additions INE - 7,818 - 7,818
Transferred to investment EEEDRTINE

properties completed YZ (H5E15)

(note 15) (107,332) - - (107,332)
Reassessment of lease EFFTEHEEED

contracts — termination — &1k - (2,553) - (2,553)
Depreciation charge (note 6)  ITE & (Ki:F6) (3,342) (11,803) (387) (15,532)

As at 31 December 2020 and A 2020F 12 A31 H &

and 1 January 2021 20211 B1H 157,085 6,670 - 163,755
Additions NE - 19,001 - 19,001
Lease contract change HEGHEF - (2,101) - (2,101)
Depreciation charge (note 6) & & A (Mizte) (3,341) (13,252) = (16,593)
As at 31 December 2021 F2021F 12 A31 H 153,744 10,318 - 164,062
As of 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's right-of-use assets HZE01E 1238 AEE®A
with an aggregate carrying amount of Nil (2020: RMB8,834,000) BREMEAEZTQF: AR
have been pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted 8834000L ) e TIHERAREREED
to the Group, which are disclosed in note 32. B BAREEREFNRTTEEM

fERME IR (RE R RE32) ©

EAERERARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. *E.,%"J (%)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERABA #)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during HEAENEEERFEARAEZEN
the years are as follows: K

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 8,707 19,898
New leases e 19,001 7818
Accretion of interest recognised FRE R FI 2 L5

during the year (note 7) (HF3E7) 1,367 1,042
Reassessment of lease contracts termination S ¥ el A E S 44R 1 - (2,545)
Transfer to other payables BRI 2 H At B < RRIB - (10,501)
Lease contract change HESLEF (2,194) -
Payments 3R (7,394) (7,005)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 BREREE 19,487 8,707
Analysed into: DT -

Current portion BIEAER 5 15,439 5,164

Non-current portion FERNHAEL > 4,048 3,543
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 to HEAEMIBBE O EERY S
the financial statements. HwFEMIFE44 -

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () REFITEIANBVERBITEN

leases are as follows: T

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEAERS (HFE7) 1,367 1,042
Expense relating to short-term leases and HERHENEEEEE

leases of low-value assets (included in HEMRERNRS

administrative expenses) (note 6) GTATTERA ) MisEe) 2,364 2,199
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ {FREEEMTEER

(note 6) (KizEe) 16,593 15,532
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R8P R KIEBEE 20,324 18,773
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 38 () to the HEMRS TR BB BRI SR
financial statements. FMIEE38(0) ©

1 8 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of two
commercial properties, one medical and health property and one office
property in Nanjing and one residential property in Hangzhou under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB51,810,000
(2020:RMB16,360,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

16. Y @)

AEEERSHHEA
AEERBEEHELHEBELRE

RN R EE (15 B g
ERMEBEYE — K8 fé‘&ﬁ&%
¥ —ERABN-REEME-HE

BRBEERAR IS - WIREHR
AHRTEHAEAS - KAEBRFENE
R A B ARES1,810,0007T(2020
F: AR®163600007T) © 515 01
TEMARMIFES -

R2021F 12 318 REBEBFRT
R B0 A4S S FEE T R Ak 2 HA S E U Y
AIMBBEEMZOT

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Within one year —FR 77,632 42,526
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 84,107 72,376
After two years but within three years MEERE=FK 92,403 74,961
After three years but within four years —FRENFA 47,544 77,254
After four years but within five years MEBERFA 56,287 80,884
After five years AFE 911,753 678,512
1,269,726 1,026,513

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELENRE
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Share of net assets JE(hEEFE 671,774 180,725
Financial guarantees provided to joint ventures [a] & & 1> S 12 (BT IS 1E (R 6,770 -
678,544 180,725

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint ventures
are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements. There was no recent
history of default and past due amounts for loans to joint ventures. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

AEEHRAEMENE ZRINFIAEKLE
NREAGRY BREME4HE -0
Eﬁlﬁ@%ﬁpaﬁ&?*mA%ﬁ%%“*hm
EEREEA o 720214 ] 20209F 128318
BEEBETIHARK -

SR BIFE R B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continuea)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees of
RMB1,369,800,000 to banks and other institutions in connection with
financial facilities granted to joint ventures (2020: RMB552,000,000). In
the opinion of the directors, the financial guarantee services are unlikely
to be compensated in the foreseeable future and are considered as part
of the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures.

(a) Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows:

17. REEPENKRE »)

PR2021F 128310 AEBRETAE
ENPBEE BT R EMmEERE
FE1R A R #1,369,800,000 7T (20204 = A
R #552,0000007T) © EERE - HEE
RIRERATTE BB RN KATREE S
B ITHEEAEERALLENFIR
B —ED o

(a) AEEEXZEZDEMNFHEOT

Percentage of
Place of BAL
Paid-in registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Names capital and business interest power sharing activities
R
a8 BHER EBfE BHE RERE  EGER TEER
RMB’'000
ARBT T
BNEBRIEEERERAT 100,000 PRC/ 51% 51% 51% Property development
(BIMNEER) Wenzhou,
China
2018
AMEEHREERERAA 100,000 HE/ 51% 51% 51% REYE
(DRMZEER]) BRI
20185
Note: MiEE

The Group completed the acquisition for & M 2E & 3k in early April 2021.
Pursuant to the articles of joint venture, J& M Z & 3 had two shareholders,
each holding 51% and 49% equity interests, respectively, all shareholder
resolutions of J& I 2= & ¥4 shall be resolved by the two shareholders on a
unanimous basis. In light of this requirement, & /NZE B is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Company notwithstanding that the Company held a 51%
equity interest as at 31 December 2021.

1 90 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H
17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continied)  17. REE LEWNIRE ()
(@) (Continued) (a) (&)
In 2021, & M ¥ 5 3, which was considered a material joint R2021F  BMEBRESE AEE

2201 FNANBHILEFEAEER
FESEDE  EHARAMHS—
HEERNARMAEEEES -
WA AEALR -

venture of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, co-
develops a property development project with the other joint
venture partner in Mainland China and is accounted for using the
equity method.

TRIABEENMEBHAHE
MRE ERgBRRTAEEE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of J@ M ZE &4k adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

the consolidated financial statements:

BEHE :

H B BRSBTS IR AR ARE

2021

202145

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 338,838
Other current assets HEMnsEE 4,122,823
Current assets MEVEE 4,461,661
Non-current assets EmEEE 478,504
Current liabilities mBAaE (3,437,389)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,000,431)
Net assets BESE 502,345

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the joint venture:  B27K %55 BA A & 1D MRS EER ¢

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREB PR A L) 51%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture AEBEEGEEPEEEFE 256,196
256,196

Revenue gz 708
Cost/expenses AR, B (38,449)
Tax IR 9,617
Net loss and other comprehensive loss for the year FRFEBEREMEEER (28,124)

SR BIFE R B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b) #1877 was considered a material joint venture of the Group for (b)

192

the year ended 31 December 2020 as it delivered over 90% of
completed properties held for sale to its customers and was not
material for the year ended 31 December 2021 as there were only
sporadic remaining properties delivered. Zk /1B J7 was accounted
for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of #1817 adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

17. REETENKRE »)

BmME DT REZ=2020%12A318
IFFERRATEENTEESE D
¥ RARERMERPINER
90% Y B 3% T % - A8 ZE 2021
FRANAENFEIAEZEE
BREINZESFSRDE &M
EEREREE

TRINTEBEMNET NI B E R
WE ERSARREMEREDL
B B E M RARANREE
R

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 5
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEY 39,492 153,183
Other current assets HEmn@aE 282,970 336,424
Current assets MEEE 322,462 489,607
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,457 7
Current liabilities mENEE (19,123) (178,009)
Net assets BEFE 310,796 311,605
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HASEREGEPENER

in the joint venture: HiR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFThEA LD 16.7% 16.7%
Group's share of net assets of REBREEEEDEEETE

the joint venture 51,903 52,038
Revenue Wz 105,367 1,171,189
Cost/expenses KA, R (84,522) (995,667)
Taxes e (21,654) (6,680)
Net (loss)/profit and other comprehensive £ X% (JE538), % | R H Ath 2 &

(loss)/income for the year (E148) U zs (809) 168,842

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17. REETENKRE »

(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)

R2020%F BN B EWR AAREE
méﬁA%ﬁ% 8 F 3 P 3 Y B
BEERHREEERZEIER -

W R AR REARR ©

In 2020, & M & ¥ was considered as a material joint venture of the
Group, develop property development projects with the strategic
partners in Mainland China and are accounted for using the equity
method.

TEIFEMBMNE BN EER
HE DRRHREEAEE Y

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of )& MM & ¥ adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

AR R AMBRRANREE

financial statements:

E3E

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIREEED 211,027 143,903
Other current assets HimenEE 1,117,416 716411
Current assets mEEE 1,328,443 860,314
Non-current assets EMBEE 164 1,026
Current liabilities meaE (877,770) (223,132)
Non-current liabilities FEREaE (211,997) (390,000)
Net assets BEFE 238,840 248,208
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EAREBREEDERN
in the joint venture: AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE FTh A L) 40% 40%
Group's share of net assets of the AEEEMEELEEEFE
joint venture 95,536 99,283
Revenue Wz = -
Cost/expenses A, sz (12,454) (12,792)
Taxes E 3,086 -
Net loss and other comprehensive loss FRFEEBEBNEMEMEER
for the year (9,368) (12,792)
EAERERA R A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

17. REETENKRE »)

() Ti%ﬁﬂﬂl%JiTEk#)ﬁ%@’a\
BERNELTBTER

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFTT

Share of the joint ventures' profits and FARELEERENBR K

losses and total comprehensive 2H (E518), W ia s

(loss)/income for the year (11,524) 4,160
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's $’§ .E’\f:.\ PEREN

investments in the joint ventures FEUE] 274,909 29,404

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2021 as the
investments in joint ventures are considered fully recoverable
(2020: Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted for using the
equity method in these financial statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AAREERE  AREGETERD
WEWR A BEEURE - B 2021
F12A31 B EAEELRER# (2020
FE) - ZERELEDRZE
B RERNE AR EALR

18. RBEE QX RIWIRE

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 €
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Share of net assets EREEFE 3,419,357 2,142,510
Financial guarantees provided to associates TR T HE QR MBS ER 14,007 -
3,433,364 2,142,510

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with associates are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees of
RMB1,727,450,000 to banks and other institutions in connection with
financial facilities granted to associates (2020: RMB1,915,592,000). In the
opinion of the directors, the financial guarantee services are unlikely to
be compensated in the foreseeable future and are considered as part of
the Group'’s net investments in the associates.

1 94 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()
(a) AEEISHAATMEEOT :

Percentage of
Place of AL
Paid-in  registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
i B &
a8 BAER  EBRER e REE  EEER FEER
RMB’000
ARBT T
R EREERAR 50,000 PRC/ 49% 49% 49% Property development
(EARBAEY Nanjing, (note a)
China
2014
BRI EREERAA 50,000 Mg/ 49% 49% 49% WIERE
(TEmBsE]) REER GED)
20145
LEEREXBRAF 50,000 PRC/ 40% 40% 40% Property development
" EBET Shanghai, (note b)
China
2020
HEEREXERAA 50,000 HE/ 40% 40% 40% WIERE
(T LBEE]) HE (Fi3Eb)
20205
Note (a):  On 30 December 2017, the Group acquired a 49% interest in & I MisE@ : R2017412 8308 » AEEE
X from the Then Parent Company. RO ATWER R BRS
49% fE 2 °
Note (b):  The Group acquired 40% equity from /8 &R FERZE AR A Bsk (o) : 72N & B 7202044 F 24 B Y B

7] on 24 April 2020. £/ & & is accounted as an associate of the
Group, as the Group owned 40% of the voting rights and only
exercises significant influence on /8 & according to the articles
of association.

LEERREHERERR AR
H40% A i - AR IRIZAHE
T K 7N S B A 40% 1 48
TEHEEEEEREARY
2 YLBSEARIERSE
I NI

SR BIFE R B R A A 195
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

(b) M M and £ 8 & &, which were considered as material

associates of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, develop property development projects with the
associate partners of the Group engaged in property development
and are accounted for using the equity method.

BRER 5L, PR FLE W, B R B and F15 FL &5 * which
were considered as material associates of the Group for 31
December 2020 but are not material for the year ended 31
December 2021, develop property development projects with the
associate partners in Mainland China and are accounted for using
the equity method.

FNERFLEE I was the associate held by # RIREZ R EEIE AR A A, since
the Group disposed F RIRFIRBEEIRBR A A in June 2021, MERFLE
1 was also disposed correspondingly.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of B R JIBYK adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

(b) FERMBHMNLBEERRIELAER

R E = 2021F KX2020F 12318
IEFFENEERE AT BhEHRA
MR E AR AR YETER
W AR EARR ©

ARREREA ~ B ALY - B REEM
KA FL &8 (B Z= 202012 B
3 AL FERRAALENE R
ZgRE BREZE2021F12A3
AIEFERRAWIEFERNEE A
7)) EAFE AL B ERER
HEMIEIAR - HAEEEAR -

MEILE N AR RERREEEEFR
ARFHENHE AT ARAEER 2021
Fo HEMRBEROETEARAF
MAMZFLERITEELE -

TRIRE R REROM B ER
WE ERSTRREMEREL
AR MG A M RRANREE
HER -

2021 2020
2021 F 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEED 18,289 17,802
Other current assets Hitme &z 566,184 698,966
Current assets MBNE E 584,473 716,768
Current liabilities mENAE (29,678) (150,417)
Net assets BEFE 554,795 566,351
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest ERE B R L AR A ER
in the associate: IR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBE TG A ELG 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the associate ~ ZNS= B BB & A BB EFE 271,850 277512
Revenue W25 2,300 35,642
Expenses AR (13,856) (5,071)
Taxes I8 = (7,643)
Net (loss)/profit and other comprehensive X% (E518) %A &
(loss)/ income for the year Hi 2| (BE), s (11,556) 22,928

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

(Continued)

(b)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of =8 & & adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements:

31 December 2021

/43 )
(%8 )

202112 A31H

18. REE N BINIRE &)

TRINEHE LEEENMHER
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R AMBRRANREE
R

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEED 110,974 525,321
Other current assets Hitme g E 1,631,005 3,027,165
Current assets mENEE 1,741,979 3,552,486
Non-current assets IEMBEE 67 -
Current liabilities mENAE (271,476) (1,336,519)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (899,980)
Net assets BEFE 1,470,570 1,315,987
Reconciliation to the Group's interest BN E R B S QAR
in the associate: AR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership REE G AELG 40% 40%
Group's share of net assets of the associate  ANEEE| fE(L 2 A R E EFE 588,228 526,395
Revenue Uz 2,161,330 127
Cost B (1,929,554) -
Expenses s (3,576) (56,755)
Taxes 1| (73,618) -
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive — FE R F#H A, (E18) &
income/(loss) for the year Hip 2wz (BE) 154,582 (56,628)

REBRIEAR AT
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(b)

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()
(b) (&)

TRIREB A ERANM B ER
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R AMBRRANREE

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of & BB 54 adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

198

consolidated financial statements. AR
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEED 56,925 205,391
Other current assets Hitme g E 259,264 394,758
Current assets mENEE 316,189 600,149
Non-current assets IERBAE 115 277
Current liabilities mENAE (58,890) (262,555)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBEE - (83,100)
Net assets BEFE 257,414 254,771
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EREFEREE N FH
in the associate: R EER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEB BTk 5 A RELL I 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AN E FE(FHE N B E EFE 128,707 127,385
Revenue Uz 136,559 949,030
Cost and expense PR F B 2 (132,959) (795,618)
Taxes e (956) (38,394)
Net profit and other comprehensive FRFmMEEAEEmBRA
income for the year 2,644 115,018

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(b)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of B FLEZ ¥ adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

31 December 2021

A 255 e % it

202112 A31H

18. REE N BINIRE &)

TRIREBRE I =R HE
HMRE EREBRRTAEEE
H B BRSBTS ImAR AR ARE

the consolidated financial statements: BEER -
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 £
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEED 73,480 254,433
Other current assets Hitme g E 2,729,092 2,335,574
Current assets mENEE 2,802,572 2,590,007
Non-current assets IEMBEE 17,544 7,233
Current liabilities mENAE (1,377,781) (1,124,243)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (718,706) (753,176)
Net assets BEFE 723,629 719,821
Reconciliation to the Group's interest L 7R £ [ 3] pA e 2 A B Y
in the associate: R EER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEB BTk 5 A RELL I 33% 33%
Group's share of net assets of the associate ~ ZNEEE|FE{S & A B EFE 238,798 237,541
Revenue W25 4,247 _
Cost and expense PR F B 2 (2,051) (28,146)
Taxes 1| 1,613 (1,843)
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive — FE R F#H A, (E18) &
income/(loss) for the year Hip 2wz (BE) 3,809 (29,989)
SR BT B BR A R 199
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A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REEtE R RINIRE ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRYRE EmERENA AR
information in respect of E S EE# adjusted for any differences in WE  onestBERETNEEFL
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the TR RGBS HRARANNERE
consolidated financial statements: HEE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEED 388,949 544,239
Other current assets HinshEE 2,101,432 1,811,287
Current assets mENEE 2,490,381 2,355,526
Non-current assets EmEEE 32,391 8]

Current liabilities A= (1,597,752) (785,093)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (465,000) (1,199,081)
Net assets mEAE 460,020 371,433
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EAEENIEE N F]/

in the associate: R EER

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEB BTk 5 A RELL I 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate  ANEEE (L2 A R & EFE 138,006 111,430
Revenue Wz 742,112 -
Cost and expense PR F B 2 (631,538) (28,397)
Taxes e (21,988) -

Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive — FE R F#H A, (E18) &
Income/(loss) for the year Hip 2wz (BE) 88,586 (28,397)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of A& LAY, adjusted for any differences

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

(b) (#&)

TRIREBMEIL =R 5 E
HMRE EREBRRTAEEE

in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in AR AR A B EHRERANAERT
the consolidated financial statements: BEER -
2020
20204F
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEYD 121,185
Other current assets HEMnsEE 1,328,127
Current assets MEVEE 1449312
Non-current assets EmEEE 10,525
Current liabilities mEaRE (991,070)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (115)
Net assets BESE 468,652
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate; EREE B ARG &R R AT HTER ¢
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBE PGB ELL O 50%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEEEBE QAR EEFE 234,326
234,326
Revenue gz 460,273
Cost/expenses A (461,683)
Tax FR18 _
Net loss and other comprehensive loss for the year FAFEBEREMEEER (1,410

REBRIEAR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18.

202

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REAE R RIRE @)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information TRBRERIN A& AR 7N £ [F B
of the Group's associates that are not individually material: ENRREEIBER
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTF T
Share of the associates’ profits and losses and FRELBE R REERR
total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 2T (E518) /W25 58 (52,783) 6,746
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REERBERNRIRER
investments in the associates REARE 2,067,775 627,921
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision RRAREERE  ARBE QR
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2021 as the WE R A FREE - B 2021
investments in associates are considered fully recoverable (2020: F12 431 B EAEHRER#E (2020
Nil). The associates have been accounted for using equity method F|E) ZEHERRDRZE
in these financial statements. B gk AP AR ©
Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. IEIETIH
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are BEEFRBEEENRBENFANESHNOT
as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE
Losses
available Expenses Unrealised
for offsetting  for offsetting Accrued revenue Asset
Lease againstfuture againstfuture  construction received  Impairment Unpaid
liabilities ~taxable profits taxable profits cost inadvance loss LAT Total
e HEERR
ARERE  BREER RER At
HERE  EFNER MRx  ERERE Rhs EEREESR RER Eh
RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO00 RMB0O

ARETT ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

At January 2020 RONEIATA - 14186 105 459 2148033 - 90053 356975

Deferred tax credited/(charged)to ~ EEF N/ (HKE)
profit orloss during the year BRNELRE - (4,54 8 I (57853) - 24490 (378%)

At 31 December 2020 RONF12A318 - 9642 13 464 190,180 - 114543 319119

Deferred tax credited/{charged)to~ ERETA/(HKE)
piofitorloss durngtheyear  BRAEEHE 4871 3580 113 7976 185999 13683 (70429 146567

At 31December 2021 R0NE1ANA 4871 132 - 12617 377179 13683 44114 465,686

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19. RENIH (&)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are REFRBEEENRBENFANNESNOT
as follows: (continued) (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Fair value Fair value

adjustment adjustment
arisingfrom  arising from
acquisition investment  Right-of-use  Withholding

of subsidiaries properties assets taxes Total
WEHELR REME
EEW EEW

LYERE  AVERE KAEZE jibilk @t

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT  ARETR  AREBTR  AREBTT  ARET:R

At T January 2020 R2020F1A1H 832,106 26575 - 31,085 889,766
Others Hih (553,720) - - - (553,720)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged toother R (GHA) /HIB S H

comprehensive income of the year 2ENENETHE - 3,588 - - 3,588
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profitor £ (3t A) /B B 1B &H)

loss during the year EXRE (160,756) 31417 - (26,085) (155424)
At31 December 2020 RA0E1A31E 117630 61,580 - 5000 184210

Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profitor £/ (3t A) /B B B %H)
loss during the year EERIA (31,201) (803) 2580 - (29424)

At 31 December 2021 20216124318 86429 60,777 2,580 5000 154,786
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

9, IEIERIIH ()

EERES E ()

REIME  BETEEHEEELAR
ERGEMBARKAEHE - AT BFL
FA7%5 R B MR RSO AT

2021 2020
2021 F 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE B ISR R AR
consolidated statement of financial position BT IEE EFE 447,868 278,034
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE B SRR &R AR A
consolidated statement of financial position EEFRIE B & FE 136,968 143,125

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities amounting to
RMB5,000,000 (2020: RMB5,000,000) have been recognised for
withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group’s fund will mainly be retained in Mainland China for the expansion
of the Group’s operation and management expected that it is probable
that no more than RMB100,000,000 will be distributed by these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB82,037,000 as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB70,063,000).

BIE(PEAREAMBE L EMBRE) -
TE P B 1A 3 K 37 B S0 R 3 1D FE DB A
WEETIRAREABUI0%TEIF
ZRTE B 200841 A1 B A @ AR
2007F 12 A3 BREAMNETR - fHHhH
Wi B Z NG EEFTE R AR FE
Rz AT ASETEINRE - K E
ERERR R A% FAit - NEBBR
25 15 B Ak ST B B R R BL B 2008
F1R1ERBREENANMD KRS
MTBEFOTS -

20215128318 B B FE 0 R
A R #5000,0007T(20204F : A R #&
5,000,000 7T ) KIRIERIEEE - A RAFE
ERAE AEENESBETEZRENT
B AERAEENER  MERE
TEHZENB AR R A BRRKRATEED
K B & 58 8 B A R 5 100,000,000 7T ©
2021512 A31H - BRI EERIE
EREEENTRAMMEQATNEE
EENEREZEERAHAROABARE
82,037,0007C(2020F 12 A31H : AR
70,063,000 7C) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19. RENIH (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (Coninued) EiEHREEE &)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following MR TR IBRRREHRIBEE
items:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEF T
Tax losses TIEEE 812,333 808,362
Deductible temporary differences AEMEREER 40,300 24,724
852,633 833,086

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB203,083,000 (2020:
RMB202,091,000) in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB812,333,000 (2020: RMB808,362,000), that can be carried forward to
offset against future taxable income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

20. HittEREEE

2021 2020

2021 fF 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT

Prepayments for equity investments IR B TR SRR - 445 540
Others Hib 20,498 82,169
20,498 527,709

The Group entered into an agreement with ;T & im I EIEREE A
PR /2 &] in 2020 to purchase its 25% equity interest in B 7B 4F at a total
price of RMB335,347,000, of which RMB175,000,000 was paid as at 31
December 2020. The equity transfer has been completed in as at 31
December 2021.

The Group entered into an agreement with J7 31| ZE (& 35 A% 19 B R A 7]
in 2020 to purchase its 51% equity interest in J& M EFEFB I EHREEGR
/28] at a total price of RMB270,540,000 which was paid as at 31 December
2020. The equity transfer has been completed as at 31 December 2021.

NEE B FA 2020 FF BT BR IR EE IR A FE AL
BEBRAFIER —HpE  WBEAR
#% 335,347,000 T B LN R T EEF A9 25%
feaE - ErR 2020612 A31BE XA
R %175,0000007C © 722021412 A31 8
B TEA AR e sEE o

RS B 7R 2020 FF B R IZE S W AR () B IR
NABT—EhE WBEEARE
270,540,000 TCIE B R MEFB IR E
BRAMRDFINSI1%RE  ZERED
202012 A31H X o R20214F12
A 31 BB SR REEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21. EERLQAFEGFAREMEZE
iz RERE

Listed equity investments, at fair value

BAFESIRZ EHERERE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
632,157 643,710

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group received dividends of RMB4,911,000 (2020:
RMB15,154,000) from the companies above.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's equity investments with a carrying
value of RMB632,157,000 (2020: RMB491,567,000) were pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loans, as further detailed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

AR AEERE LM RERE ST
BE BWZSRETRBETEIETE A
BAFEFAEMEEUY R - 3 Z 2021
FNAJNALEFE  AEEKE @l
AR A9 I B A R #4,911,000 7T (2020
F 0 ARM15,1540007T) °

R2021F 124318 AEEEEREEAEA
K #6321570007C (20205 : A R #&
491,567,000 70 ) B IR IR & R HIE AR
EBRTEFNERR  E—THEBEH
BTSRRI FE32

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22, Y E

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Carrying amountat 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 20,327,503 16,166,537
Additions NE 6,163,999 10,801,543

Transferred to completed properties held HE T EIEREND R T
for sale (note 23) (MF3E23) (6,916,402) (6,640,577)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31 HREREE 19,575,100 20,327,503

The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold
lands in Mainland China.

Certain of the Group's properties under development with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB10,449,918,000 as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB10,872,645,000) have been pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 32).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23. HEHENES KR T

2021 2020

2021 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1A EMEEEE 2,851,239 6,227,457
Transferred from properties under ERARERYE (E22)

development (note 22) 6,916,402 6,640,577

Impairment loss recognised (note 6) B R E R e (FiEe) (87,623) (3,932)

Transferred to investment properties (note 15) R F & W (MizE15) - (509,834)

Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) B HERA (Fizte) (7,046,579) (9,503,029)

Carrying amount at 31 December ®12A31 HHAREAE 2,633,439 2,851,239

24.

Certain of the Group's completed properties held for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of Nil as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: RMB579,493,000) have been pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group, details of which are disclosed in note

32.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

24.

R2021F 12 A31 B - ZNEBEEHEAES
Z (20205 12 A31 8 + AR¥E 579,493,000
TLMETHIERENERIMEDE
o BREEERIRIT RHEMERE
AR (EFFIERMIFE R )

ANFRIE BRERHEMER

I

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Due from non-controlling shareholders FEUL FEAE AR AR B FN IR 2,420,325 1,726,824
Other tax recoverable E At AU [ 718 742,745 653,778
Due from third parties JEWRE =78 337,407 826,460
Construction performance deposits BEBNZS 143,748 388,899
Other deposits HEize 44,247 146,066
Due from employees R g & 78 1,199 651
Prepayments for land auction T IAE TR A = 11,200
Other receivables H At pE IR 9,900 13,761
3,699,571 3,767,639
Impairment allowance VERIEREL =] (2,767) (4,932)
3,696,804 3,762,707

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments, other
receivables and other assets are as follows:

24, AFIE - HER HEMWER

FIE(®)

ST HOR - RARRR R R R R
HEREEZBDT

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 HEEmE 4,932 _
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE (2,165) 4932
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31 HREREE 2,767 4932

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and other deposits was performing. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has not
increased significantly since initial recognition. The expected loss rate of
these receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. The Group has evaluated the
expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, measured the impairment
based on the 12-month expected credit losses, and assessed that the
expected credit losses were RMB2,767,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB4,932,000).

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Hip EURIR R EER - A58 BER
EEFHIR -

JE R BT B8 2 B) FESE AR IR SR SR TE I H Ath %
SHEHTRBEATR - AEBEFHEZ
LRINGIE 2 5 B R B 116 18 LA 2R
W RIEE N - 2SR FIBENTBEE
BERIER0LI% - AEBEFHBEHE
BERNE®ARE Wi+ @A 2788
EEEEERE YT ER2021F12
B3 BEMEEEEAAR 2767000
TL(20204F © AR 4,932,0007T) °

25. A AFEFFABEZENE®ME

THROUGH PROFIT ORLOSS =
2021 2020
20214 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Other unlisted investments, at fair value EfIEETERE AT ER 574,303 1,934,292

574,303 1,934,292

The above investments in the funds at the end of the reporting period
were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.
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26.

27.

28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT COST ASSETS

Other current assets are initially recognised for commission to the sales
agents when the agreement for sale and purchase is signed with a
property buyer, if recoverable. The amounts recognised as other current
assets are amortised on a systematic basis which is consistent with the

transfer of the related property to the customer.

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

26. SEIREEE
ARRAEENREYLEES T ESER
I Bh e (R 1B (2 ) S RER (1
AHE) - R AL FARAEEY SRR
SHEESEEAEYE BT RERE
3 o

2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within one year —F R 46,446 31,566
After one year —F1% 86,257 25,044
132,703 56,610
TRADE RECEIVABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27. EZ WA

HEZ A2 WRERRE H LK
TRERER DTN

2021 2020

2021 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBT T ARETT

Within one year —FR 9,113 1,294
9,113 1,294

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. HERBITHEER

2021 2020

2021 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBT T ARET T

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTE 2,731,889 6,420,932
Less: Restricted cash B XERHIRE 1,185,878 708,538
Pledged deposits BIEFTR 118,412 2,194,070
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIReEFEED 1,427,599 3,518,324
SRR BB IEAR B BR A ] 211
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 28. HERBEEEY »)

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use, and as at
31 December 2021, such restricted cash amounted to RMB1,185,878,000
(2020: RMB708,538,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash included amount of
RMB21,850,000 frozen by courts due to lawsuits.

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of RMB1,189,000 (2020:
RMB1,240,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage loans,
RMB75,231,000 was pledged for subsidiaries’ bank facilities and
RMB43,181,000 was pledged to banks as collateral for issuance of bank
acceptance notes.

BRIBEFEATBER  AEENE TR
EREARARE THRSNETENE
ERITRPIERFEASE - MMR20214F
12A31H ZEXRHBESAHAARE
1,185,878,000 7T(2020 4 = AR ¥ 708,538,000
JT) °

MN20215FE12 8318 XRHERSBIER
ST AT AR R &8 B9 A R #5 21,850,000 7T

T e

R2021%12 8318 - BEAR1,189,000
7T (20204F © AR ¥ 1,240,000 7T ) KSR 1T
GREEHR  EREHIRIBERAER
M AR 75231,000 7T 2 FE KB A 7Y
IRITRVE 1EH IR A X AR ¥ 43,181,000 7T
EERTIRITERABITRITALEERDN
EIRG o

2021 2020
20214 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEEY
Denominated in RMB AR E 1,421,980 2,946,302
Denominated in HKS B TTEHE 3,139 31,608
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 2,480 540414
1,427,599 3,518,324

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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29.

30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

9. EZENRERENRRE

RBEHR AEEENEZEHNE
SEMNRIAL BN RIBRE TN

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within 1 year 1F R 3,650,317 2,868,654
Over 1 year T E 230,556 1,133,153
3,880,873 4,001,807
Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally settled EoENFBREHEAREE  —RE

based on the progress of construction.

As at 31 December 2021, approximately RMB69,999,000 commercial
acceptance bills issued by the Company's indirectly non-wholly-owned
subsidiary, Nanjing Airport Exhibition Investment Management Co,, Ltd.,

NIRERES

R2021F 12 A318 - AABIMEIELE
WMEBARBMRESEREEEEARA
AT EHERLEEPDARK

were overdue and unpaid. 69,999,000 JT 48 HAAR A ©
OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 30. Hitt B RIE - ERRER
AND ACCRUALS FEstE A
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Retention deposits related to construction BEEER TR 117,880 109,279
Interests payable R 48,796 99,378
Payroll and welfare payable FERTTE RAEF 4,984 59,447
Other tax and surcharges HbBiE &M & A 63,215 26,527
Advances from non-controlling shareholders FEIE MR AR R R 785,926 1,594,727
Advances from third parties BE=HER 285,660 1,218,056
Accrued liabilities EstafE 14,631 25,460
Others EHfth 25,706 33,180
1,346,798 3,166,054

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The fair values
of other payables at the end of the reporting period approximated to
their corresponding carrying amounts.

Hit BARASER L EIRERE
i HiEMNRARRS RO FE
HEEMERREERS

SR BIFE R B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. EHAE
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities: REEBER T W=MEEELEE

2021 2020

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT

Sale of properties HEWE 14,686,024 11,384,909
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing NEFIRYEIHESANET N EER
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are BEREZELPWRNT - NFCBEERES
usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts ANEEEAEHERELIE)RIRTEL
which are mainly for property development and sale. According to the UGB c AEREHARE - BIEAREFENFEL
business model of the Group, for revenue recognised from the sale of B AR A EEERERNINZET
properties, all such revenue is carried forward from contract liabilities = ARSI GEEREANEE -

during the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 32, FFERITREMMER
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
2021 F 20205
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate(%)  Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFI=E BRRH
(%) IME AR¥TR (%) AEA AR®TT
Current BN
Bank loans — secured BITEHR — BEA 8.3 2022 65,583 - - -
20225
Other loans — secured HuEH — HiEF 8.0-18.0 2022 1,259,204 130 2021 576,000
2022 F 20015
Otherloans — unsecured ~ H i &7 — EH 13.0 2022 17,000 125 2021 326,245
2022 F 20015
Current portion of long-term & HRR1TE FRHY 4.4-6.7 2022 1,593,607 45-69 2021 2,321,141
bank loans — secured BNHALZE Y — B 2022 F 2021 4F
Current portion of long-term & B3 E 41 & Fk Y - - - 130 2021 99,700
other loans — secured BIHIEE Dy — B 2021
2,935,394 3,323,086
Non-current FEENH
Bank loans — secured RITER — BEA 4.4-6.9 2023-2036 7,373,979 45-67  2022-2029  7401,345
2023 F - 20025 -
2036 FF 20294
Other loans — secured HiEH — HiKE 11.5-14.0 2023 1,160,020 70-130  2022-2024 1381497
2023 F 2022 -
20244
Otherloans — unsecured ~ H M E R — &K 1F 12.0-13.0 2023 356,000 70-75  2022-2024 42,252
2023 F 20028 -
2045
8,889,999 8,825,094

11,825,393 12,148,180

BABRERARAR
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

32. s ERITREMER @

BORROWINGS (continued)
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMER
2021 2020
2021 % 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTF T
Analysed into: DT
Repayable within one year JER—FRNEE 2,935,394 3,323,086
Repayable in the second year ERE —FEE 4,319,899 2,455,705
Repayable in the third to fifth years ERE=—Z=ZRFEE 2,882,329 5,886,433
Repayable after five years ERAFERER 1,687,771 482,956
8,889,999 8,825,094
11,825,393 12,148,180

AREEETRITREMERAEHAT
RS BARREENEEFEM

Certain of the Group'’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
pledges of the following assets with carrying values as at the end of the
reporting period:

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBFT

Investment properties (note 15) wEMZE (HFE15) 748,400 602,490

Right-of-use assets (note 16) EREAE (M3t 16) - 8,834

Properties under development (note 22) FAEE R Y2 (M5 22) 10,449,118 10,872,645

Completed properties held for sale (note 23) ¥ {EHER DB THE (M 23) - 579,493

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) YIEE - R KRk (BEE13) 87,843 105,301
Equity investments were irrevocably TR S H IS T BIR A TFE

designated at FVOCI FFAEAM R EW R ARERE 632,157 491,567

11,917,518 12,660,330

2 1 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 32.
BORROWINGS (Continued)

The proportions of certain subsidiaries’ equity interests pledged by the
Group for certain banking facilities granted to the Group at the end of
each reporting period are as follows:

FA 55 e R i
31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H
FTERITRHEMER @)

SEARSETRITERMEWNET
FE R RIBE L PIan T

2021 2020
Name of the subsidiaries MEBARRE 20214 2020 €
EIHIREECETIEBERAT ISR BECEETIEBERAR 9.00% -
AL P EEEGRA A IR EEXBR AR 100% 100%
LR EERZEBR AT EGH AL CREEEREAR A A 100% -
AREERMEREERAT AREEEHEREBRAT 100% 25%
ARREATEEEBRAR ERIREATEEEERAR 29% -
HEMNINEEHERZEER AR HwNIRIEFHERERR AR 90% 90%
BINEREEHEREER QA BINEREEHERZEER AR 100% 100%
EHERREEEFRAT EHERREEBEEBRAT 100% -
MINEMNEEERER AR MMM EEEEER AR 51% 51%
ARIREATEEEARAA HARREEAEEEERRAA 100% -
ESIRRD P EERBRAF] EGIRBPLEERRBRAF] - 100%
MR BEEEER AR AR BREEEGRA A - 100%

At 31 December 2021, the controlling shareholder and a company
controlled by him have guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans of
RMB2,368,020,000 (2020: RMB2,614,768,000).

Management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial
institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

R20219F12 A31 8 » 1ERRALER K H 14
ZRBIERAAEBE s ETHRITERAR
#2368,020000 7T (2020F = A R #&
2,614,768,000 70) YEHHELR o

ARBERECNE  FTERITERR
HipfEROAFEEEREERS &
RAEE LRARZFERIENRT
MG RN AREE BT E =T R
wREEL -

REERERARA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

33. SENIOR NOTES 33. BEEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2000%

Principal Principal
atoriginal Contractual atoriginal  Contractual
currency interest currency interest
US$'000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000 US5000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
Rx#E RA%E
x& i
EnTR RONE%) FME  ARETE By vy ol k() M ARETT

Seniornotes due 2021 #2021 E BIERHY
("June 2021 Notes') BLER

(1202156 A 2021 2021
2 ) 140,000 12% 2021 - 140,000 12% 20014 901,585
Senior notes due 2021 #2021 £ B EJ &Y
("November 2021 BLEE
Notes') (l021E11A 2021 2021

ZE)) 200,000 12% 2021 - 200,000 12% 216 1315793
Senior notesdue 2022 FA 2022 £ B EIH
('March 2021 Notes”) B2

(TN %34 2022

B3 ) 165,000 11.8% 20225 1,083,189 - - - -
Senior notes due 2022 1A 2022 F 5|3

(*September 2021 BLER
Notes') (202159 7 2022
EZ ) 110,000 12.5% 2022 718,141 - - - -
1,801,330 2217378

Current portion kiR 1,801,330 2217378
March 2021 Notes 2021 F3 AEE
In March 2021, the Company issued the March 2021 Notes at a coupon 2021 E3 B - ANE)EEFT2021 FE3 A E
rate of 11.80%, a maturity term of 12 months, with an aggregate principal B BEE $ A11.80% » FHRHAPR & 12
amount of US$165,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of 1.)51 7K 4 48 %8 /5 165,000,000 2 T © 7N
US$163,197,650 after deduction of an underwriting discount and AE BB A F 58 163,197,650 € 7T
commissions and other expenses. (%\S«_j{”ﬂ%ﬁ MITER AL UREMBR) o
September 2021 Notes 2021 F9 A EE
In September 2021, the Company issued the September 2021 Notes at a MR2021 9 » ANAREEIT2021 F9 A EE
coupon rate of 12.5%, a maturity term of 12 months, with an aggregate B EEEXRA125%  HEERA12(E
principal amount of US$110,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds B N4 4% 5 110,000,000 7T © AAA
of US$108,737,000 after deduction of an underwriting discount and AIEB TR RIE FEE 108,737,000 E 7T (48
commissions and other expenses. NGBaErERAEUREMER) -

2 1 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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34.

35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

34. HBERENBRHE

2021
2021 F

RMB’ 000
ARBT R

At the beginning of the year REH]
Additions NE
Atthe end of the year RER

20,778
20,778

The financial guarantee contracts represent guarantees given to banks
and other financial institutions in connection with borrowings made to
the Group's joint ventures and associates. Details are set out in note 36.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the directors of the

group.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the ECL
allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the banks) for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
debtor (i.e., the joint ventures and associates). During the year ended 31
December 2021, an ECL allowance of RMB20,778,000 was provided as a
result of guarantees provided to the joint ventures and associates (2020:
Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

ZEMHERE NERRTRE S R
WEMREHERAEESEEX L E
REMETRAERRPER o FHITHNMRES6

BRARBRIN  NEBTRMHMGE
R IBRROEASEESLE -

B ERANEEREEBERERY
MHERS AR ERRTRASENR
BEME - BHEEEERBEBRMG
ReEBOFE ERBRSBONIRAET
EEFHEABIRIT) EENEEEERE
HAS SR SR IER AN S B TR AR A & 75 A (B
BRECEREA NG WEMT L5t
HoREE2021F12A831BIEFE R
A EDEREEQRIREERMEDL
TEEE E BB B A R % 20,778,000 7T
(20204 : 4E) -

35. [k A<

ERTREE:
1,446,962,138 %

Issued and fully paid:
1,446,962,138 (2020: 1,446,962,138) ordinary
shares at HK$0.1 each

(20204 : 1,446,962,138 %)
FIYEE 0.1 78 T A L AA

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
124,119 124,119

SR BIFE R B R A A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the consolidated statement of financial position were as follows:

36. AABE

R HIK - A B IRR R R 1R
BEORAREDT

2021 2020
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR¥T T ARETT
Guarantees given to banks in connection LA ANEBEMEE XK HA
with facilities granted to purchasers A& AR TR A
of the Group's properties ER m 7,472,623 5,130,590
Guarantees given to banks and other TAEB AR
institutions in connection with BB mAERTIT &
facilities granted to related companies B fth HE IR () HE 1R ) 3,097,250 2,467,592
Notes: M5k

(1) The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default on
mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangements, the related properties were pledged to the
banks as collateral for the mortgage loans. Upon default on mortgage
repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group'’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take possession of the relevant
properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the period in respect of the
guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the
Group's completed properties held for sale. The directors of the Company
considered that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalties, and therefore no provision
has been made in connection with the guarantees.

2) The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection
with indebtedness granted to the related companies. As of 31 December 2021,
an allowance of RMB20,778,000 (2020: Nil) was provided as a result of the
guarantees provided to the related companies. Further details of the related
party transactions are included in note 41.

2 20 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in the capital
reserve are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
Group, the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that
the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital of
the then holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group and the capital contributions from the equity holders of
certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the
completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the Reorganisation
for IPO purpose.

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

37. f#&
HZE2021F & 2020F 12 A31 BILFE -
AEBNRBESBREZHENNNGEE
HEREERK -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

s E

B sEREC BITRPEERD K
BMREZHENER -

EXRf#E
BRI RS AR S
S5 51 U 8 Y 2 P B AR 24 P
RAEATE BEETEE - A4
HENBDHERNGARRE
*Ko

EEBRBRFEE

TR A B R]E K bR BI AR 32 B9 BT
BRARIMMABERME - KNEBEAE
BB AR89 10% IREUE E 28
E R EBERR e ELE
F o BEERBRITEEINEGZME
X50% A 1E o AR BE AR KA
EEBHEERMBIFTE A TRN
MR AT BB FEE T AR K EE
Bk R A AR A - (B8R
BRETBIRAEEZMELAD
25% o REBE TS AEERLB M
SNEM AR - TS ERE SR

B °

BOtRAE

AEENAPERELERARE
EMETARBENEATKAIA
SERFE T AN ERFZERAE
R BITRARAEEREE TR
AIME THB AR A ARE

SR BIFE R B R A A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

38. mEHBE

MERME

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) TEXRERSF
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use EFR - AEBAMENREZAE
assets and lease liabilities of RMB19,001,000 and RMB19,001,000, CHE FERAEEELRTEEAaES R
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant and {EH AR #19,001,0007T & A R
equipment (2020: non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and 19,001,0007T By JE IR & 7/ & (2020
lease liabilities of RMB7,818,000 and RMB7,818,000). FHERAEEEREEREED
A R #7818000 & A R %
7818000 THIIFIREARE) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEZBELENEBEE
activities
Deposits Total
received Interest- liabilities
andother  bearing bank Due to from
Lease payable and and other related financing
liabilities  Senior notes accruals  borrowings  companies activities
BHEER
HtEMATE  HEROR  EABEELA REREED
HEAE BEEE  REHER HtbfeR FE  WEEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At T January 2020 B00F1 A1R 19898 - 3969718 10499959 624499 15,114,074
New leases g 7818 - - - - 7818
Cash flows from/(used in) BEERHNE/ (MR
financing activities BenE (7,005) 2192519 (932512) 1,387,361 4376619 7016982
Accrual of interest JEEF|S, 1,042 24859 5108 90,860 - 121,869
Transfer to other payables ERTHMEMNTE (10,501) - - - - (10,501)
Lease contract change HEANE (2545) - - - - (2545)
Cash flows from non-financing FREEHNETLE
activities - - 123,740 170,000 (50,298) 243442
At 31 December 2020 R00E1A3NA 8707 2217378 3066054 12148180 4950820 22491139
Cash flows from/(used in) BEEHHE/(MA)
financing activities BEERE (7394) (365,303) (932,39) (322787) (1,765839) (3393719)
New leases Gtk 19001 - - - - 19001
Accrual of interest JE:F|S, 1367 176025 - 955,734 - 1133126
Lease contract change HEaNE (2,194) - - - - (2,194)
Cash lows from/(used i) ¥REFHHE/(FIR)
non-financing activities Heng - (226,770) (1,947 998) (955,734) (83311) (3213813)
At 31 December 2021 S EIVENL: 19487 1801330 25660 1182539 301610 17033540
2 2 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. 4B S HREXRMT o
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEMBESRHAEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash HARESRERZHEENRES LY
flows is as follows: BERAIAT -

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Within financing activities BEEEA 7,394 7,005

FREARERER AR
—z-—mey 223



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
31 December 2021

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 24 June 2021, the Group
disposed of its 99% equity interest in F RIR R EEIEHR A A
to a third-party company for a consideration of Nil. The consideration
was determined by reference to the corresponding value of the equity
interest disposed of.

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 21 October 2021, the
Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Fd R ERF b EEIEHR
28] to a third-party company for a consideration of Nil. The consideration
was determined by reference to the corresponding value of the equity
interest disposed of.

The combined net assets of the two above subsidiaries at disposal date
are as following:

39. HEM B A A

2021 %12 H31H

BB A2021F6 A24 B RN EE
W& AEEUERER—ME=ZFA
AHEERERBERROCEEHEARA
A 09% BEAE » RIB IR E BT H SRR
RFRFEEERET -

BB EIA2021 10 A 21 BHYAR D82
WE - AEEUERER —ME=ZFA
AHEERERBEETCEEHEARA
AIA100% JEHE - RETILE T &R
RFRFEEERET -

tamBEMNEARRNHERRNAHE
EFENT

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBT R

HENEEFE :

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment W - B R&E 39
Investments in an associate R—EEE R R E 236,890
Cash and cash equivalents RELBREEEY 305
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFIE - 1Re REA BRI 433,635
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HibfEfI5RIR - EdiRe REFER (684,204)

(13,335)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) HEW B QR &Y (FEs) 13,335

Satisfied by cash LIRS ER

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

FRALEMNBRARNRENASEEY

the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MEFREA ST -
2021
20214
RMB’000
AR%T T
Cash consideration RENRE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRS KBS EEY (305)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BRLENBARNERE SR
of the disposal of subsidiaries REFEYMNTLFE (305)

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

40. COMMITMENTS 40, FiE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REFPIREHRER AT EAERPE -
reporting period:

2021 2020

2021 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B REE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 122,263 753,017
Properties under development Ekeg sk ES 8,928,589 10,247,313
Investment properties KEME 322,542 196,416
Capital contributions payable to: JEfREE -
Subsidiaries i) PNG| - 1,320,093
Associates /NG| 265,969 326,300

9,639,363 12,843,139

REERERARA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

N BEHERXS

(1) Related party transactions (1) BEBAERS
In addition to transactions with related parties disclosed elsewhere MBI SRR M B D T RV
of the financial statements, the following transactions were carried Bt 5 X 540 e BA A B R B
out with related parties during the reporting period: HEITUATRS -
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Advances to related companies: M BB N R EAEK
Companies controlled by controlling =R n&%? GlESPNST
shareholder - 7,006
Joint ventures and associates BEPERBE QT 5,536,033 1,712,536
5,536,033 1,719,542
Repayment of advances to related FARE A REEBK
companies:
Companies controlled by controlling PEAR AR BRI HIAY A )
shareholder - 9,491
Joint ventures and associates BEPENREE QT 2,702,191 1,478,906
2,702,191 1,488,397
Advances from related companies: E2)/NSE R
Companies controlled by controlling PERR AR R PR Il A B
shareholder 5,913,145 16,597,131
Joint ventures and associates BEPERBENT 1,956,715 2,056,290
7,869,860 18,653,421
Repayment of advances from related BEBH AR BR
companies:
Companies controlled by controlling 122 IS S B2 1 9 2 A
shareholder 8,395,351 13,834,839
Joint ventures and associates BEPERBERT] 1,240,348 441,963
9,635,699 14,276,802

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1) Related party transactions (Continued)

(2)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

M. BHRHERZ »
(1) BEAEXRZ &)

Project management income from joint
ventures and associates* (note 5)

Sale properties to the controlling
shareholder*

Property lease income from companies
controlled by the controlling shareholder*
Rental fees to a company controlled by

the controlling shareholder*

Property management fee to a company
controlled by the controlling shareholder*
Service fees to companies controlled
by the controlling shareholder*

* These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and
conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

Other transactions with related parties

(i) The controlling shareholder and a company controlled by
him guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans up to
RMB2,368,020,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31
2020: RMB2,614,768,000). For further details, please refer to

note 32.

(i) Guarantees made in favour of related parties by the Group
amounted to RMB3,097,250,200 as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB2,467,592,000). For further details,

please refer to note 36.

7%25/\A E YNl NI
ETUA > (FHRES)
PR AR SR 2

KB R R B R A
MEBRT A

SEH%T P B R AR Y A B EY

SEH%T P B R AR Y A B EY

SEH%% BRI SR R A A

(2)
0

(i)

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

95,226 30,524
17,558 -
50,582 16,360

4,959 4,966
29,460 32,902
33,930 21,027

ZERHHIRBELEEHRARE

IR BB IHETT -

HEB A RS

R2021F 12 A31 8 - K
%& ] F 128 A A BR 4R 1)

RAIAREERTIRITER
REEREZ AR
2,368,020,000 7T (20204 12 A
318 A R #2614,768,000
TL) o BERE—HEIE - B2
BIMEE32 -

R2021F 12 A31H - AEEH
LARBES 5 AR 2 AMEH AV IE
REE A AR 3,097,250,200
JL(2020F12A31H: AR
#52467,592,0007C ) > B B8 i
— G - B2 -

RN BB IER A R A A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) Mn. BRI @)
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) AR A MR{TE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT

Due from related companies: r”ﬁ%@ /NSIE =
Joint ventures and associates = ﬁ%& /N 7 3,735,302 962,868
Companies controlled by the PERR AR SR HIE A
controlling shareholder 19,781 8418
3,755,083 971,286
Due to related companies: FEHE%H?’“
Joint ventures and associates ﬂé%&ﬂé‘ﬁ%’&ﬂ 2,863,722 2,147,355
Companies controlled by the T [ AR FR A2 il Y A )
controlling shareholder 237,948 2,803,465
3,101,670 4,950,820
Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non- B i g Rk Em,\uﬁﬁﬁﬁ}fﬁﬁ %
interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms. B REETERS -
(4) Compensation of key management personnel (4) XEBEXTEEE ASHHN
of the Group
2021 2020
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Short-term employee benefits Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ 7,306 13,588
Pension scheme contributions and RIRGT SRR R EEF)
social welfare 938 501
Total compensation paid to key TRTFTEEERAEDN
management personnel Eagi Pk 8,244 14,089
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to EEMERE —FTHIFENI KR
the financial statements. =MIFES ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 e % B ik

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

42. ZERIBTHNEMTA
KBEHASAEBIANHEDENT

31 December 2021

Financial assets

2021%F12H31H
SREE

Financial
assets at
fair value Financial
through other assets at fair Financial
comprehensive  value through assets at
income profitorloss  amortised cost
BAYETA
Hitn 2 E kS BOATLETFA  REBHEEARTE
ZEMEE BRCeMEE ZERMEE @ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TR
Equity investments designated  $8 IR A FER A
at Fvoc Hih 2 ERE 2
R E 632,157 - - 632,157
Financial assets included in BUNEIES R <37
prepayments, deposits and Hofth & W FRIE R
other receivables CREE - - 2,767,632 2,767,632
Trade receivables B 5 e F0E - - 9,113 9,113
Due from related companies FE U BRE A R) 5B - - 3,755,083 3,755,083
Financial assets at FVTPL BATER ABRER
TREE - 574,303 - 574,303
Cash and bank balances We MRITHES - - 2,731,889 2,731,889
632,157 574,303 9,263,717 10,470,177

BRERRRERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. REHETHWEM TR

(Continued)
31 December 2021 (Continued) 202112 A31H#)
Financial liabilities cRAs
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE SR A
Sl R #Y
c@mas
RMB’000
AR TR
Trade and bills payables B RNFIERENZRE 3,880,873
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAHRMENFIERESEANSRAR
and accruals 1,120,382
Due to related companies FETRARS N B BUR 3,101,670
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SRR ITREMER 11,825,393
Senior notes BEEE 1,801,330
Provision for financial guarantee contracts BB EREG HBE 20,778

21,750,426
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42, REHETHWEM TR

(Continued)

31 December 2020

202012 H31H

Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
fair value Financial
through other assets at fair Financial
comprehensive value through assets at
income profit or loss amortised cost Total
BRATERA
HinzERs  BOTERA  REHEKATE
JEREE BRI EREE JEREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Equity investments designated ~ $EERAFEA
at FvoCl 2R
B E 643,710 - - 643,710
Financial assets included in SFAERFRIE - Zek
prepayments, deposits and H ity R IE )
other receivables TREE - - 2,562,763 2,562,763
Trade receivables Z 5 EWEIE - - 1,294 1,294
Due from related companies e R N R BUR - - 971,286 971,286
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFTABZER
TREE - 1934292 - 1,934,092
Cash and bank balances Ha MRS - - 6,420,932 6,420,932
643,710 1,934,292 9,956,275 12,534,277
RN BIFR ZEARB BR A A 231
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Dec

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

ember 2021 2021412 A 31 H

(Continued)

31 December 2020 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

42. ZBERESHEMIAE @

2020F12H31 H (&)

THAE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

RE RN

HIBREY

TRIBE

RMB'000

ARBFT

Trade and bills payables B RNFIBRENRER 4,001,807
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st A ERNZRIE R EERN SR A E 2,912,160
Due to related companies FENTRERG A B RIR 4,950,820
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRITREMER 12,148,180
Senior notes BEER 2,217,378
Lease liabilities HEAaE 8,707
26,239,052
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts

AREE

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

3. cMIAENAFERATFE
[ 4%
BEDEAAFEAREENSBTA
9h AEBS BT EMERERATFE
T

Fair values

ATE

2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
N ARBTT L AEhair | ARBTRT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEER ABER
TREE 574,303 1,934,292 574,303 1,934,292
Equity investments designated 38EZ A FEETA
at FvOCl Hih 2 HE W2
BiERE 632,157 643,710 632,157 643,710
Financial liabilities SsHas
Interest-bearing bank and EPERITREMER
other borrowings 11,825,393 12,148,180 10,961,216 11,553,517
Senior notes BEER 1,801,330 2217378 1,727,018 2,219,608
Provision for financial B IS IER A 40 HE
guarantee contracts 20,778 - 20,778 -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, amounts due from related
companies, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, deposits received and accruals and
amounts due to related companies approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

EEEEHERELRSEEY &
MER - XRHRS - RUER 2 RR
A B 5 REWER - AR RR - 1R
EREMEBEFENEREE  BHE
NRBERENER  fFAEMBEMNK
B BREEREGFERNERARRE
FE BB AR AN A FEEEREE
BE - FTEEZHENZFTAMNZIHHR
B e

SR BIFE R B R A A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. TR ITENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the chief finance officer
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the board of directors. At
the reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the board of directors twice a year for annual financial reporting.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

For the fair values of other financial liabilities, management has
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using expected
return rates for the underlying assets in order to estimate the cash
outflow amounts to settle the liability. The fair value measurement of the
financial liability is categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the reporting year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out
of Level 3 for both financial assets and liabilities.

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31 December 2021:

B =)

KEBMN DA RS P B
B BEETLRIALTENBHOK
ERIEF - ARREBBETEANES
EREETES AWEASE AR
EEB S TSR T AMENED L AT
PR Bt 1B 0 5 9 ABAUR o ft (B e
BB R R o 46 B4 Y A R
R F YU ERF R RETRK
S5 o LR OS5 R B SR T 0 B LA M A 2
T

REMEBEBENATEMNS  BEE
B AR E ERTEHE W® R SIEE R
R MEFEITAIE - LMEFTARIEE
fg\f—imiﬁiumﬁi @%ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ’\]’&ﬂ?
EAE0BERATEERNE=E -

RBEFE SHMEERAES EH
:ZFEEJB\E?%%/A”?TE%%@;& JT%%
BASBHEZE -

TN AR2021F12 A3 B/ T AGE
HNEATTBERGASEBRERSH
REE DT

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

DR EHEABE

E HBRE

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input Range
ERTAEHE
i BB B ARS
Provision for financial Expected credit loss Recovery rate
guarantee contracts model
MRS NEE EHREEBERRN o=

Discount rate

BRI X

2 34 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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35.7%-39.4%

35.7% % 39.4%

1.8%-3.4%

1.8% & 34%

1% increase/decrease

in recovery rate

would resultin a
decrease/increase in

fair value by RMB100,931
W =G0, E A 1%
BERAFERD, G
AR 1009317

1% increase/decrease

in discount rate would
resultin a decrease/ increase
in fair value by RMB3,616
B3R I, 1%
BERAFERD, G
AR 36167T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. TR T ENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 8 & &)

Fair value hierarchy NEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TREPAEFRSM T A AN EE
the Group's financial instruments: [E 4%

Assets measured at fair value: BRATEAENEE -

As at 31 December 2021 ®20216F12831H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTRBINAFETE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER TS EXATBRE EBEATTHE
ZEE WARE BWAEE
(5—F8) (=) (25=8) @st
Recurring fair value MU TIEEETH RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement for BEMATEFE AR%ET AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEGABRED
THEE 574,303 - - 574,303
Equity investments BERATETA
designated at FVOC| Hin2Emlzm 2
BER A 632,157 - - 632,157

1,206,460 = = 1,206,460

RAERERARA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. TR ITENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & &% )
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEEBLE)
As at 31 December 2020 120205612831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERATHRANAFETE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SEY e BAWEERE EATHUEER
Z5fE BABE BARE

(5—F&) (B5=8) (B=R) st
Recurring fair value MU TEEETH RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
measurement for REMLAFETE AREFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATHER ABRR
TREE 480,192 - 1,454,100 1934292
Equity investments BERATETA
designated at FVOC Hit2HEN =R
BER A 643,710 - - 643,710
1,123,902 - 1,454,100 2,578,002
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR cRHEENSHEBEE—EHE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for “EEEAFEEANEER  IEE
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil). ASKEHE =B (20204F : &) o
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. TR T ENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B &)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEEH B
Liabilities for measured at fair value: BAFERENERE
As at 31 December 2021 7A2021F12A831H

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTRBNAFETTE
Quoted Significant Significant
pricesin observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RERM S BEXAATBRE EBEATATHE

ZHE AR WARE
(H=FE) (E==) (B=E) Ht
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®T R AR®T ARBT T

Provision for financial IR IR G HVBHE
guarantee contracts - - 20,778 20,778

= = 20,778 20,778

R BIFRIE B R A
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. TR ITENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B &)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) PREEHRZ)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: WEAFENERE:
As at 31 December 2021 7A2021F12A831H

Fair value measurement using
ERNUTREIN AT A &
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

AIERT % EXAHE EBEAXTUEE

ZHE BABE BABE
(5—F8) (%=E) (=) st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBT T ARBT T ARET T

Interest-bearing bank and STRRITREMER
other borrowings - 10,961,216 - 10,961,216
Senior notes BERE 1,727,018 - - 1,727,018
1,727,018 10,961,216 - 12,688,234
As at 31 December 2020 R202056F12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERUTRAN DT EE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
KGR T % BERABE BANAHEE
k=L | W ABUR B ABUR
(F—FE) (B=R@) (B=FE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRITREMER
other borrowings - 11,553,517 - 11,553,517
Senior notes BrERE 2,219,608 - - 2,219,608

2,219,608 11553517 - 13,773,125
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, trade and bills payables and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, amounts due to related companies, amounts
due from related companies and provision for financial guarantee
contracts. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To
keep the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interestraterisk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 32. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings.

If the interest rate of bank and other borrowings had increased/
decreased by 1% and all other variables held constant, the profit
before tax of the Group, through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB12,241,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMBS5,504,000).

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. The Group has currency
exposures from its financial assets and senior notes.

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

44, B EREE B ERBER

AEENTIECRIATEZRRATR
RITAESR BRI REMBERHIE - BEH
FE& A5 TR I K AN SR 48 A e L A B A 3R
B oREERMTAREKLEMERE
o AEERREMEREENRAE
EFERITREMER BERE &
AR A RIFRIA - FEUARRE R 2 B R IA K
MBERAVEE ZFERTANE
ZENERRAEENEZRTES -

AEEeRTEEANEERR AT X
R - NERKE - EERBRERADES
Bl —MMmE  AEBEEERRERE
HEURSTREE - BiSASBEFTHEERMNZ
SRBRFRE - NEBIWEFEBTM
PTHEMEMTBES B R - REBRRK
BARBTAIRISNTESHIA -
FEeRNITRESERREZREE
HEgEaanT -

(a) F/=E B

AEEHBROTSN EEFHAM T
2 B EE 32 FRE A A SR AT B RTT
REMIERERE o AR E W EE A
THESR T A M XERE - A&
B RESRITEREEMERE
IR EF SR

WIEFTBEMEBEFTEBERT
BT REMEROFIE L, T
1% + R AN & B & 2= 2021 F 12 A 31
HIEFEMBREIDN (EREF
BERMFE)BR L, LM A
R #12,241,0007C (2020 F : AR
5,504,000 7C) ©

(b) ShEEREB

AEEEBEXSEROEERR -
ZERERAKEEMARIGRER
SN EHEITEBEMAESL - A&
EEREREEIEEREERN
BEEER -

REERERARA
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT a4, B EREREEERBE®)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the USS$ and
HKS exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of
monetary assets and liabilities).

(b) MR B (&)

TRIFIER A R R BRI T
MIBRT - REERRET BT
0 5 2 TR B BB S A R B
B8 O BB (e B E
BEATEED) -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
USS/HKS rate before tax

R/ BrEX BRBLAT A
EA (TR &/ (Rd)

% RMB'000
% ARETTT
2021 20215
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBRETRE ~5% (109,361)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ MARBEETHE +5% 109,361
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARBHBTEE ~5% 19,571
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ WARBHBTIE +5% (19,571)
2020 2020 F
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBRETRE ~5% (100,374)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ MARBEETHE +5% 100,374
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARBHBTEE ~5% 27,463
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ WARBHBTIE +5% (27,463)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group divides financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk
ratings for the purpose of determining significant increases in
credit risk and calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising
from trade receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made only to counterparties with an
appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group'’s counterparties. The credit period
granted to the customers is generally six months and the credit
quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
and amounts due from related parties as well as individual
assessments on the recoverability of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Group classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and amounts due from related
parties.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2021. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

44 I EREEBERBE®)

(c)

EERR
IEEEER @Wﬁ@WM&*
BWEMS @ AEERL HEE

FH(MIAEAREER ¥%)
EEZHEGBMTE - %aﬁ%%ﬁ
W NIEEEMRE  AEERER

CARERERABEE EERE
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HAEBR U FHRITHEEEF
B BFRFNEER M ANE
A MZERFNEEEEKLE
BEUBHKRL  BELSEREMR
KM - AEEIIRA HAab e
2R LARRIRERER#ETTE UR (O] 260
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VEEENENEERRFRE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44, BERAREEBEERBKR @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERBRE)
As at 31 December 2021 7"2021F12H831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EEBE FEANESREESR

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
E—RER  E-RR  EZRR  EEE et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR®TR AR¥TR AR®TR AR®TR

Trade receivables 2 5 EUGRIE - - - 9,113 9,113
Financial assets included in -~ st ATBT B &
prepayments and other Ho A FEU R IB K

receivables SMEE

— Normal — I8 2,767,632 - - - 2,767,632
Due from related parties R e RS 75 SRR 3,755,083 = = - 3,755,083
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABED

TREE 574,303 = = = 574,303
Restricted cash XWBHIRES 1,185,878 = = - 1,185,878
Pledged deposits BEHEAFR 118,412 - - - 118,412
Cashand cash equivalents  IRE& RIS ZEY 1,427,599 - - - 1,427,599

9,828,907 - - 9,113 9,838,020
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Creditrisk (Continued) (c)

44 B EREEEERBE ®)

8RR @)

As at 31 December 2020 202012831 H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 781
FEEER FEBEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—TRER EPEE BB B 7m%E et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables B HRYIE - - - 1,294 1,294
Financial assets included FFATERFIE R
in prepayments and Ho A FEU R IB K
other receivables TREE
— Normal —I$ 2,562,763 - - - 2,562,763
Due from related parties R e RS 75 SRR 971,286 - - - 971,286
Financial assets at FVTPL BATER ABER
SREE 1,934,292 - - - 1,934,292
Restricted cash RRERE 708,538 - - - 708,538
Pledged deposits BHEATR 2,194,070 - - - 2,194,070
Cashand cash equivalents & MR EEHEY 3,518,324 - - - 3,518,324
11,889,273 - - 1204 11,890,567
(d) Liquidity risk (d) REELRER

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and senior notes. Cash flows are being
closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

AEEH B R REBERR SIRTT
REMIER R BAERBERRER
BUENEEEZENTE - AEE

RenEBRZRHET R -

SR BIFE R B R A A
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. DK EREEBERBK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) RBESRRE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end AEBRRE BRIZE LRITIRNA
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted FEtENeRBENIHBERN
payments, is as follows: K

On  Lessthan 3to12 Over 1
demand 3 months months year Total

RER 3@ANA 3ZF12M8AH 1FHUE et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARETR

31 December 2021 2021128318

Trade and bills payables B 2RNRIBER

[ERZRE 3,880,873 = = - 3,880,873

Other payables H e 5Ia 1,346,798 = = - 1,346,798

Due to related companies  FEEEHE A BB 3,101,670 - - - 3,101,670
Interest-bearing bankand 5+ BIR1T R E M 1EFK

other borrowings = 447,013 3,149,293 10,095,396 13,691,702

Senior notes BLEEE - 1,158,134 746,134 - 1,904,268

Lease liabilities HEBE - 9,925 5,514 4,048 19,487

8,329,341 1,615,072 3,900,941 10,099,444 23,944,798

On Less than 3to12 Over 1
demand 3 months months year Total
BER  3EANMA 3ENEA T E st

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARETE

31 December 2020 2020F12H31H

Trade and bills payables B RNATRIER

ANES 4,001,807 - - - 4,001,807
Other payables H At fET IR 3,166,054 - - - 3,166,054
Due to related companies A BB X R FIE 4,950,820 - - - 4,950,820
Interest-bearing bankand 5T B3R1T R E A& 7K
other borrowings - 466,841 3,571,715 9,772,449 13,811,005
Senior notes BAEE - - 2,399,375 - 2,399,375
Lease liabilities HEBE - 6,483 3,526 4,189 14,198
12,118,681 473324 5974616 9776638 28343259
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Capital management

44 B EREEEERBE ®)

(e) EXER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
and bills payables, other payables, deposits received and accruals
and amounts due to related companies less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

AEEERNEENTIEZARERR
EARERFECEVRFRENE
A EBES) » AFFEEBI
BREERAL -

AEESRELER O EERE
FABEBEARRE - RERHGAR
BARRE  ARELEHIRN TR
RHBRE » REARCHKEITH
BB AR o

AEERAEABEXR(AERF
BBEAE N GREGTFEIM)
KREEER - REBMERFE
ARTBIRTTREMER BHEN
RIERENRE - EMREAN R
Bl e KR 8 R A N e B
RAFERREMREEHED - &
RIERRBER AEIEEE - PR
ERRNEABBERMT

2021 2020
2021 2020 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFT

Trade and bills payables B HRNFIBRENER 3,880,873 4,001,807
Other payables, deposits received HEMEAREIE - 2liEe Rk

and accruals fest &M 1,346,798 3,166,054
Interest-bearing bank and FPEIRIT R EMER

other borrowings 11,825,393 12,148,180
Senior notes BLER 1,801,330 2,217,378
Due to related companies FES RERS N B RUE 3,101,670 4,950,820
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRIBEEEY (1,427,599) (3,518,324)
Net debt B F5E 20,528,465 22,965915
Equity attributable to owners RARHEE ANEEER

of the Company 2,722,727 2,760,067
Capital and net debt BEARARER FEE 23,251,192 25,725,982
Gearing ratio BEREER 88% 89%

REERERARA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

45, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 45. BEERFEREZNIER

246

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group'’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests are set out below:

31 December 2021

ENELE
AEEREE BRI ER RSO BAR

BT

2021%F12H31H

Percentage
of equity Profit for the Accumulated
interestheld by year allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
REEEN PEEFER FERER
REESL ERHFRER Ritiek
% RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BT
BRER ARER 51 216,871 791,409
EHEF EHIEF 65 157,284 268,528
BEIEH VRN 67 42,474 119,052
Haze 2 BT E 35 20,820 328,101

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

8

TR w8 b B 8 A e B 7% A R
2 RENSEAR REFAARBY

EREE JmGREF HIEH i 2 P R
EREE JmBREF HIEH iRz &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETT ARE T
Revenue a5 2,876,117 1,036,964 889,052 207,952
Total expenses B (2,360,372) (725,854) (807,095) (125,011)
Income tax expense FTiSiA X (90,507) (69,135) (18,563) (23,455)
Profit and total comprehensive £ R Al & 2 @ W aS
income for the year 4a%s 425,238 241,975 63,394 59,486
Current assets TEEE 1,786,750 831,367 1,073,508 5,846,573
Non-current assets IEREBEBE 821,979 346 13,790 1,820,077
Current liabilities nBaE (1,056,946) (418,593) (909,609)  (5,105,219)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - - - (1,624,000)
Net cash flows (used in)/from KESEEN(FrA), /P15
operating activities BEREFH (277,767) 25,853 415,972 401,281
Net cash flows used in BEEBFTH
financing activities RemeEFE (290,044) (121,483) (526,484) (317,092)
Net increase/(decrease) in ReKREEEY
cash and cash equivalents i/ CRid ) R4 (567,811) (95,630) (110,512) 84,189

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

45. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below: (Continued)

31 December 2020

31 December 2021

202112 A31H

45. BEERFEREZNIER
=) PNGINE D)

AEBERERNFZEREROKERR
FEHIT - (F)

202012 H31H

Percentage
of equity
interest held by

Profit for
the year allocated

Accumulated
balances of non-

non-controlling  to non-controlling controlling
interests interests interests
BRI
BEFEAN DEEFEER FEiEiE S
kA DL  EROFAET Zitiam
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
R EEMR R EER 49 63,518 145,667
U U 50 72,249 139,851
mHEF mBEF 65 58,523 100,968
BRI BEHE 40 19,526 219,526

SR BIFE R B R A A
g
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

45. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 45. MEERFEREZNIESR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EfB AT &)
(Continued)
31 December 2020 (Continued) 202012 A31H(#)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of TR M E A T M B E R
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- Z o IEBRENSEAT RERAAMY
company eliminations: £ -
AREEN U miBIEE EHERE
AREEN U miBIEE EHERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue U zs 2,382,306 1,734,197 963,749 67,695
Total expenses B (2,203,203) (1,554,126) (836,923) (2,609)
Income tax expense PSR (49,475) (35,573) (36,791) (16,271)

Profit and total comprehensive — F R F & 2 EE

income for the year k] 129,628 144,498 90,035 483815
Current assets TEVEE 806,949 675,550 1,839,842 1,575,058
Non-current assets FERBEE 19,449 5,857 3,697 143,559
Current liabilities REERE (528,297) (401,705) (1,686,965) (745,443)
Non-current liabilities FERBARE (822) - (1,239) (424,360)

Net cash flows (used in)/from wEEE (A /5

operating activities RenE T8 1,121,713 1499471 1,032,398 (803,705)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEEE (A5

financing activities RenE T8 (1,753,510) (1,488,320) (1,287,901) 1,019,782
Net increase/(decrease) in ReFREEEY

cash and cash equivalents #h0,/CRd) F58 (631,797) 11,151 (255,503) 216,077
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 February 2022, the Company made an exchanges offer whereby
the Company would exchange the outstanding exiting notes due in
March 2022 (“Existing Notes”) for new notes bearing interest at 13.0% per
annum and with a tenor of 364 days to be issued by the Company
(“Exchanged New Notes"). On 3 March 2022, US$95,965,000 in aggregate
principal amount of the Existing Notes due 2022 was validly tendered for
exchanges. Subsequently on 8 March 2022, such amount of Existing
Notes due 2022 was cancelled and the Company issued US$95,965,000
in aggregate principal amount of Exchanged New Notes. For further
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25
February 2022, 4 March 2022 and 9 March 2022.

On 10 March 2022, the Company further repurchased in the open
market of, and cancelled, an aggregate principal amount of
US$62,435,000 of the Existing Notes due 2022. In addition, the Company
also deposited funds of approximately US$6,987,222 into the designated
bank account of the paying agent on the same day, for the redemption
on 16 March 2022 of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$6,600,000 of Existing Notes and the accrued interest thereon. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 March 2022.

A 255 e % it

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

46. FEHEREE

R202F 28258 ARERE—EXR
BMEBL - B NAFER 20253 A
N AEEREER(BRBEREDX
BRAEXRNBETETHNIEE(BERE
MEE]D  FREE13.0% - FH 5364
B R2022F3A3H » 12022 F 5 HiH
REZBEARS 4559596500057 ' B
BRI BRILIE - BN 2022943 H8
B ZZ2R 2002 FREHNBEEERE T
LAFESE - MAR A1 TR S 858 95,965,000
ENLNERBRNEE - BEE —FTFH
B BLHMARRBEA202F2A825
B 20223848 R202F3898 &

N

2022938108 ARBE—FRA
FIT 5 Bl B8 K st S5 2 & 48 8 62,435,000
TLAE 2022 FEIEAMIIR B 28 o bAh - K
NAIIAR B #5476,987222 ETLE 7
AT RRIBAETIRITIRS - AR 2022
3 A6 BEHE O I B HIR 6,600,000
ELHENELEREREHEZZHAERN
JEETFI B - BR#E—TFHE  BREA
ANEBHEI2022F3 B10BHRE ©
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—g-—rey 249



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

47. XA R B ARG =

RRABRHwE PR T BT BRI

the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™
2020
2020 4F
RMB'000
AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Long-term equity investment KA ERE 855 -
Other long-term assets HEmREEE - 9,266
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR E - 82,600
Total non-current assets IEMEEERLTR 855 91,866
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTHES 3,116 382,564
Due from related companies JFE Uk B BE: A A FNIE 2,359,630 2,343,752
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE IR -« ke R EMERGRIE 1,027 22,696
Total current assets MEEEET 2,363,773 2,749,012
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREMBER 394,294 -
Senior notes BhRER 1,801,330 2,217,378
Other payables, deposits received and accruals ~— EfbERTFXIE « DRSS K&
[EETER 2,973 30,194
Due to related companies AN EZL NS B 22,144 19,554
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 2,220,741 2,267,126
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE 143,032 481,886
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEBEE 143,887 573,752
NET ASSETS EERH 143,887 573,752
EQUITY fER
Share capital A% AR 124,119 124,119
Treasury shares BT (7) 7)
Other reserves E bk 19,775 449,640
TOTAL EQUITY RS 143,887 573,752

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

48.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's other reserves is as follows:

31 December 2021

202112 A31H

47. AR BB MR R TR (2)

B L -

ARz EMREERENT

Capital Accumulated Share Exchange
reserve losses premium reserve Total
BERGHE RitEE BREEE B R @B st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
Balance at 31 December 2019 FA2019F 12 A31 A &
and 1 January 2020 20209 1 A1 BR& R 82,600 (19,680) 631,475 32,620 727,015
Loss for the year FAEE - (204,657) - (204,657)
Dividend declared and EEIRRKRE RS
distributions - - (30,662) - (30,662)
Other comprehensive loss FRHMEEERE
for the year - - - (42,056) (42,056)
Balance at 31 December 2020 72202012 A31 B &
and 1 January 2021 20211 A1 BR&E R 82,600 (224,337) 600,813 (9,436) 449,640
Loss for the year FREE - (361,897) - (361,897)
Other comprehensive loss FRNHMEEEE
for the year - - - (30,763) (30,763)
Total comprehensive loss FAEEIERE
for the year - (361,897) (30,763) (392,660)
Dividend declared and EEIRRERDIE
distributions - - (37,205) - (37,205)
Balance at 31 December 2021  F 2021412 A31H
BV ER 82,600 (586,234) 563,608 (40,199) 19,775

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. #ft EM I &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 March 2022.

SR BIFE R B R A A
g

PR EAEFTTR2022F3 308
o N A 2 o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A A

AEERGARAEVRFENEENEE A
ERIEERESBE(HaCTREERTH
HRREEHN,EHNE > WERHIT o

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017
20205 20194F 20184F 2017 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT AR¥TT ARETET
REVENUE Wik 8,746,959 10,679,634 9,092,472 5,070,094 4,675,644
Cost of sales SHE KR (7,240,810) (9,522,203) (7,613,165) (3,600,043) (3,892,117)
Gross profit EF 1,506,149 1,157,431 1,479,307 1,470,051 783,527
Otherincome and gains ~ E b Ug A R UKzS 92,459 64,773 65,300 324,069 35,502
Selling and distribution HERDHAYS
expenses (277,614) (258,419) (294,980) (237,271) (55,567)
Administrative expenses  1THIFA X (245,710) (226,693) (292,408) (331,536) (62,162)
Other expenses HibFsz (141,662) (20,142) (22,828) (15,909) (33,058)
Fair value gains on BEMENRTE
investment properties a5 (3,212) 125,670 106,300 14,803 21,028
Finance costs BT RN (253,007) (202,330) (166,991) (254,007) (177,021)
Share of profits and FEMR BT R B 1S
losses of:
Joint ventures B (29,750) (9,879) (15,440) (19,716) 11,725
Associates =N 32,542 43,988 81,369 111,373 71,007
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR T 680,195 674,399 940,129 1,061,857 594,981
Income tax expenses FriS i < (194,751) (288,255) (579,769) (566,535) (204,372)
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR  F 3R 485,444 386,144 360,360 495,322 390,609
Attributable to: T & IEEG ¢
Owners of the parent [SY/NCIEZZ DN 141,551 182,627 150,309 442,440 420,219
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#ZE i 25 343,893 203,517 210,051 52,882 (29,610)
485,444 386,144 360,360 495,322 390,609
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A S 5 1BE 2

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE  BENRIFEERER
INTERESTS

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Nohai| ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR

TOTAL ASSETS EEH#E 43,199,283 44,629,444 34,522,634 25,539,575 15,904,697
TOTAL LIABILITIES =NEEEE S (37,985,514)  (39367,673)  (30495829)  (23,129,276) (13,918,252
NON-CONTROLLING  FEipRiEz
INTERESTS (2,491,042) (2,501,704) (1,517,987) (841,700) (655,586)
2,722,727 2,760,067 2,508,818 1,568,599 1,330,859

REERERARA
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DEFINITIONS
=

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings when used herein:

"AGM"
[BRBFRE]

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”

(AR sk [AEE =2 408

"ASP”
[SFIEE]

"Audit Committee”
[EZZEE

“Board”

EE5d

"Board Committees” or “Committees”
[EEgZ8ed [ ZS5ZET]
“Board Diversity Policy”
[EEEe LT bBUE ]

"CG Code”
[EEEIRT A

“China” or “PRC"

B

“cIr
[ERMEH

“Company”

[ARaE]

“connected person”

[BAEAL]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ YRR A% 2R

254
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RAFEHA - RXESBHED -
REREREFEFIATEE

TR

the annual general meeting to be held by the Company

ARBEERITZBERBFERE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
RRE) 2 BEBERAR (ETRFEE])

average selling price

FHEE

the audit committee under the Board
EEgTBEREZEY

the board of Directors

Exg

collectively the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and the “Board Committee” or “Committee” means any of them

ERELZEE REZESRFMNZESHBE MIZEFELE|/NZEE]EH
REE—E

the board diversity policy as adopted by the Company
ARRRANEETEZTCBR

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ETARAIP SR P E D E A TR

the People’s Republic of China, which for the sole purpose of this annual report, shall exclude
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and
Taiwan

hiE ARKEME - EAFHME -

A
=pE

TEEEE  PEARAMBEDRPIFRITTHRER K

corporate income tax under the laws of the PRC

FEDAR FRREMEHR

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8 January 2018 and the Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

RIMBEBIERERAR - —KN2018F 1 AsBEREHST MR INEREER R
a) - B RS AR T

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRAIR TZARE

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited
=5 F 54 + Silver Huang Holding Limited & Silver Vally Holding Limited

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.



"Director(s)"

[E%]

"Dividend Policy”
[P BB

"GFA"
[2sEmETR

"Group”
[ E

"Hong Kong”
(&)

"Hong Kong dollars”, "HKD" or "HKS”
(&)

“INED(s)"
[BYIFRITES

“Inside Information Policy”
[RREBHER]

“LAT”
[+ 33 (ER ]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”

[EmEE

“Listing Rules”

[ Em#RAl

“Memorandum” or “Memorandum
of Association”

[RHA ] sk [ B EFE KM

“Model Code”

XSl

DEFINITIONS
B

the director(s) of the Company

ARRIER

the dividend policy as adopted by the Company
AR EERA 2 BB R

gross floor area

BREmE

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NI)S By SN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R FBRERTTER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEEEEBET

independent non-executive Director(s) of the Company

RRRELIFAITES

the internal policy and procedures in relation to the handling of inside information as adopted
by the Company
AR B FTERAN G BB IR N OH B A RR R A2

land appreciation tax under the laws of the PRC

REDERIE TE L HIRE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PR OB S P EAR BT

the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange first
commence, being 6 March 2019

i ERARREREREE 2B » B12019F3 A6 H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

R PE S ERA - EARERT - R SUA R T BBk
the memorandum of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
RRA 2 BEERKM (KETRAEET)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
EHRBIMES T FAE EM BT AERETESFR ZORETE

SR BIFE R B R A A
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DEFINITIONS
=

“NED(s)"
[IFRTER]

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2Z B2

“Nomination Policy”

[fRBBR ]

"Prospectus”

[(HERER]

"Remuneration Committee”

EdE3

"RMB"
[ARE]

"SFO”
w8 7 R R R ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A% R

“Share(s)"
[ |

”sqm‘”

(K

“Stock Exchange”

[ B <2 AT
"Yincheng Real Estate”
SR I98 3h 7E

"Yincheng Real Estate Group”
SR 39 3th 7 5=

"Yincheng Life Service”

[ SRR A5 AR 75

"

"Yincheng Life Service Group

[ SRR AR TS5 SR

non-executive Director(s) of the Company

ARABZIFMTES

the nomination committee under the Board

ExgTERE%8e

the nomination policy as adopted by the Company

RRRFRA 2 RBBR

the prospectus of the Company dated 22 February 2019
RNARIEER2019F2 A 22 A2 BRER

the remuneration committee under the Board

ExeTEFHZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEDEZEEBARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FEEDIE S BEFLFMERD (ETEER] ~ Mesi AR g )

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EEHESZ DN

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company,
which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRA BT FIREE0.01 BT LAB T E B I MEE 32 P 1R BT A BB AR

square metre

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARIMBR AR

Yincheng Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.*, a joint stock company incorporated under the laws of
the PRC with limited liability
RPIEEBRNHBR AR - —RBEPBEEETMAZORMDFRAA

Yincheng Real Estate and its subsidiaries

SR B S EL A R

Yincheng Life Service CO,, Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 3 April 2019 and the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

RIMEERBERRDA - —KN2019F4 A3 ERSHSTMRINERCBR LR
Al RO RBE A PrEIR £

Yincheng Life Service and/or its subsidiaries

RPAETERS & L EMB AR

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
256 ; B

Annual Report 2021



-\

L SRIREIRIZR AR S

\ YINCHENG INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD.




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	AWARDS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	DEFINITIONS
	BACK COVER



